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Without a doubt Gauteng 
is, and continues to be, the 
economic power-house of 
the country, and indeed of 
Africa at large. 



It is for the first time, since the dawn of democracy in 1994, that a sitting Gauteng Member of 

the Executive Committee (MEC) passes on. MEC Nkosiphendule Kolisile tragically died having 

served a year-and-four days in office.

During this period, he served the people of the province with zeal and vigour. He was able to 

converge with diverse stakeholders to ensure that decent employment and inclusive economic 

growth is not only the government’s responsibility but one that requires public private 

partnership.

He was a groundbreaker, with a resilience that is in many ways unmatched. Certainly, his sterling 

contribution has left an indelible mark beyond the geographic confines of the Gauteng province.

Disciplined, Caring and Selfless Servant of the people to the end.

“May his soul rest in perfect peace”

Tribute to MEC Nkosiphendule Kolisile 1973 - 2013



MEC’s 
journey 

with GTA. 
We wil l  miss 
you forever 
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Executive Summary

SECTION 01



The Gauteng city region landscape, with 
its cosmopolitan outlook, allows us to 
be a leading player in the promotion of 
social cohesion message and call.



Section 1 Executive Summary

M E C ’ S  F O R E W O R D

It gives me great pleasure to 
present this foreword for the 
Gauteng Tourism Authority 
(GTA) Annual Report for the 
period 2012-2013. Having taken 
the political responsibility 
for Gauteng Department of 
Economic Development (DED) 
late 2012, I had to rely on the 
solid foundation laid by my 
predecessor, honourable MEC 
Qedani Mahlangu, the Tourism 
Authority Board of Directors and 
the Chief Executive Officer’s 
leadership and management.    

Without a doubt Gauteng is, and continues to 

be, the economic power-house of the country, 

and indeed of Africa at large. Economically, 

the province is the single largest contributor to 

South Africa’s Gross Domestic Product (GDP) 

with a contribution of 33% and has now shifted 

to become economy based on tertiary industry 

– particularly the services sectors. After many 

years of significant national economic growth, 

spurred by general global economic growth and 

stability, the recent economic recession has 

changed the face of tourism drastically. Despite 

the decline in market share, Gauteng continued 

to enjoy an increase of 6.1% growth, from 3.8 

million to 4.1 million during the year under 

review.  

Dubbed the ‘new gold’ after its significant 

contribution to the national GDP over the past 

few years, tourism has emerged as one of 

the instruments to fast track socio-economic 

transformation, economic growth, development 

and a major role player in the job creation effort 

as spearheaded by our government. In this 

context, tourism is viewed as a very important 

sector of Gauteng economy, both in terms 

of its contribution to economic growth and 

employment creation. It is expected that by 2014, 

the sector will contribute more than 5% towards 

the economic growth of the province.   

Our golden province played a leading role not 

only as the main point of entry into the country 

through the OR Tambo International Airport, 

but also as a leading Meeting, Incentives, 

Conferences and Events (MICE) destination. 

Equally important was the successful hosting 

of the Airport Cities Conference in Ekurhuleni, 

MEC Economic 

Development

Nkosiphendule 
Kolisile
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Disciplined
, Caring and 

Selfless Servant 
of the people 

to the end.
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cementing the region’s standing as a true 

aerotropolis. 

The International Congress and Convention 

Association body (ICCA), recently released 

their latest ranking and through our dedicated 

Convention Bureau’s support, we have managed 

to improve the ranking of Johannesburg, from 

number 234 last year to 142 - moving up 92 

places. ICCA rankings are announced annually 

and takes into account the number of association 

meetings hosted. These must be held regularly, 

and rotates between at least three countries. 

ICCA is now one of the most prominent 

organisations in the world. 

ICCA’s network of over 950 suppliers to the 

international meetings industry spans the 

globe, with members in 88 countries. We are 

looking forward to even better showings in the 

coming year as we get our Convention Bureau 

operational.

Also a key highlight in the work of the Gauteng 

Tourism Authority in the period under review was 

the Jo’burg’s City Sightseeing Red Hop-on Hop-

off bus. City Sightseeing Johannesburg follows 

an exciting route through the Jo’burg CBD that 

offers the chance to explore this vibrant city to 

locals and tourist alike. This tour visits the many 

attractions on offer and samples the sights, 

sounds, colours, cultures and rich heritage that 

are all synonymous with Jo’burg. This has been 

a huge boost for tourism in the province and a 

true testament that our destination is viable and 

attractive to potential investors. We are looking 

forward to seeing the operation of the bus 

expanding to other nodes in the city and also 

into Tshwane in the not-so-distant future.

The need to follow and support our inter-

governmental relations framework in rolling out 

our tourism development work cannot be over-

emphasised. We are now starting to see much 

improved relations and co-operation in our drive 

to present integrated government offerings. 

Tourism development is a 

concurrent function and governance is our 

priority. To this end and through coordination 

with GTA, we have started encouraging dialogues 

with our colleagues in local government. Our 

role is to ensure MINMEC deliberations, filters 

through to local government.  This will assist us 

to plan, coordinate and action even better.

In the period under review developing a culture 

of domestic travel and valuing tourism and 

tourists through necessary social awareness 

campaigns has been one of the main drives 

for GTA. We continued to promote the culture 

of travel and tourism amongst the people of 

Gauteng and encourage all to ‘live life local’.  

The I’m a GeePee 
and this is my 

Gauteng domestic 
tourism campaign is a 

good start and we would 
like to see many partners 

joining hands and 
supporting this 

initiative not only in 
government, but 

across the 
sector.  

Regional spread and showcasing of different 

regional offerings are the defining features of 

the success of this campaign. Moving forward, 

I would like to see more effort in extending the 

campaign to all Gauteng’s regions. 

The biggest single threat to the growth of 

tourism is the social reality of crime levels in the 

province. Together with the provincial department 

of Community Safety, we have in the period 

under review, rolled out programmes and visible 
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policing initiatives to ensure safety to tourists.  

The tourism sector continues to be one of the 

biggest contributors to our job creation targets 

as detailed in the New Growth Path and related 

action plans. A highly competitive sector in 

nature, this area of work requires all of us to be 

innovative and facilitate, cutting-edge projects 

that will benefit our economy and contribute 

immensely to the creation of decent and 

sustainable jobs. Government will continue to 

provide leadership and drive the private sector 

and ensure that tourism creates tangible benefits 

to our people.  

My sincere thanks to the GTA Board of Directors, 

the management team, and staff members, for 

their continued dedication and efforts during 

the period under review. I am confident that you 

will draw inspiration and encouragement from 

the strides that have been taken and use the 

lessons learned as a basis for future performance 

improvement. Let’s work together to make 

tourism everybody’s business.
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Section 1 Executive Summary

Khehla 
Mthembu

Chairperson

C H A I R P E R S O N ’ S 

F O R E W O R D

The broader mandate of the GTA Board of 

Directors is to exercise  oversight and financial 

management. Similarly, our role is to steer 

the organisation towards becoming a leading 

globally competitive sustainable tourism 

destination of choice. The achievement of 

this vision requires the formation of board 

sub-committees, namely, the destination 

development committee, audit committee 

and the destination marketing committee. All 

these are board sub-committees that help in 

processing the work in between the board 

meetings and liaise accordingly with the relevant 

management structures for better coordination.

The progressively growing stature of tourism 

nationally and provincially as an agent for 

economic growth and development has resulted 

in the role of the GTA growing in a bid to 

create sustainable job and entrepreneurial 

opportunities. This in turn has driven the efforts 

to formalize tourism as an economic sector on 

its own.

Tourism is among the key industries and 

economic sectors identified to drive economic 

growth and creation of decent work through the 

Gauteng Employment Growth and Development 

Strategy (GEGDS) and the National Growth Path 

(NGP), both of which have job creation as their 

primary objective. 

Inherent in the GTA’s mandate is the role of 

positioning Gauteng both as a destination and 

as a brand which is globally desirable and 

competitive for investment and other purposes; a 

role that adds value to the functions of its sister 

agencies such as the newly established Gauteng 

Growth and Development Agency (GGDA), the 

Gauteng Enterprise Propeller (GEP) and the 

Gauteng Partnership Fund (GPF). 

Work in the period under review has been 

guided by the National Tourism Sector Strategy 

(NTSS) and the Gauteng Tourism Sector 

Strategy (GTSS) which cascades down from 

this. Accordingly we have, steered the work of 

the Authority to operate in tandem with regional 

and local government structures to advance the 

notion of positioning Gauteng as a Global City 

Region (GCR) whilst seeking to achieve a united 

government approach to harmonising tourism 

promotion and management in the province. We 

have also insisted on maintaining strong ties 

The Gauteng 
Tourism Authority (GTA) 
is mandated to manage 
Gauteng as a globally 

competit ive destination and 
to ensure that the province 

is ef fectively marketed 
and promoted. This can be 

achieved by ensuring that i t
 is a value-for-money 

destination that develops 
products that respond 

to tourist demands. 
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with South African Tourism (SAT) which leads 

the international marketing drive and generally 

aligns itself without deviation from the national 

tourism agenda, through active participation in 

all national structures that seek to advance the 

sector agenda and other coordinating and review 

platforms.

One of GTA’s foremost challenges is to sustain 

the province’s status as a leading provincial 

destination for international tourists and a 

primary tourism revenue generator whilst 

cooperating with other provinces. We do 

this guided by the GEGDS which recognizes 

Gauteng’s role as the country’s economic 

powerhouse and in assisting the economic 

viability of other provinces to reduce the extent 

of migration into Gauteng. 

To effectively achieve this, we have placed 

much more emphasis on the need to conclude 

the merger process and the creation of a single 

tourism agency for the GCR. It is our view that a 

single tourism agency for the province will go a 

long way in reducing duplications, in relation to 

ensuring better coordination and that we derive 

and build the much needed value for our clients 

and stakeholders. 

In executing this work, we are proud to confirm 

that the entire GTA, COH and Dinokeng team 

managed to complete the much needed business 

case for the merger process. The completion of 

the merger business case represents a major 

milestone in our drive towards a single tourism 

agency. On behalf of the Board of directors we 

would like to take this opportunity to salute and 

congratulate all who worked tirelessly to achieve 

this remarkable feat within a very short period of 

time.

On the tourism products mix and delivery against 

the annual performance plans, we are pleased 

that the authority has once again recorded 

positive strides in the execution of its work. 

Amongst the main highlights that come to the 

fore are the following:

•	 The	successful	hosting	of	Meetings	

 Africa  2013 and its related post tour 

 programmes;

•	 The	successful	showcase	and	donation	

 of the Australopithecus Sediba 

 discoveries to both the Berlin and 

 Shanghai museums;

•	 The	execution	and	management	of	the		

 growth of both the Joy of Jazz and the  

 SANSUI Summer Cup mega events;

•	 The	launch	of	Joburg’s	hot	red	

 Hop-on Hop-off Bus;

•	 The	launch	of	the	Gauteng	travel	guide		

 Applications (APP) and other advances

 in relation to the attraction of unique 

 visitors to our digital platforms and the 

 rise in our social network followers.

The period under review also saw the 

organisation ensuring that responsible tourism 

dominates our tourism month activities. 

Working 
together with 

Fair Trade in tourism 
organisation, we 

recorded posit ive str ides 
in our drive to become 

a competit ive 
responsible tourism 

destination of
 choice.

Similarly we saw in the year under review 

concerted efforts being placed to promote 

organised co-operative work in the form of the 

SO-WEE-TO group of products in Soweto. 

The Soweto (SO-WEE-TO) signature experience 

represents a true model for authentic and 

sustainable tourism product packaging 

experience, with many product owners and 

operators in the area rallying behind the co-

op approach, and benefiting from each other’s 
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strengths. This is a model which all our regions 

and cluster products across Gauteng should 

adopt in our quest to showcase our unique 

regional offerings that make destination Gauteng.

On the financial side consistent with the Public 

Finance Management Act (PFMA) guiding 

framework, Act 1 of 1999, the Authority received 

an allocation of R52 045 000 from the DED. The 

Board provided oversight on this budget and 

ensured that despite this not being sufficient to 

cater for all our needs, we allocated resources 

for tourism development, strategic and tactical 

marketing and regional tourism development 

work across our regions. We also provided 

support to the merger process and are confident 

that with extra financial and human resources 

deployed to this area of work we will record even 

more positive results in the future.

Lastly, I would like to thank and salute my fellow 

board members for their continued dedication 

and support to the work of the agency. Their total 

commitment and expert inputs to the work and 

life of this organisation are unmatched. Working 

with this collective is absolutely pure joy and we 

are looking forward to our board in the coming 

year to make us even more focused and well 

sharpened for the challenges ahead. Special 

thanks go to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 

Dawn Robertson, the management collective 

and staff of the agency for their invaluable 

support and dedication through thier difficult 

merger period and its related uncertainties. We 

have achieved all these strides through your 

dedication and hard work. You remain our most 

valuable assert and we are grateful for your 

support.

K h e h l a  M t h e m b u

Chairperson 
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G T A  B O A R D  M E M B E R S

Khehla Mthembu

David MoshapaloHaroun Moolla Nomaxabiso 
Majokweni

Moipone Molotsi Leonard 
Makgamathe
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Section 1 Executive Summary

CEO’s 
REPORT 

Mergers are complex processes even in 

the most advanced and sophisticated 

organisations, given the dynamics of 

dealing and managing people from different 

organisational cultures who have different 

expectations of how the process should 

unfold. The current situation is no different 

from other such merger processes and the   

     year under review has seen huge   

        challenges in managing and  

            motivating staff during this period 

     of change and uncertainty. 

                 However various processes and 

         forums have been used 

          to ensure that staff 

          participation and 

          communication were 

          encouraged in terms of the 

         unfolding merger process.

        Initially this meant having 

      separate multi-functional and 

    multi-organisational work-streams 

  working towards specific objectives  

        in terms of an integrated organisation.     

    This work also included the legal due-

diligence on the options and challenges 

that would be faced in terms of legal merger 

process in addition to developing an 

integrated organisational structure for the 

new entity. An internal task team was set up 

to manage the process of developing the 

Business Case for the merger process and 

the final Business Case was forwarded for the 

Executive Authority’s approval towards the 

end of March 2013.

The other key issue that the organisation 

faced over the year was the fact that it had 

to continue implementing its mandate with a 

much reduced budget compared to previous 

financial years. 

During the fiscal year we began to integrate 

some functional areas like Administration and 

Marketing. We also seconded team members 

from the different entities to establish the 

product and infrastructure unit to start to 

address areas within the Gauteng Tourism 

Sector Strategy relating to these areas of work. 

It is within this context that one must view the 

implementation of projects during the 2012/13 

financial year. In terms of non-financial 

performance, the GTA achievement stood at 

86% with the remaining 14% of the projects 

being at various stages of completion. 

The 2012/13 
f iscal year was most 
challenging for the 

Gauteng Tourism Authority 
(GTA). This fol lowed the decision 
in December 2011 to merge the 

GTA with the Cradle of Humankind 
World Heritage Site and Dinokeng 

Projects. As a result we had to 
ensure that processes and 

systems were put in place to 
develop an integrated tourism 
entity for the province whilst 

at the same time ensuring 
ef fective and timely 

implementation of the 
budgeted projects. 

Dawn 
Robertson

Chief Executive 
Officer: Gauteng 

Tourism Authority
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Of most concern to us is the destination 

performance of the province during 2012 which 

have resulted in many of our targets in this area 

not being achieved. Of all our targets in this area 

we have only met the foreign tourists’ length of 

stay. 

The rest of foreign tourism targets were missed 

by an agonisingly small margin. The research 

team is still grappling with the analysis and 

interpretation of these numbers in the absence 

of the full report from SA Tourism but what is 

important to immediately note is that for the first 

time, our provincial market share has dropped 

to 44%. We have previously averaged 46% and 

the nearly 2% decline alone represents between 

180 000 and 200 000 tourists lost by Gauteng 

to other provinces. This also means we only 

grew by 2.5% which is only the second time we 

recorded such a slow growth rate. Traditionally, 

we outstrip the national growth rate which is at 

10% for 2012. Not even the phenomenal growth 

from Asian markets made up for our market share 

loss. If we look at the phenomenal growth of 

Mpumalanga for instance, one realises that the 

trend of cross border shoppers travelling shorter 

distances continues. We are losing visitors from 

neighbouring Southern African Development 

Community (SADC) countries in particular, who 

continue to travel shorter distances particularly 

from source markets such as Mozambique. 

We also need to analyze the aviation statistics 

to see how we may be losing our gateway 

status particularly as tourists are beginning to 

visit fewer provincial destinations. This means 

many visitors that would traditionally have come 

through Gauteng and potentially spend a day at 

least in the province now arrive directly through 

entry points such as Cape Town or King Shaka 

International,Durban, and do not visit any other 

province. Evidently, the loss in arrivals market 

share has also affected the number of bed-

nights despite the marginal growth in bed-nights 

market shared between 2011 and 2012. The slow 

growth in revenue bears testimony to us also 

slowly losing a significant market share with the 

province generating R30 billion against a R30.8 

billion target during 2012.

In a nutshell, this means there are new 

trends that are game changers that require 

the marketing team to review our marketing 

strategies in order to defend our leadership 

position. The issue of the 2008/9 recession which 

was clouded by the 2010 World Cup impact 

and the change in methodology since StatsSA 

introduced the new technology to track the 

inflow and outflow of individuals during 2010 

necessitate that we rethink our strategies. 

Unlike many other consumer purchases, tourism 

consumers buy a destination “experience” 

comprised of places to visit, places to stay 

and things to do. To succeed as a destination 

requires single-minded focus, strong leadership 

and collaboration. 

The role of 
government is to 

continue to lead and 
work closely with tourism 
businesses, communities, 

tourism marketing 
organisations and all 

levels of government to 
realize the ful l  potential 

of tourism in
 this province.

Travel is not typically an impulse purchase – for 

many, a trip to South Africa is the culmination 

of a dream and, potentially, the trip of a 

lifetime. Inspired to visit many destinations, 

consumers go through a complex planning 

and purchase process to narrow the list of 

potential destinations, gather information, make 

a decision, and finally purchase a vacation. 

Throughout the trip, consumers continue to make 
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decisions about daily activities such as dining 

and attractions, as well as evaluating their overall 

vacation experience. Through social media, they 

can share those experiences and opinions in real 

time with their friends and family.

The power of social media to enhance and 

leverage the positive experiences of travellers to 

attract new visitors, as well as encourage return 

visits, is huge. This underscores the importance 

of connecting with consumers at every touch 

point – before, during and after their trip. To 

maximize the benefits of tourism in Gauteng, 

our strategy going forward will include actions 

to influence each stage of the vacation planning 

and purchase process. 

Emerging 
technologies are 
key to providing 

comprehensive and 
timely travel planning 

information, increasing 
the l ikelihood that 

visitors wil l  stay longer, 
with increased spending 

while they 
are here. 

By ensuring an exceptional experience, visitors 

are more likely to return, as well as recommend 

travel to Gauteng.

The overarching approach to achieving growth is 

to address consumer needs based on their stage 

in trip planning – from awareness to interest, 

then purchase and repeat visitation. Fundamental 

to this is the concept of connecting consumers to 

the product of their choice through the channel 

of their choice.

Increasingly, consumers’ channel of choice 

is online; resources will therefore continue to 

be invested in emerging marketing tools and 

technology.

As a result of strategic investment in online 

resources, the current provincial e-marketing 

system provides the flexibility to deliver 

information and resources in the way people 

need them. To date, the focus has been on 

developing robust websites. The shift now is to 

mobile sites and applications, as mobile devices 

become the most common form of hardware for 

accessing digital content. Regardless of which 

path technology follows and which devices 

potential visitors embrace, from smart phones 

to iPods, digital content will be provided to 

the right people, at the right time in the right 

context. Twitter, Facebook, YouTube, among 

others, has created new worlds of online 

participation. Sharing ideas, recommendations 

and experiences on the Internet is becoming 

commonplace. 

The opportunities for tourism marketers to 

engage with consumers through social media are 

numerous: starting with joining conversations 

to raising awareness about Gauteng and 

carrying through to encouraging consumers to 

share their great experiences in Gauteng after 

they return home.To meet the popularity and 

diversity of communication needs, a provincial 

social media plan is in place. This approach is 

designed to make the most of direct contact 

with consumers, tourism businesses, media, 

and industry partners. In the short-term, the 

plan supports current business needs and 

social channels. In the longer-term social media 

will become standard practice, and will blend 

official marketing messages and consumer 

recommendations to create the strongest 

endorsement yet of Gauteng as a leading 

destination in the global tourism market.

Key Achievements

Key achievements during the period under review 

include the launch of the City Sightseeing Hop 

On - Hop Off service on the 7 February 2013 - a 

culmination of over two years of collaboration 

between the public and private sector. City 

Sightseeing Worldwide is the number one open 

top bus operator globally. 
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 It operates on six continents and in over 150 

cities in the world. The product is tried and 

tested and provides a recognized safe, reliable, 

informative, cost effective and fun way to see 

the city and to easily visit key attractions. The 

introduction of the product to Cape Town over 

the past years has demonstrated the value of this 

service for primarily the domestic market and the 

potential that the product has to contribute to 

inner city regeneration.  It has already assisted 

in changing the perception of the inner city into 

a tourism friendly zone and thereby continue to 

grow the tourism footprint and associated spend 

of tourists to the benefit of local businesses.  

There are twelve stops along the route at key 

tourist attractions and the commentary on the 

busses in 17 different languages, tells the story 

of Johannesburg through the many historic 

buildings, landmarks and attractions along the 

route.  

Tourism Infrastructure

Tourism infrastructure has been identified by 

the Gauteng Tourism Sector Strategy (GTSS) 

as one of the pillars of tourism and economic 

growth, sustainability and good governance; 

and is essential to realising the tourism 

sector’s substantial potential for job creation 

and economic development. Government has 

identified numerous projects for investment in 

strategic economic infrastructure to enhance 

growth and development. However, on lower 

provincial levels, tourism infrastructure 

requirements are not always incorporated into 

provincial tourism plans and strategies, and are 

therefore often neglected.  To address the current 

lack of information on tourism infrastructure; 

and to effectively manage tourism infrastructure 

projects, a Destination Infrastructure team 

was established by the Gauteng Tourism 

Authority (GTA). This unit will work to ensure a 

synchronised and integrated approach towards 

tourism infrastructure development, management 

and support in Gauteng. One of the key pieces 

of work during the period under review was 

the development of the Gauteng Tourism 

Infrastructure Project & Investment Portfolio.

The key purpose of the study is to develop a 

tourism infrastructure project portfolio to assist 

the Province in the establishment of a pipeline 

of tourism projects. As part of this assignment, 

a status quo was developed of the current 

tourism infrastructure projects being planned, 

implemented and managed by the GTA, together 

with an analysis of previously identified new 

projects for the GTA and a review of potential 

additional projects that could be taken up by 

the GTA, sourced from the various tourism 

regions of the Province. The current status of 

tourism infrastructure projects planned and 

being implemented in the Province is described 

in this report and following a screening process, 

M s  D a w n  R o b e r t s o n

Chief Executive Officer:
Gauteng Tourism Authority

according to which proposed initiatives have 

been categorised and shortlisted, a status quo 

review is now available for those projects that 

are deemed to be at a state of readiness that 

allows them to be taken forward for packaging 

and implementation with some intervention and 

support.  

Our vision for the province is a tourism sector 

that will create jobs, opportunities and prosperity 

for every region of the province. It is becoming 

clear that in order to achieve this vision, we 

must look to grow in key emerging markets and 

further concentrate our efforts where we have a 

competitive advantage such as Africa. To achieve 

this goal we will focus our efforts through action in 

four key areas in the next fiscal:

•	 Leadership	through	partnership	and;	

 coordination;

•	 Focused	marketing;

•	 World	class	visitor	experiences;

•	 Removing	barriers	to	tourism	growth.
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As tourism growth development in 
the country gained momentum the 
notion of the sustainability of the of the 
industry took centre stage



Section 2 Tourism Gauteng

2 . 1  
G A U T E N G  T O U R I S M 
A U T H O R I T Y 
M A N D A T E 

The Gauteng Tourism Authority (GTA) was 

founded by the Gauteng Tourism Act no. 10 of 

2001, which prescribes the function of the GTA as 

follows:

To provide for the promotion and sustainable 

development of tourism in Gauteng; to establish 

the GTA; to confer powers and functions and 

impose duties upon the Authority; to establish 

the Tourism Advisory Committee; to establish 

a tourism development fund; to provide for 

registration of tourist guides, tour operators, 

couriers, accredited training providers in the 

tourism industry, hotels, conference centres, 

restaurants, designated tourism amenities 

and other accommodation establishments 

and possible future functions relating to these 

categories; and to provide for matters incidental 

thereto.

About the Gauteng Tourism Authority 

The early to mid-1990s witnessed the stepping 

up of South Africa’s deliberate effort to formalise 

tourism as an industry, underscored in the main 

by the establishment of the National Tourism Act 

(No.72 of 1993). Since the advent of this Act, 

a few more tourism legislative developments 

occurred both at national level and across the 

country; spurred by the dawn of a new political 

democratic dispensation in 1994 which began 

in earnest to open South Africa to the world as 

the country was being reintegrated back into the 

global society. 

As tourism growth and development in the 

country gained momentum, the notion of 

the sustainability of the industry took centre 

stage ultimately giving birth to the responsible 

tourism-oriented National White Paper on the 

Development and Promotion of Tourism in South 

Africa (1996) which proclaimed inter alia, that 

tourism should be Government-led, private 

sector-driven and community-based.

In its quest to leverage on national tourism 

growth and development to drive economic 

growth in the province, the Gauteng Provincial 

Government (GPG) – through the erstwhile 

Department of Finance and Economic Affairs 

(now Department of Economic Development) 

– established the Gauteng Tourism Authority 

in 1998 as a specialist agency responsible for 

tourism promotion. The Authority was founded on 

the Gauteng Tourism Act, No. 18 of 1998 whose 

chief purpose was: 

To provide for sustainable development and 

improvement of tourism in Gauteng; to establish 

GTA; to confer powers and functions and 

impose duties upon the Authority; to establish a 

tourism development fund; to establish specific 

mechanisms in order to provide sustainable 

tourism revenue for tourism development and 

promotion; to provide for the registration, 

grading and classification of hotels; to provide 

for the registration of restaurants, other 

accommodation establishments, conference 

centres and tourist amenities; to provide for 

the licensing of tour operators, tour guides and 
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couriers; to provide for the certification and 

accreditation of training providers in the tourism 

industry; to provide for the imposition and 

collection of levies in respect of hotels and other 

accommodation establishments, restaurants and 

designated tourist amenities; and to provide for 

matters incidental thereto.

The 1998 Act was subsequently repealed by 

the Gauteng Tourism Act, No. 10 of 2001 which 

somewhat scaled down the mandate of the 

Authority whilst it maintained the central role of 

the agency as follows: 

To provide for the promotion and sustainable 

development of tourism in Gauteng; to establish 

the Gauteng Tourism Authority; to confer powers 

and functions and impose duties upon the 

Authority; to establish the Tourism Advisory 

Committee; to confer powers and functions and 

impose duties upon the Committee; to establish 

a tourism development fund; to provide for 

registration of tourist guides, tour operators, 

couriers, accredited training providers in the 

tourism industry, hotels, conference centres; 

restaurants, designated tourist amenities and 

other accommodation establishments and 

possible future functions relating to these 

categories; and to provide for matters incidental 

thereto.

The 2007 amendment of the 2001 Act was 

premised on the recognition of the non-executive 

Board of Directors which hitherto was only 

interim, having been established earlier to 

replace the Tourism Advisory Committee and act 

as an Accounting Authority.

The Gauteng Tourism Authority broadly carries 

a dual mandate: on the one hand to position 

Gauteng as a globally desired destination 

through its marketing and promotional efforts 

and on the other, to manage Gauteng as a 

globally competitive destination through ensuring 

that it is a value-for-money destination and also 

ensuring that it develops products that respond 

to the tourist demands. 

The progressively
 growing stature of 

tourism nationally and 
provincially as an agent 
for economic growth and 
development has resulted 
in the role of the Gauteng 
Tourism Authority growing 

exponentially in a bid
 to create sustainable job 

and entrepreneurial 
opportunit ies.

This in turn has seen the effort to formalise 

tourism as an economic sector with its specific 

accounting of economic contribution.

To this end, tourism is chief among the key 

industries and economic sectors identified 

to drive economic growth and creation of 

decent work through the Gauteng Employment 

Growth and Development Strategy (GEGDS) 

and the National Growth Path (NGP), both of 

which have job creation as their centre piece. 

Inherent in the GTA’s mandate is the role of 

positioning not only destination Gauteng but 

also Brand Gauteng as a globally desirable 

and competitive destination for investment 

and other purposes; a role that adds value to 

the functions of its sister agencies such as 

the Gauteng Growth and Development Agency 

(GGDA), the Gauteng Film Commission (GFC) 

and the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage 

Site (COH WHS) and Dinokeng Projects. 

The Authority also works in close collaboration 

with regional and local government structures 

to advance the notion of positioning Gauteng 

as a Global City Region (GCR) whilst seeking 

to achieve a joined-up government approach 

to harmonising tourism promotion and 

management in the province. It also maintains 

strong ties with SA Tourism which leads the 

international marketing drive and generally 
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aligns itself without deviation to the national 

tourism agenda, through among other means, 

active participation in all national structures that 

seek to advance the sector agenda.

One of the GTA’s foremost challenges is to 

sustain the province’s status as a leading 

provincial destination for international tourists 

and a primary tourism revenue generator whilst 

cooperating with other provinces; particularly 

the ones with which it shares common borders; 

consistent with the GEGDS which recognises 

Gauteng’s role – as the country’s economic 

powerhouse – to assist with economic viability 

of other provinces to reduce the degree of in-

migration to Gauteng. 

2 . 2  
C O N S T I T U T I O N A L , 
N A T I O N A L  A N D 
P R O V I N C I A L 
L E G I S L A T I V E 
M A N D A T E S

LIST OF ACTS 

Access to Information Act 2 of 2000

Basic Conditions of Employment Act No. 75 of 1997 and Regulations 

Employment Equity Act 55 of 1998

Gauteng Tourism Amendment Act No. 3 of 2006

Labour Regulations Act No.66 of 1995

National Records and Archives Services Act, 1996

National Tourism Act. No. 72 of 1993

Occupational Health and Safety Act 85 of 1993

Promotion of Access to Information Act, 2000

Promotion of Administrative Justice Act, 2000

Public Finance Management Act No.1 of 1999 and regulations

Public Service Act, 1994, as amended

Public Service Regulations, 2001, as amended

Skills Development Act 97 of 1998

Skills Development Levies Act 9 of 1999

South African Qualifications Authority Act 58 of 1995

The Income Tax Act 58 of 1962

Unemployment Insurance Act 30 of 1966

Value added Tax Act 89 of 1991
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2 . 3  
G O O D 
G O V E R N A N C E 
A N D  L E G I S L A T I V E 
R E S P O N S I B I L I T Y

The Gauteng Tourism Authority was established 

in terms of the Gauteng Tourism Act No 10 of 

2001 as from 5 February 2002.  Prior to this, 

the Gauteng Tourism Act 18 of 1998 applied. 

The result of this process was that policies, 

procedures and the delegation of powers were 

revised in order to provide for the transfer of the 

Accounting Authority from the Board to the Chief 

Executive Officer (CEO).

Subsequently, the Gauteng Tourism Act No 3 of 

2006 came into effect on 7 June 2006 stipulating 

that a Board of Directors take over from the CEO 

the responsibilities of the Accounting Authority.  

The Board was appointed on 1 February 2007.  

The GTA is a Schedule 3(c) Provincial Public 

Entity in terms of the Public Finance Management 

Act (PFMA), Act 1 of 1999.

The PFMA is implemented resulting in the 

maintenance of and compliance with the 

following required policies:

Section 2 Tourism Gauteng

•	 Supply-Chain Management Policy

•	 Risk Management Policy

•	 Investment Policy;

•	 Debt Collection Policy;

•	 Fraud Prevention Plan; 

•	 Asset Management Policy; and

•	 Materiality Framework Policy.

 

Governance and Management

Until 5 February 2002, the GTA was governed 

by a Board, appointed by the Member of the 

Executive Council (MEC) for Finance and 

Economic Affairs. On 5 February 2002 the 

CEO became the Accounting Authority with the 

MEC, being the Executive Authority advised 

by an Advisory Committee. The Authority also 

has an Audit Committee and a Procurement 

Committee. Staff were appointed according to 

the organogram.

As from 1 February 2007, the responsibilities of 

the Accounting Authority were transferred to the 

new Board who became fully functional in the 

2007/8 financial year.  At the first Board Meeting 

held on 22 May 2007, a resolution was passed 

that each Board Member must sign a declaration 

of interest at every future board meeting.

The Board:

•	 Retains	full	control	over	the	entity,	its	

 plans and strategy; and

•	 Acknowledges	its	responsibilities	as	

 to strategy, compliance with internal 

 policies, external laws and regulations, 

 effective risk management and 

 performance measurement, transparency 

 and effective communication both 

 internally and externally by the entity.

Compliance to the policies, procedures and 

applicable legislation, is strictly monitored. In 

order to improve on internal controls, various 

other policies and procedures were also put in 

place.  An Audit Committee is functional. The 

Audit Committee evaluated the effectiveness 

of the internal audit function provided by the 

firm Governance and Risk Management (Pty) 

Ltd on an ongoing basis with recommendations 

reflected in the minutes of the Audit Committee 

meetings.



2 . 4  
S T R E N G T H E N I N G  A C C O U N T A B I L I T Y  T O  S T A K E H O L D E R S 

2.4.1 Cooperative Governance:  National Departments 

Department  Scope of engagement
National Department of Tourism (NDT) Alignment of plans and budget for marketing, skills development, service excellence in the province

2.4.2 Cooperative Governance:  National Government Agencies

Government Agency Scope of engagement
South African Tourism (SAT) Alignment of plans and budget for marketing the province

Support for international and domestic tourism destination marketing 

Research and planning cooperation

Tourism Grading Council of South Africa (TGCSA) Promotion of tourism grading and support for accreditation of assessors. 

The Tourism Enterprise Partnership (TEP) Alignment of skills and entrepreneurship development programmes

 

2.4.3 Cooperative Governance:  Provincial Departments Agencies

Government department/agency Scope of engagement
Department of Economic Development (DED) Development and implementation of Service Level Agreement (SLA)

Alignment of plans and budget within DED agencies

Department of Local Government Alignment of plans and execution 

Gauteng Growth and Development Agency (GGDA)  sharing common marketing platforms 

Gauteng Economic Propeller (GEP) Alignment of plans on SMME development support 

2.4.4 Cooperative Governance:  Neighbouring Provinces
 

Province Scope of engagement
North West Alignment of plans and budget for tourism marketing 

Transfer of the Ga-Rankuwa Hotel School by Gauteng Province that will enhance skills capacitating.





SECTION 03
Tourism Gauteng 
Vision & Mission



Gauteng Tourism’s Vision and Mission – to 
develop, promote, coordinate and facilitate 
responsible and sustainable tourism in the 
Gauteng global city region



3 . 1  V i s i o n

 

To position Gauteng as a globally 
competitive destination of choice.

Mission 

To develop, promote, co-ordinate and facilitate 

responsible and sustainable tourism in the 

Gauteng global city region, to create a world-class 

destination that attracts business visitors and all 

other tourists to the province, benefits our people 

and contributes to job creation and economic 

growth.

Values 

•	 Commitment	to	the	principles	of	Batho	Pele;

•	 Integrity	and	Passion;

•	 Professionalism	and	Excellence;

•	 Strong	focus	on	sustainable	and	

 responsible tourism;

•	 Commitment	to	progressive	corporate	

 governance.

Section 3 Tourism Gauteng Vision & Mission

Strategic Goals

•	 Create	and	promote	a	world	class	

 tourist  destination;

•	 Contribute	towards	tourism	sector		 	

 industry development;

•	 Facilitate	industry	co-ordination	and			

 cooperative governance;

•	 Foster	a	responsible	and	sustainable		

 tourism industry;

•	 Implement	progressive	corporate		 	

 governance practices.
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3 . 2  
G T A  C o r e 
f u n c t i o n s 

GTA’s core 
function is to develop, 

promote, co-ordinate and 
facil i tate responsible and 
sustainable tourism in the 

Gauteng global city region; 
to create a world-class 
destination that attracts 

business visitors and all  other 
tourists to the province; and 

benefits our people and 
contributes to job creation 

and economic growth.
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SECTION 4
Reports on the Performance 
against the Approved Plans



A detailed account of all units roles and functions.



4 . 1    F I N A N C E

The purpose of the programme is 
to provide an ef fective financial 
management function, ensure 
the implementation of risk 
management and provide a 
strategic support function. 

The total expenditure for the Finance Business 

Unit was R3, 304, 629 from a total budget of 

R4, 657,500 which was 18% under budget. The 

reasons for the under-spend were Short Term 

Insurance and Compensation Commissioner 

Section 4 Report on the Performance against the Approved Plans

Savings as well as the fact that the CFO was only 

appointed in September 2012. 

4.1.1  Financial Reporting

Internal financial controls, policies and 

procedures are revised on an ongoing basis 

as and when the need is identified. This is fully 

compliant with all applicable legislation and is 

implemented after the necessary approval.

Financial reporting is performed on a monthly 

basis with a full set of financial statements, 

ready for disbursement to management and 

the Department of Economic Development 

(DED), within the first week of the following 

month.  The monthly financial management 

statements consist of the Statement of Financial 

Performance, Statement of Financial Position 

and Statement of Cash Flows (also quarterly), 

notes to these statements and Age Analysis as 

well as the Budget Deviation Report and Bank 

Reconciliations. 

4.1.2  Payroll Administration

Payroll Administration for the GTA is a 

competency and responsibility of the Finance 

Business Unit. Payroll and salary structuring 

are treated as highly confidential with the 

Remuneration Officer, Accountant responsible 

for processing of information while being 

monitored and checked by the Finance and 

Payroll Manager and Chief Financial Officer. 

The total actual expenditure on salaries for 

the Authority amounted to R30, 172,764 from 

a total budgeted amount of R31, 620,000 

indicating an under spend of 5%. All targets 

set for the year were met.

4 . 2   
C O R P O R A T E 
S E R V I C E S

The purpose of this programme is 
to provide ef fective leadership, 
strategic management and 
support in accordance with 
legislation, regulations, and 
policies to ensure appropriate 
human resources, administration 
and information communications 
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technology support services to all 
other programmes.

4.2.1   Role of the unit in the overall      
   organization mix

The role of the unit is to provide human 

resources, administration or facilities and 

information communications technology support 

across the value chain.

4.2.2 Achievement objectives

•	 Implemention of a more robust and redundant 

technology platform to ensure a system that 

is always available and easy to use.  

•	 Capacitation and development of the 

workforce.    

•	 Recruitment and selection of talent 

management and qualified workforce and 

also to manage access control into the 

facility.

•	 Development and implementation of 

compliant fil ing and archiving systems.

4.2.3 Strategic Goal and Objectives

The unit’s strategic goal is to apply a progressive 

corporate governance practices, high strategic 

standard and operational support for the GTA.

4.2.4 Strategic Objectives

The unit’s objective is to enhance organisational 

performance through the provision of effective 

human resources management, information 

communications technology and administrative 

support.

4 . 2 . 5
K E Y  M I L E S T O N E S 
A N D  A C T I V I T I E S 
I N  T H E  P E R I O D 
U N D E R  R E V I E W 
–  H U M A N 
R E S O U R C E S 

4.2.5.1   Recruitment 

In the year under review GTA appointed a 

Chief Financial Officer with effect from the 03 

September 2012 due to retirement of previous 

incumbent.

4.2.5.2   Labour Relations 

GTA entered into arbitration with CCMA due 

to the deadlock on annual salary increase. 

The parties resolved the matter out of CCMA 

processes and settled on a 7% increase.

 

4.2.5.3   Performance Management 

Performance contracts of all employees were 

signed and implemented. Performance reviews are 

conducted by the end of each financial year.

4.2.5.4   Policy Development and 
     Implementation

The Cellphone Policy and the Subsistence and 

Travel policy were revised and submitted to the 

Board for approval.  

4.2.5.5   Skills Development 
             and Training

Employees update their individual personal 

development plans annually, and are taken into 

consideration when training programmes are 

developed and implemented. Application of the 

GTA’s Study Assistance scheme is ongoing and 

seven (7) staff members were assisted through 

this scheme during the year under review. Also 

employees’ wellness issues were all addressed.

4.2.5.6   Internship Programme

The GTA Tertiary and School Internship 

Programmes continued to develop the youth 

in promoting quality education and skills 

development as aligned to the strategic objectives 

of the GTA. 28 interns were supported during the 

period.
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4.2.5.7   Employment Equity

The GTA Employment Equity Plan is in place 

to support all recruitment that the GTA will 

undertake. The plan is reviewed constantly and 

remains relevant for five years. The employment 

equity report was submitted to the Department of 

Labour as legislated and quarterly reports were 

submitted to Statistics South Africa (Stats SA) as 

required.

The table below outlines the GTA workforce 

profile for the year under review in terms of the 

occupational levels and/or categories.

W O R K F O R C E  P R O F I L E

1.1    The total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following 

occupational levels: Note: A=Africans, C=Coloureds, I=Indians and W=Whites

Occupational 

Levels

 Male  Female  Foreign Nationals
Total

A C I      W A C I W Male Female

Top management 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

Senior management 4 0 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 6

Professionally qualified 
and experienced 
specialists and mid-
management

3 0 0 1 6 0 2 2 0 0 14

Skilled technical and aca-
demically qualified work-
ers, junior management, 
supervisors, foremen, and 
superintendents

6 0 0 0 10 0 3 0 0 0 19

Semi-skilled and discre-
tionary decision making 6 0 0 0 12 1 0 0 0 0 19

Unskilled and defined 
decision making 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 2

TOTAL  PERMANENT 19 0 0 1 32 2 5 2 0 0 61

Temporary  employees 3 0 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 6

GRAND TOTAL 23 0 1 1 34 2 5 2 0 0 67
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1.2   The total number of employees with disabilities only in each of the following occupational levels: 

Note:  A=Africans, C=Coloureds, I=Indians and W=Whites

Occupational Levels
 Male  Female  Foreign Nationals

Total

A C I W A C I W Male Female

Top management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Professionally         
qualified and experienced 
specialists and               
mid-management

0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

Skilled technical 
and academically 
qualified workers, 
junior management, 
supervisors, foremen, and 
superintendents

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary decision 
making

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Unskilled and defined 
decision making 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL PERMANENT 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

Temporary employees 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

GRAND TOTAL 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

4.2.5.8   Key Milestones and Activities
     in the period under review – 
     Information Communications 
     Technology 

By applying sound management and focused 

monitoring, a total system uptime of 99.4% was 

achieved for the year in review. This ensured a 

stable server environment for constant system 

availability. Hardware was replaced at the 

desktop environment in accordance with the 

lifecycle of assets. No major incidents were 

experienced during the year.

The ICT survey conducted during the period 

indicated that all users were satisfied with the 

support they received.  

No ICT Policy breaches were experienced during 

the period under review.

4.2.5.9   Key Milestones and 
     Activities: Administration

A successful move of staff from the 13th floor 

to the 9th floor of 124 Main St, to enable the 

Department of Economic Development occupancy, 

is a cost saving measure on future rentals.  
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A new pool vehicle was purchased to provide 

excellent service for the three entities, namely, 

GTA, Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site 

and Dinokeng projects. The unit continued to 

obtain excellence on Organisational Health and 

Safety (OHS) compliance. Furthermore, Standard 

Operating Procedure to streamline services within 

the three entities was approved during the year 

under review.

4 . 2 . 6   
S T A K E H O L D E R 
E N G A G E M E N T S 
C O R P O R A T E 
S E R V I C E S

With the support of business units, all 

performance contracts were signed and 

submitted to Human Resources. The training 

plan of all units was also signed.   Microsoft 

Licenses has been a challenge to obtain 

from the DED and this has hampered the 

implementation of the new server equipment, 

with servers running on evaluation licenses.

4.2.6.1   Key stakeholders 

•	 Department of Economical Development

•	 Users

•	 Senior Management

4.2.6.2   Best practices

Industry standards and Best Practices are 

researched and implemented as required as 

well as the compliance of Occupational Health 

and Safety (OHS) and the Employment Equity.

4.2.6.3   Way forward

Decommissioning and re-deploying of server 

platform is required in order to obtain MS 

licenses from the DED, which will render 

current platform redundant. 

4.2.6.4   Challenges and 
     Opportunities - Human 
     Resources

The vacancies created by the resignation of the 

Human Resources Manager, and the Human 

Resources Officer will have to be filled.  Also 

the merger of GTA, the COHWHS and Dinokeng, 

remains a huge challenge.

4.2.7   Challenges and Opportunities 
           – Information Communications 
           Technology (ICT)

Microsoft Licenses has been a challenge to 

obtain from the DED and this has hampered the 

implementation of the new server equipment, 

with servers running on evaluation licenses.

4.2.8   Challenges and Opportunities 
   - Administration

•	 Inadequate capacity on record management - 

additional staff needed.  

•	 The implementation of the documentation 

management system to archive agency 

records and the appointment of a service 

provider.   

•	 Budget and resources allocation to support 

the additional entities, that is, COHWHS and 

Dinokeng.     

Section 4 Report on the Performance against the Approved Plans



43

4 . 3
D E S T I N A T I O N 
M A N A G E M E N T

The purpose of the programme 
is to ensure that visitors to 
the Province receive the 
highest level of service 
excellence at every stage of 
their journey and that tourism 
employees and new entrants 
have the necessary skills to 
deliver quality experiences 
and enterprise support is 
delivered. This is achieved 
through the facilitation of 
skills development initiatives 
and training programmes 
for tourism enterprises and 
stakeholders; registration 
of tourist guides as per the 
Tourism second amendment 
act regulations and provision 
of tourism enterprise support 
(including SMMEs) through 
financial and non financial 
support.  These initiatives 
and support programmes 
are geared towards ensuring 

service excellence and quality 
products and service in the 
Province. Overall the unit 
contributes in ensuring that 
Gauteng remains a World class 
destination renowned for its 
responsible and sustainable 
tourism experiences.

4.3.1   Role of the unit in the overall 
           organization mix

•	 The unit facilitates;

•	 Necessary training that contributes to service 

excellence; 

•	 Quality products that are graded; 

•	 Professional tourism businesses and SMMEs; 

•	 Professional registered tourist guides that 

are trained and are in compliance with 

legislations.

4.3.2    Key achievements

In the period under review, the unit set to 

consolidate collaborative partnerships that would 

contribute to enhanced service delivery, service 

excellence, enterprise support and identification 

of new opportunities. Key to these partnerships 

was collaborative projects with different 

stakeholders as ff:

•	 Tourism Teachers lecture series to deepen 

the knowledge of tourism teachers/educators. 

This was a partnership with the Department 

of Basic Education and the University of 

Johannesburg, resulting in 150 teachers 

successfully participating in the series.

•	 Foreign language training for tourism 

SMMEs and youth in learning Mandarin and 

French languages so as to enhance their 

employability and SMME businesses.

•	 Provide assistance to accommodation 

establishments that are first time graders 

through funding for their grading in 

partnership with the Tourism Grading Council 

of Sothern Africa (TGCSA).

•	 Facilitate various mentorship programmes for 

SMMEs in partnership with Tourism Enterprise 

Programme (TEP).

•	 Provide information on how to start your own 

tourism business through the distribution of 

‘How to’ booklets.

•	 Successfully host a Tourism SMME seminar 

with the different tourism stakeholders for the 

provision of necessary information required 

by tourism businesses in order to enhance 

their businesses. The partners included, 

TEP, Southern African Tourism Services 

Association (SATSA), Gauteng Enterprise 

Propeller (GEP) and Reizcorp.
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•	 Continue with the registration of tourist 

guides and compliance to the tourist guides 

regulations as per legislation.

•	 Assist with the provision of market access for 

tourism businesses through platforms such 

as the Tourism Indaba, Meetings Africa and 

other relevant exhibitions and forums.

•	 Facilitate the participation of tourism 

businesses in the Emerging Tourism 

Enterprise of the Year (ETEYA) competition 

and to provide the necessary support to the 

finalists.

4.3.3    Unit Strategic Goal and   
            Objectives

•	 Facilitate skills development of stakeholders;

•	 Facilitate training of SMMEs and Youth;

Register tourist guides   

4.3.4 Key strategic objectives

•	 Skills development;

•	 Training;

•	 Registration of tourist guides;

•	 Enterprise and SMME support;

•	 Grading support.

4.3.5  Key functional work areas 

•	 Quality assurance; 

•	 Training;

•	 Skills development;

•	 SMME support.

4.3.6   Key Milestones and Activities

The Unit successfully implemented the following 

training programmes:

•	 Advance Hospitality customer care NQF 

level 4 training for 35 employees of hotels, 

restaurants and tourism attractions;

•	 Service excellence Placement programme 

training for 200 youth implemented in 

partnership with the Restaurant Association 

of South Africa (RASA);

•	 Mandarin language training for 20 youth;

•	 French language training for 43 youth;

•	 International youth placement (customer 

care) for 32 youth;

•	 Tourism Educators lecture series for 200 

teachers;

•	 Tourism Heritage Maps Route up skilling for 

20 youth tourist guides;

•	 SMME Support; 

•	 Market Access;

•	 35 SMMEs were assisted with market access 

by sponsoring them to be part of platforms 

such as the Annual Tourism Indaba in Durban 

2012 and Meetings Africa in Johannesburg.

Emerging Tourism Entrepreneur of the Year 

Awards (ETEYA): the unit assisted ETEYA 

finalists with market access, training, funding, 

promotional material, linkages to foreign 

markets and sponsorship;

•	 Star Grading – supported 42 first time 

graders Guesthouses and Bed and Breakfasts 

with funding for grading through the Tourism 

Grading Council of South Africa (TGCSA).         

A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) has 

been in place between the GTA and TGCSA 
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since 2009 to date;

•	 Conducted a successful Tourism SMMEs 

seminar, aimed at creating awareness, 

networking opportunities available, to 

enhance their businesses;

•	 37 SMMEs continuously supported through 

the Book a Guesthouse programme in 

partnership with Tsogo Sun, around tourism 

and networking;

•	 10 SMMEs supported Pre Indaba training 

•	 70 SMMEs e-Marketing.

A series of 5 “How to booklets”, were produced 

and distributed. These booklets focused on the 

following:

•	 How to start a Tourism Business

•	 How to start a Guesthouse

•	 How to start a Travel Agency

•	 How to start and Arts and Craft business

•	 How to start a Restaurant/eating house

4.3.7   Stakeholder Engagements

A number of formalized partnerships were 

concluded so as to effectively implement some 

of the programmes for SMMEs, Youth and 

other stakeholders. These included MOUs and 

partnerships with:

•	 CATHSSETA

•	 FEDHASA

•	 RASA

•	 TEP

•	 University of Johannesburg

•	 Provincial Department of Basic Education

Various partnerships with external stakeholders 

have ensured that we leverage on resources 

and collectively contribute to service delivery 

such as, training, SMME mentorship and skills 

development.

4.3.8   Key Challenges 

Key challenges remain inadequate resources that 

are not aligned to targets and also the merger 

process dynamics. 

4 . 4
D E S T I N A T I O N 
A N D  C O R P O R A T E 
C O M M U N I C A T I O N

The unit’s main purpose 
is to provide integrated 
communications services 
that aid the agency’s drive 
to position the province as a 
leading leisure and business 

tourism destination in Africa 
and beyond. We serve as a 
reliable point of contact and 
disseminator of Gauteng 
Tourism Authority information 
and services to key role players 
and partners and a valuable 
resource for both internal and 
external clients. The unit also 
serves as a reliable professional 
service provider for internal line 
departments and driver and 
communicator of organisational 
vision, strategy and plans.

4.4.1   Planned targets and  
   achievements

We have in the period under review set ourselves 

massive organisational targets that will support 

us in our drive to implement the demands of 

the Gauteng Tourism Sector Strategy. We had 

in this period planned to increase programs 

and campaigns that incorporate brand value of 

Gauteng into tourism marketing material and plans 

by developing focused key brand messaging, 

development of brand Gauteng content library 

by refreshing and expanding the image and 

video library footage, produce domestic and 

international communications campaigns, increase 
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business and leisure visitor volume, length of 

stay, visitor spending and economic impact of 

the destination through intense exposure on the 

media and via travel trade, meetings and event 

planners and other influencers.

We had also prioritized the work that raise the 

profile of tourism in the province amongst local 

residence and further implement the strategy to 

inculcate the need of respect for all visitors into 

Gauteng. 

We set 
ourselves to achieve 

heightened awareness 
and improvements in 
the consumption and 

usage of domestic 
tourism products in the 

province through the
 use of evidence based

 marketing and 
PR strategies. 

Similarly we used local events to leverage 

the media and PR opportunities associated 

with these events and expand the destination 

marketing and communications capabilities 

through the use of digital technology to engage, 

attract and retain unique visitors through the 

implementation of various digital campaigns and 

search engine optimization work.

Equally important in this area of work and very 

much a focus area in the period under review has 

been our corporate communications initiatives 

aimed at improving internal communications 

in the organisation, minimizing  the spread 

if miscommunication and empower our staff 

members to be our chief ambassadors and 

communicators.

4.4.2 Strategic goal
 

The unit strategic goal is to contribute 

significantly to destination Gauteng’s drive to be 

recognized as a global tourism competition in 

leisure and business travel.

4.4.3 Strategic objectives

•	 To increase demand for Gauteng’s visitor 

economy by marketing Gauteng locally and 

internationally.

•	 Adopt new tools and technology and cutting 

multimedia marketing to keep Gauteng front-

of-mind locally and internationally.

•	 Minimizing the spread of miscommunication

•	 Identify and provide consistent key messages 

to all stakeholders

•	 To develop a central and thought-leadership 

role for Gauteng Tourism in the value-

chains of strategic tourism promotion for our 

identified public & private sector stakeholders 

4.4.4 Key functional work areas 

In executing the above work and strategic 

objectives, we divided our work into the following 

functional work areas for focused implementation 

and execution.

4.4.5 E-Marketing

The sub-unit is responsible for all digital 

channels and drives our web management and 

search engine optimization work. It is responsible 

for the implementation of the digital strategy 

and tactics including the social media usage 

promotion plan.

4.4.6 Media and Public Relations

The sub-unit although not yet fully operational 

but the work is centred on media campaigns and 

familiarization, media engagement and relations 

and media strategies and public relations. The 

sub-unit is also responsible for media buying and 

advertising, which form key parts of our media 

relations strategy.
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In the period under review, the head of the unit 

was acting as the media relations capacity and 

we hope to fill this position in the near future to 

continue leveraging the media to promote our 

work and further communicate our advances and 

opportunities for travellers into our city region.

4.4.7   Internal & corporate 
  communications

The sub unit is responsible for the development 

and management of all internal Communications 

tools, programs and the implementation of the 

internal Communications strategies and plans.  

Amongst the key tools the unit is producing and 

managing is the organisational Annual Report, 

internal newsletters, suggestion boxes and notice 

boards.

Also under the unit care is corporate branding 

and production in line with our brand strategy 

and drive to have internal staff as our key brand 

ambassadors.

4 . 4 . 8
K E Y  M I L E S T O N E S 
A N D  A C T I V I T I E S 
I N  T H E  P E R I O D 
U N D E R  R E V I E W

4.4.8.1   Strategic Communications     
             Support

In the period under review the unit focused 

on communications support in the form of 

communications strategy development for key 

campaigns, programs and activations. It also 

ensured that these strategies contain concrete 

media relations plans that seek to leverage these 

platforms for the benefit of the agency.  In the 

first quarter of the financial year our main focus 

was our participation at the annual Gauteng’s 

Rand Easter Show, ITB Berlin, and EMMIT in 

Turkey and the Tourism Indaba in Durban.

4.4.8.2   Domestic tourism 

Domestic tourism remains a key pillar of our 

tourism sector growth strategies and  work 

in the period under review at the Rand Show 

focused largely in mobilizing the local market 

behind programmes. The GeePee domestic 

mobilization program was promoted at the show 

with a special focus on the main flagship project 

products namely the Dinokeng Game Reserve, 

the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site and 

the Constitution Hill. 

Working together with the Gauteng Department 

of Economic Development (DED), the unit 

spearheaded the agencies work and focus at 

the popular Easter family spectacle in Gauteng. 

Our main focus was the promotion of the show 

through our channels and integrating it into our 

destination Easter family activities offerings. 

We used the platform to speak to over 300 000 

people that converged on the Reef over the two 

weeks period. We activated our AmaGeePee 

registration drive campaign with targeted 

promotions using dedicated promoters and Jozi 

FM.  We branded the popular animal Kingdom 

with our Cradle and Dinokeng focus and 

registered over 2100 new GeePee members.

4.4.8.4   ITB Berlin

The unit participated in the 2012 International 

Tourism Bourse (ITB) and used the exhibition to 

build and maintain working relations with key 

media channels and international travel media. 

The major focus was to tap into existing and 

new relations build by South African Tourism 

(SAT) and leverage their proximity to the said 

agencies and media houses. We established 
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key links with SAT regional media and renowned 

leading players in the digital app space, aimed at 

assisting our digital media strategy activation.

Also in Berlin, we rolled out a media promotional 

campaign for our activation of the sediba fossils 

donation to the Berlin Museum. The media 

campaign included intensive drive on social 

media and radio interviews for our MEC during 

our stay in Berlin and post the event.  The 

activation was covered by among others SABC 

radio in the form of Metsweding FM, SAFM and 

Radio 2000. The MEC also did an hour long 

post Berlin SAFM interview that got extensive 

reach and interaction with listeners. Berlin SAFM 

interview that got extensive reach and interaction 

with listeners.

4.4.8.5   Tourism Indaba 2012

This was undoubtedly the highlight of our 1st 

quarter activities. The unit developed the Indaba 

2012 media penetration and activation plan, 

as part of the overall Indaba Communications 

strategy. The main focus was to sell Gauteng’s 

history, cultural and heritage attractions as part 

of the national call to promote our historical 

attractions. Work done included the finalization 

of the culture and history page on the website 

in time for the Indaba focus, pre-Indaba media 

relations work on CNBC Africa and SABC 2’s 

Morning Live, Metsweding FM, YFM, Tourism 

Update and the Gateway publications.

During Indaba, the focus was on promoting 

Gauteng’s main participants in the Indaba media 

channels and formalize relations with some 

of the media in attendance. Interviews were 

conducted aimed at highlighting our participation 

at the Tourism Indaba and our attractions on 

Radio 2000 and Ukhozi FM. The shows internal 

publication “Indaba Dailies” was used  to 

maximize distribution to participants to highlight 

the GTA activities organized at the exhibition and 

received appropriate coverage, including the last 

minute inclusion of our bereavement in relation 

to our deceased board member. Our Friday Joy 

of Jazz promotion event attracted over 12 media 

representatives and received extensive coverage 

on Soweto live website, media 24 and The Times.

The highlight of the work at Indaba was the 

attention and drive generated to the GTA Stand 

through well planned activities like the Dinokeng 

Game Reserve trade and media promotion event, 

the Cradle of Humankind play and the support 

given to the promotion of SO-WE-TO lifestyle 

promotion. Receipt of the platinum award for 

best Destination Marketing Stand at the Indaba 

2012 was a just reward for all these efforts.

4.4.8.6   E-Marketing

Amongst the main responsibilities for this 

area of work has been the drive to expand the 

organisation’s destination marketing capabilities 

through the use of digital technology to engage, 

attract and retain unique visitors. We focused 

in the period under review, creating a strong 

foundation for our digital strategy work and 

promoted regional integration. We implemented 

digital campaigns with special focus on 

Sediba Berlin and China showcase and the 

Spring to Summer Campaign. We successfully 

created a dedicated GeePee web page and 

managed to surpass our annual target of 180 
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000 unique visitors to our website by attracting 

more than 320 000. In recognition of the power 

and strategic positioning of mobile and digital 

communication in the entire integrated and 

marketing communications mix, Gauteng tourism’s 

work in this area focused on improving our social 

media channels to serve as instant points of 

communication. 

We again exceeded our annual target of having 

7000 followers on our combined social media 

platforms. In the period under review we 

recorded over 13500 followers with the number 

increasing every single day.

One of the highlights of our E-Marketing work 

in the year under review was the launch of our 

Gauteng Travel Guide APP. The Gauteng Travel 

Guide is fully produced by the Gauteng Tourism 

Authority and Tourism Radio®, and encourages 

all travellers, domestic or international, to 

explore the province. Travellers go where they 

like and the guide goes with them, drawing their 

attention to attractions, venues and activities, no 

matter where they are.

A travel companion for exploring Gauteng, 

the Gauteng Travel Guide consists of detailed 

travel information of more than 350 Points of 

Interest (POIs) across all Gauteng’s regions. This 

includes approximately an hour of audio content 

on some of the province’s most popular tourist 

attractions. Get inspired by the many museums, 

nature reserves, art galleries and cultures of 

Johannesburg, Pretoria and surrounds. Discover 

some of the best shops, restaurants, adventure 

and leisure activities; as well as a comprehensive 

list of entertainment, accommodation and 

conference venues. A number of attractions have 

also been included to surprise and delight even 

the well-travelled residents of Gauteng.

Shortly after its launch in the last quarter of the 

year under review, the Gauteng Travel Guide 

has outperformed the mobile app download 

distribution for iPhones, at 71.43%, compared to 

the benchmark of 0.37%. Even though the app 

has reached downloads in over 40 countries, 

data shows that it is the domestic market that is 

overwhelmingly interested in the Gauteng Travel 

Guide with 83% downloads recorded in South 

Africa. This underlines Gauteng Tourism’s focus 

on the domestic market in the wake of the global 

economic crisis. 

The APP also features attractions that are part of 

our popular ‘I’m a GeePee’ discount programme. 

Users of the Gauteng Travel Guide will find 

convenient pointers to and information on the 

attractions featuring GeePee specials.

4.4.8.7     Maintaining top of mind brand 
       presence and enhancing GTA’s 
       reputation though heightened 
       Media & Communications

To maintain consistent ranking and presence 

in mainstream platforms that promote our 

destination, a considerable amount of resources 

needed to be dedicated to strategic media 

buying, placement and partnerships. To this 

effect, the unit in the period under review forged 

strategic partnerships with a number of media 

houses to promote our GeePee loyalty reward 

program. We partnered with SABC 1 and flighted 

targeted promo’s using their actuality programs 

to penetrate the youth market. The GeePee 

promo’s were flighted as opening billboards on 

Selimathunzi, Seskhona, Mzansi Insider and the 

musical program, LIVE. Combined, these shows 

have a viewership base of more than 6millions 

viewership weekly. This enabled us to have a 

focused promotional presence for a period of 

3 weeks in the national broadcasting platform, 

thus exposing the GeePee brand to more than 

18million viewers.

Travel APP
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Consistent with the vision to maintain top of 

mind brand presence, we partnered with City 

Film International to produce broadcast content 

that was placed in major international hotels and 

airlines. We further used the material as part 

of our on-going marketing and promotion work 

at Meetings Africa 2013, and as overlays in the 

Travel channel production in Gauteng recently.

In the period under review we placed promotional 

billboards in the main busy roads from both 

the OR Tambo and Lanseria Airports.  We also 

took up space at the Hatfield and Sandton 

Gautrain station, thus expanding the brand to 

high catchment areas. We distributed during the 

festive season period, over 140 000 information 

booklets about our GeePee specials through 

the toll reach network. We used all the toll gates 

around Gauteng and interacted with travellers 

coming back from their festive season holidays 

to continue interacting with Gauteng products 

through the GeePee programme specials.

4.4.8.8     2012 spring to Summer 
      Domestic Tourism Promotion 
      Communications Campaign

Following the successful implementation of the 

tourism month 2012 programmes, the province 

continued with its promotional drive to position 

Gauteng as a must visit leisure destination of 

choice. We anchored the promotional drive around 

our main leisure offerings in the form of the 

Dinokeng Game Reserve, the Cradle of Humankind 

World Heritage Site experience, Soweto 

experience - with special focus on the Soweto 

Derby, and further provided corporate Gauteng 

with an opportunity to explore our many leisure 

offerings as part of our festive season specials to 

cater for their year-end parties and functions.

The Spring to Summer Campaign, primarily, 

helped us to deliver the following key messages 

to the public, media and travel trade:          

•	 Gauteng offers premier nature experiences: 

“Africa in one day”;

•	 Stakeholders, industry and local communities 

can benefit by supporting the Gauteng 

tourism industry by supporting and marketing 

its attractions; and

•	 Tourism industry should adapt its ‘product 

and services’ to become more sustainable;

•	 Become a GeePee and score in great 

specials and discounts;

•	 Become a tourist in your own backyard, 

explore GeePee;

•	 Gauteng is super hot this summer with 

fashion and music, join in.

Under the theme “Come to life in Gauteng” the 

campaign employed creative ways of following 

up on the progress recorded after tourism month 

activities. It utilized multi-media platforms and 

kept us relevant throughout the summer period 

until the end of the financial year. We hosted 

media FAM trip to Dinokeng Game Reserve, 

promoted the campaign on various radio and 

television stations.

The highlight of the campaign was the securing 

of a television interview opportunity on Thursday 

Night Live with Marawa and Morning Live to 

Section 4 Report on the Performance against the Approved Plans



51

promote the SANSUI Summer Cup horse racing 

event that took place during the same period.

4.4.9   Stakeholder Engagements

It has always been emphasised that tourism 

is industry led and government supported. 

Consistent with this philosophy the unit has 

engaged various stakeholders in the execution 

of plans during the period under review. 

The following table represents some of 

the activities and engagement with key 

stakeholders:

Name of Stakeholder Report on interaction/ collaboration

Media stakeholders

SABC television and Radio

Partnership opportunities for GeePee program promotion. Promotion 

and coverage of tourism Gauteng main activities like the hop on hop off 

bus, Indaba activations, SANSUI Summer Cup, Tourism month, Spring to 

Summer Campaign.

DStv (Multichoice)
Secure opportunities to promote destination Gauteng through travel 

channel platform. Use the sports platform to promote the Soweto derby.

Avusa
Conducted discussions and exploring collaborative opportunities for the 

GeePee programme.

TNA & New Age
Exploring partnership opportunities for Dinokeng through the use of TNA 

breakfast platform.

Events Owners and Partners

Joy of Jazz
Coordinated media coverage and media hospitality hosting with South 

African Tourism.

SANSUI Summer Cup 

Participated in weekly planning meetings and ensuring proper leverage of 

the provincial government investment, coordination of media partnerships 

and coverage showcasing tourism spin offs.

Government bodies and                                  

departments

Office of the Premier 

Communications

Worked together on brand Gauteng promotion platforms like the AFCON 

launch events, Metro fm awards GeePee and Brand Gauteng promotion, 

AFCON Gauteng promotions and securing space on government 

communication mediums like Gauteng news.

South African Tourism Media 

& Communications

Alignment of activities and programs

Co-hosting of media FAMS

Content sharing and collaboration with ‘Vaya Mzansi’ programme
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In executing the programme, we managed 

to secure a long term relationship and 

understanding of each other’s programmes. 

This has benefited GTA marketing efforts, in a 

sense that, we have managed to tap into other 

role-players resources for the advancement of 

Gauteng standing as a business, leisure, trade 

and investment destination. We managed to 

utilize platforms like the Joy of Jazz and Sansui 

Summer Cup to leverage media coverage 

for Gauteng Tourism. We also managed to 

open avenues in the sports and events space 

and through the collaboration, the value and 

contribution of Gauteng Tourism in supporting 

these events, was appreciated. Moving forward, 

it is important to prioritize this area of work 

and allocate the necessary resources including 

budget and personnel.

4.4.10   Challenges and Opportunities

The biggest challenge faced by the unit in 

the period under review, has been the severe 

shortage of staff and budget allocation. We 

have more than 70% vacancy rate and hope 

the current merger processes, will assist us to 

resource the unit accordingly. The relationship 

with SAT Communications section and the Office 

of the Gauteng Premier Communications section 

allows us to leverage their resources and access 

to the media. Moving forward this will be one of 

the main focus areas of the unit.

Constant communication and liaison with our 

parliamentary committees and coordination 

with Metro’s and regional tourism bodies 

will be another focus area guided by our 

intergovernmental relations protocols and 

institutional framework. 

 Community 
media remains one of 

the most ef fective ways of 
communicating with the 

public. We wil l  str ive in the 
new financial year to 

support this medium and 
empower them 

with information to 
disseminate to our 

communities. 

The need for our communities to understand 

and appreciate the value of tourism cannot 

be over emphasised. Corporate and internal 

Communications, with special focus on staff 

programs and merger communications will 

be another key priority work area in the new 

financial year. It is envisaged that the necessary 

resources will be mobilized to execute the 

plan and remain on target with the vision of 

turning our staff members into our true brand 

ambassadors.

With the authority now launching the new tourism 

routes, our travel app making inroads in the 

digital market and the collaboration with the City 

Sightseeing, the owners of Joburg’s new super 

hot red Hop-on Hop-off Bus is moving to greater 

heights.  This presents us with an opportunity to 

put our communication machinery into overdrive. 

4 . 5   
R E G I O N A L 
T O U R I S M

The purpose of this programme 
is to facilitate regional tourism 
development and responsible 
tourism planning initiatives 
among key role players (e.g. 
municipalities, communities, 
private sector); provide 
leadership; and facilitate 
ef fective inter-governmental 
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a world class destination renowned for its quality 

tourism experiences and also ensures that 

the provincial Government, the tourism sector 

and communities, work together for mutual 

benefit and growth of responsible tourism in the 

province.

4.5.4 Key functional work areas 

Regional Tourism focuses on the Promotion 

of  Intergovernmental Relations on Tourism; as 

well as the Implementation of  the Institutional 

Framework, which is a key driver in the alignment 

of horizontal and vertical tourism structures and 

services, ultimately leading to  the alignment of 

Tourism Plans (Integrated Development Plan’s 

(IDP’s) and Private Sector Initiatives).

 

The unit is also engaged in advocating for 

Community Beneficiation Projects as well as 

enhancing and promoting Domestic Tourism 

by supporting GTA’s product development, 

marketing and events. 

 

4 . 5 . 5
K E Y  M I L E S T O N E S 
A N D  A C T I V I T I E S 
I N  T H E  P E R I O D 
U N D E R  R E V I E W

4.5.5.1   Establishment of Regional 
        Structures

As a means of ensuring that tourism is well 

structured in the regions, the unit played a 

crucial role in launching the Westrand Regional 

Tourism Organisation as well as the Gauteng 

Tour Operator Association (GATOA) chapters in 

the Westrand, Ekurhuleni and in Sedibeng. This 

will not only assist the aggressive marketing of 

Gauteng and its unique tourism attractions to 

boost the economy, but is also aligned to the 

Provincial and National Strategy in ensuring 

incorporation of Integrated Development Plans 

(IDP’s).   The establishment of GATOA chapters 

will again enable SMME’s across Gauteng to be 

marketed collectively.

4.5.5.2   Revival of N12 Cross Border 
       Treasure Route

The unit assisted with the revival of the N12 

Treasure Route, through constant participation 

and support which resulted in the appointment 

of the committee as well as a Chief Executive 

Officer. The N12 is earmarked as an alternative 

route of N1 to Cape Town. It boasts heritage, 

leisure and accommodation establishments.

4.5.5.3   Establishment of Strategic 
       Partnerships

relations and industry 
partnerships to ensure Industry 
cohesion, synergy and the 
leveraging of potential third party 
resources. 

4.5.1 Strategic Role

To build strong relations with municipalities 

as well as support and enhance their capacity 

to promote and develop tourism. The unit is 

also responsible for ensuring better tourism 

coordination, integration of plans with 

municipalities and industry alignment for mutual 

benefit and to ensure the growth of responsible 

and sustainable tourism in Gauteng.   

4.5.2 Key Strategic objectives

•	 Visitors receive the highest level of service 

excellence at every stage of their journey.

•	 Promotion of a “joint government” approach 

to ensure better tourism coordination and 

integrated plans. 

•	 The value of tourism at local government 

level is promoted to ensure local government 

support & community inclusiveness.

4.5.3 Strategic Goals

The goal of the unit is to ensure that Gauteng is 
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Strategic partnerships were forged with various 

stakeholders whereby resources were leveraged 

and fully utilized. The launch of the Vaal 

Birding Route developed to boost tourism in 

Sedibeng and to enable tourism stakeholders 

in the region to access the lucrative Avi-tourism 

market; the support given to tourism SMMEs in 

Tshwane and Ekurhuleni through the Tourism 

Enterprise Programme (TEP) which provided 

skills development training programmes, 

market access opportunities and co-funding 

interventions are few examples.  

Tourism graduates also received much needed 

training through the National Department of 

Tourism partnership that is aimed at harnessing 

a pool of previously disadvantaged individuals’ 

talents, to transform and grow the industry. 

4.5.5.4   Tourism Awards 2012 
     (Tshwane and Westrand)

The unit supported both Tshwane Metro and 

Westrand District Municipality in hosting Tourism 

Awards in their respective regions. The Awards 

were aimed at promoting service excellence 

in the industry to encourage repeat visits and 

extended length of stay.

4.5.5.5   Alignment of Integrated 
    Development Plans(IDP’s) 
             on Tourism Infrastructure 
     projects

Unit’s supported the facilitation of the Regional 

IDP Forums to the alignment of infrastructural 

projects.

4.5.5.6   Promotion of Intergovernmental 
    Relations (technical and political)

The unit participated at various 

intergovernmental relations forums across the 

province to ensure that National, Provincial and 

Local Governments work in a collaborative, 

integrated and coordinated manner. 

4.5.5.7   Development of Stakeholder  
              Engagement Matrix

Regional Tourism is constantly in contact with 

various internal and external stakeholders. 

These stakeholders influence and impact on the 

units operations and overall perception of the 

organisation externally. A Stakeholder Matrix 

was thus developed in order to assist the unit in 

managing its stakeholders effectively so as to 

enhance delivery on the unit’s core mandate.

4.5.5.8   Complete Institutional 
             Framework Review

Institutional framework reviewed and is now 

ready for implementation.

4 . 5 . 6
K E Y  A C H I E V E M E N T S

4.5.6.1   MOU with National 
       Department of Tourism for 
     apprentice

A partnership was entered into with NDT, with 

the aim of providing young South Africans an 

opportunity to gain exposure in the tourism 

industry through placement in the different sub-

sectors of the industry, to improve their chances 
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of securing permanent employment and usher 

their careers in tourism industry.

4.5.6.2   Promotion of regional 
      activities on CNBC Africa
     (Vaal Wine Route) 

As part of promoting domestic tourism, the Vaal 

Wine Route was showcased on CNBC Africa, to 

expose the region’s offering to a wider targeted 

audience.

4.5.6.3   Closer cooperation with local 
     government and stakeholders 
     in the regions.

Joint activities such as the Vaal Birding Route, 

Westrand Regional Tourism Organisation 

amongst others, were hosted successfully 

between regions and the GTA to leverage on 

shared resources.

4.5.6.4   Tshwane Technical Inter  
      Governmental Review 
     (IGR) Workshop

The Unit participated at the Tshwane IGR 

workshop which aimed at identifying initiatives 

that could be included in a Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) between the City of 

Tshwane and the GTA. Recommendations were 

made that partnership agreements be entered 

into to support various projects, such as, 

Integrated Marketing Plan, Alignment of Tshwane 

Master Plan to Gauteng Tourism Sector Strategy, 

Maintenance of stakeholder’s database, etc.

4.5.6.5   N12 Treasure Route  
     Committee Election

Constant support and participation led to the 

establishment of N12 Treasure Route Committee 

and the appointment of a Chief Executive Office 

(CEO) with the intention of signing a Cross 

Border Marketing MOU.

4.5.6.6   SMME Tourism Awareness 
      Workshop with Tourism 
      Enterprise Partnership (TEP)

Gauteng SMME’s were empowered through 

various skills development interventions jointly 

hosted with TEP.

4.5.6.7   Premier’s Economic Roadshows

The unit participated at several Economic 

Opportunities Roadshows in the province where 

awareness on tourism opportunities and offerings 

was created.

4.5.6.8   Launch of Vaal Birding Route

As part of promoting domestic tourism, the Vaal 

Birding Route was launched in collaboration 

with Sedibeng District Municipality. These were 

aimed at creating a niche market for the region to 

increase its spend and volume.

4.5.6.9   Supported the Coordination 
        of Local Government Tourism 
     Conference 

The unit ensured that all Gauteng Municipalities 

and N12 Treasure Route Members participate at 

the conference including GTA Business Unit.

4.5.7   Impact of achievement on 
          overall organizational 
          performance

The unit improved its working relations with 

stakeholders by working closely and supporting 

the regions on various projects and thereby 
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enhanced the organisation’s mandate.  It also 

promoted Tourism Intergovernmental Relations 

and Alignment of programs. Community 

awareness and opportunities were also created 

and Cross Border Tourism Dialogue was revived.

4.5.8   Stakeholder engagements

Central to the unit’s operations are stakeholders 

such as local product owners, municipalities and 

communities amongst others. Collaborations with 

them resulted in greater stakeholder participation 

and successful implementation of joint campaigns 

such as the launch of Westrand Regional Tourism 

Organisation, TEP Partnership, etc.

Stakeholder engagements would be strengthened 

once the reviewed institutional framework is 

approved and implemented. We look forward to 

the Legal framework and guidelines to formalize 

these structures for closer cooperation. 

4.5.9  Challenges and Opportunities

The unit operated on a limited budget and this 

impacted on the ability of programme execution.  

Mobilization of private/public sector funding was 

crucial for the implementation of some of the 

programmes. 

The greatest opportunity for the unit is the 

continuous use of IGR forums as a platform for 

IDP alignment and also use of Tourism Awards, 

as a way of improving service excellence and 

strengthening existing partnerships.

Regional Tourism budget was R8 880 000 for the 

year under review and R8 669 737 was spent - a 

variance of -3%.

4.5.10   Forthcoming activities

September Tourism Month activities

Support will be given to the regions in promoting 

their tourism month activities.

Continue with Stakeholder engagements

Closer relations with stakeholders and new 

partnerships will be established to leverage 

resources.

Implementation of the Institutional Framework 

The institutional framework will be rolled out in 

all the regions.

Provincial and Regional Awards and the 

Provincial Tourism Summit

Regional awards with our metros and 

municipalities will be co-hosted and the  

Tourism Summit will be supported.

N3 Gateway Route

To participate at the N3 gateway route as part of 

promoting domestic tourism.

Apprenticeship Program

Apprenticeship opportunities for tourism 

graduates will be continued with.

Westrand Birding Route

The launch of the Westrand Birding Route will be 

facilitated.

Implementation of the VISS for membership 

accreditation

Continue sourcing membership accreditation to 

make VISS viable and self sustaining.

Support to RTO and LTO’s

Continuous support to RTO’s and LTO’s with the 

aim of launching more projects.
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4 . 6   
R E S P O N S I B L E 
T O U R I S M 

The purpose of this 
programme is to enhance 
Tourism Management and 
protection services through 
promoting, influencing, and 
enhancing responsible tourism 
practices for both demand 
and supply.

4.6.1 Role

The unit was designed to set up a contextual 

strategic and framework approach for regulating 

responsible tourism practices thereby 

inculcating a culture of inclusive responsible 

tourism business sustainability, responding 

amongst others, primary promotion of the 

triple bottom line approach i.e. socio-cultural 

(human trafficking, living cultures, community 

beneficiation, etc.); socio-economic (including 

business profitability, decent work / jobs, etc.) 

and environmental sustainability (including 

climate change, efficient resource usage, 

mitigation mechanisms, minimal impact, etc.).

4.6.2 Goal

To ensure the provincial government, tourism 

sector and communities, work together, to make 

possible responsible tourism growth in the 

province.

4.6.3 Key Strategic objectives

A responsible and sustainable tourism industry 

is developed, promoted and implemented 

within the province. To ensure that Responsible 

Tourism Framework and Strategy promotes the 

triple bottom line approach, inclusion of socio-

cultural, socio-economic and environmental 

sustainability pillars is being developed and 

support interventions are initiated for the benefit 

of the tourism industry.

4 . 6 . 4
K E Y  M I L E S T O N E S

4.6.4.1   Regional impact analysis

A series of initiatives geared towards obtaining 

a dashboard agenda of Responsible Tourism 

within regions was conducted inclusively 

with the regional stakeholders. Key findings 

showed different levels of understanding of the 

concepts. This means our interventions going 

forward should focus on developing shared 

understandings.

4.6.4.2   Regional Tourism Stakeholder 
     engagement sessions 

A series of regional stakeholder engagement 

sessions was conducted with the sole purpose 

of obtaining an appetite measurement for 

responsible tourism framework and strategy 

development.  This turned out to be quite 

positive and made good business sense to the 

industry, whilst holistically, taking care of the 

environment and socio community beneficiation 

matters.
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4.6.4.3   Developed key draft framework 
     on Responsible Tourism

The developed framework for responsible tourism 

laid down a stronger foundation for behavioural 

change patterns by the industry. Intended 

programmes would address advocacy, awareness 

issues relating to principles and values, to further 

enhance inclusive responsible tourism culture. 

Various inputs were obtained including, elevation 

of climate mitigation promotion and resource 

efficiency mechanisms. These would either be 

achieved directly or indirectly through leveraging 

of resources and partnerships.

4.6.5 Stakeholder engagements

Regional Stakeholder inputs were used to solicit 

shape and form of the strategy document. 

This process will remain ongoing until the next 

financial year when the implementation plan will 

be finalised.

The unit participated at the Universal Access 

in Tourism platform, where various inputs were 

made in shaping the Responsible Tourism 

Access agenda for the industry. This platform 

intended to raise awareness of industry players 

to acknowledge the existence of some tourists’ 

living with disabilities.  In partnership with the 

private sectors, plans are afoot to launch an 

awareness campaign (‘pushing the boundaries’) 

to promote the Universal Access in Tourism. 

For example, the campaign will showcase a 

physically challenged individual in a wheel 

chair, who wants to walk from Ekurhuleni Metro 

to Durban, in an effort of creating a tourism 

route.

4.6.6 Challenges and opportunities

Responsible tourism is still a new concept 

which involves a lot of behavioural and cultural 

change patterns. It has diverse meaning to 

number of stakeholders.  For example, it must 

make business sense to communities; it must 

address and promote community beneficiation 

matters. The implementation plan to a greater 

extent would focus on advocacy, skills 

development and awareness initiatives. New 

opportunities would be identified to promote 

the inclusive Green Tourism economy agenda. 

Leveraging through partnerships, support and 

awareness campaign to transform the existing 

tourism business cultural practices.  

Inclusive 
Responsible Tourism

 agenda to be advanced 
through the implementation

 plan in the next f inancial 
year. Lastly, responsible 

tourism af fords the 
opportunity to grow the 

economy through the 
inclusive green 

economy 
agenda. 
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S T R A T E G Y 

The purpose of the programme is 
one of the earliest success stories 
in regard to a total integration 
of functions among the three 
merged entities, namely, the 
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4.7.3   Monitoring & Evaluation 
           (M&E) and Legal Services 

Working in tandem with the reporting team, the 

M&E section analyses compliance reporting 

and evaluates the impact of the organisation’s 

interventions. It inter alia, shoulders the 

responsibility to flag critical performance issues 

of concern through the regular analytical reports 

that are designed to assist the organisational 

leadership to keep the finger firmly on the pulse 

of organisational performance. The unit further 

conducted the following:

•	 Provided legal support on drafting of 

contracts; gave elementary legal advice and 

determined the need to seek an in-depth 

legal counsel.

•	 Developed the Internal Monitoring & 

Evaluation Framework and approved by 

GTA Board and the CEO to enhance internal 

processes. This document covered the 

COHWHS and Dinokeng Projects, in light of 

the forthcoming merger of the entities.

•	 Conducted a thorough analysis of the 

quarterly performance reports. This was 

utilised by senior management to focus on 

non-performance areas.

•	 Assisted business units to collate and 

maintain Portfolios of Evidence (POE) to 

demonstrate plausible proof in support of 

performance reported during the period to 

ensure efficiency.

•	 Ensured compliance and accountability by 

collating and facilitating the submission 

of reports to the DED through the M&E 

Information Systems.

4.7.4   Equity Assurance

This sub-unit served as the focal point for 

issues related to sector transformation, and also 

participates in the national tourism activities 

that coordinate the advancement of the 

transformation agenda. It functions as a liaison 

with relevant internal and external interested 

parties on matters of transformation and also 

reports on GEYODI (Gender, Youth and People 

with Disabilities) matters and SMME Payment 

Barometers. It also coordinates the rollout of 

the Gauteng Tourism Sector Strategy (GTSS). 

This sub-unit deals with plethora of strategic and 

operational organisational support.

4.7.5   Unit Strategic Goal and Objectives

The unit contributes to the attainment of the 

following organisational Strategic Goals:

Gauteng Tourism Authority (GTA), 
Cradle of Humankind World 
Heritage Sites (COHWHS) and 
Dinokeng Projects. 

The unit executes its mandate through the 

following four sub-units:

4.7.1   Planning & Reporting 

This sub-unit facilitates organisation-wide 

strategic planning and the developments of 

Strategic Plans and Annual Performance Plans. 

It also facilitates the broader sector strategy 

development and participates in the formulation 

of tactical plans that supports the over-arching 

sector strategy. In addition to the planning role, 

the unit also ensures the effective adherence to 

compliance reporting.

4.7.2   Research 

The sub-unit coordinates and executes work 

related to providing sector insights in order to 

foster the culture of evidence-based planning 

to enable the organisation and other external 

stakeholders to deploy limited resources most 

prudently in responding to sector needs and 

realities.
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Goal 1:  Gauteng is a world class  

  destination 

  renowned for its quality tourism     

  experiences.

Goal 2:  Gauteng is recognised as a global 

  tourism competitor for leisure and 

  business travel.

Goal 3:  Tourism is a major contributor to  

  job creation and economic growth 

  in Gauteng. 

Goal 4:  Government, the tourism sector 

  and communities work together 

  for mutual benefit and to ensure 

  the growth of responsible tourism 

  in Gauteng.

4.7.6   Key strategic objectives

•	 Sector intelligence is used to ensure that the 

needs of visitors drive new, innovative and 

sustainable tourism practices

•	 The sector is committed to monitoring visitor 

satisfaction and perceptions of quality 

experiences

•	 A reliable and up-to-date database of all 

tourism products in Gauteng

•	 Attract visitors by implementing evidence 

based marketing strategies

•	 Identify opportunities to attract and increase 

new investment and infrastructure in the 

tourism sector

•	 Ensure a 100% alignment of strategic plans   

and budgets

•	 Ensure a 100% reporting and accountability 

compliance

Against the backdrop, the key functional areas 

are concentrated on producing a series of 

research reports which are disseminated internally 

and through sector intelligence sessions are 

also shared with the broader Gauteng tourism 

stakeholder community. The unit is responsible 

to ensure the organisation and its stakeholders 

have a firm grasp of wide range of tourism 

businesses through vibrant and updated product 

database. The unit also coordinates and drives 

transversal planning support and ensures requisite 

accountability of State resources through the Audit 

Committee, the Board and ultimately the Auditor-

General.

4.7.7   Key Milestones and Activities in 
  the period under review

The period under review proved to be immensely 

challenging within the context of the operational 

merger between the GTA, the COH WHS and 

Dinokeng Projects. As a result, the workload 

in terms of strategic planning and budgeting 

suddenly increased to factor the plans and 

reports for all the three separate entities. Despite 

the challenges, the unit managed to develop 

and communicate new policies, processes 

and procedures for the 2012/13 planning and 

reporting cycle. This included the development 

and approval of a framework for Managing 

Performance Information, a Framework for the 

Collation of Portfolios of Evidence for Programme 

Performance Information and a Strategic 

Planning Budgeting and Reporting Framework for 

all three entities. 

Based on the above frameworks, reporting 

and planning templates, schedules and review 

tools were also developed and communicated 

to all staff. This included monthly and quarterly 

performance reporting workbooks, quarterly 

reviews and two strategic reviews to develop the 

2013/14 annual performance plans. By the end of 

the financial year, 10 monthly and four quarterly 

reports submitted by all units was developed.  

Also, three quarterly reviews were held to review 

the work of all three entities. The two strategic 

review processes also enabled the development 

of an integrated Strategic Plan for the remaining 

period of the 2009 – 2014 Medium Term Strategic 

Framework. The following were also achieved:

•	 Contribution to the development of the 

Business Case for the merger of GTA, 

COH and Dinokeng Projects as well as the 

production of a comprehensive Gauteng 

Tourism Product database. The database 
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would be updated as and when changes 

occur in the industry.

•	 A user needs analysis study undertaken to 

understand requirements from both internal 

and external stakeholders. The study will 

not only be used to update the Strategic 

Research Plan but would provide institutional 

memory on the status of tourism research 

within the province. 

•	 Research Partnership Agreements signed 

with two tertiary institutions, Tshwane 

University of Technology (TUT) and University 

of Johannesburg (UJ). As a result, the 2012 

Standard Bank Joy of Jazz research was 

conducted in partnership with TUT. The 

economic analysis of the event was also 

reported in the last quarter. 

•	 Sector intelligence information sharing 

sessions was held with 201 stakeholders 

throughout the Province. Research data and 

intelligence was also shared in these forums.  

Industry stakeholders provided feedback of 

the engagements by rating the content of the 

sessions at 78% for its relevance and good 

quality. 

•	 A pilot study was commissioned to gauge the 

satisfaction levels of visitors and the tracking 

of other trends on visitors. Smart boxes 

were placed in 30 major attractions around 

Gauteng. First report of the process would be 

generated in 2013/2014. Scope of work to be 

increased to wider coverage in 2013/14.

•	 COHWHS and Dinokeng Projects’ Research 

and Planning Programme was responsible for 

the monitoring and evaluation of the impacts 

of the development of the destination. 

Critical aspects of work of the Tourism 

and Investment Monitoring and Evaluation 

sub-programme was carried forward in the 

new setup, including conducting strategic 

research informed by marketing, investment 

and brand management strategy and other 

tourism development.

•	 Commissioned research of the economic 

value of heritage, paleo-tourism and 

conservation goods and services, update of 

the Gross Domestic Product and job creation 

figures for the COH & WHS was conducted 

for two purposes.  

•	
 to evaluate 

use and non-use 
benefits of heritage 

and conservation; and
•	

 to review the 
value of paleo-tourism

 in South Africa, 
particularly in 
the COHWHS.

•	 Research was also conducted to further 

update the economic impact model 

developed for COH WHS and the contribution 

of the tourism industry to the local economy, 

specifically GDPR (Gross Domestic Product 

by Region), job creation as well as providing 

projections for 2012 to 2015. The study 

revealed that up to 148, 525 tourists visited 

the COH WHS and the estimation was 149 

549 tourists for the period under review. 

•	 Thorough analysis of the quarterly 

performance reports through the year was 

conducted on quarterly basis.  Senior 

Managers use the reports to focus on areas 

of non-performance.

•	 A contract register was implemented to 

manage the contractual issues of the 

organization. The process of vetting and 

drafting of contracts was also successfully 

implemented.

•	 Legal support was provided to all 

business units including contractual and 

administrative/regulatory law, legislative 

interpretation, general legal interpretation, 

perusal and input to project approval 

reports. Legal support was also extended to 

Maropeng Africa Leisure (MAL), GTA Board, 

DAC and the Merger Task Team.
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•	 All litigation and pre-litigation matters were 

satisfactorily managed within the parameters 

of the applicable judicial mechanisms. Due 

to the judicious exercising of Legal Risk 

Management, timely and appropriate legal 

advice rendered, no new litigation matters 

were instituted against the organization 

during the period under review.

•	 The unit extended its services to the 

COHWHS and Dinokeng Projects in 

anticipation of the forthcoming merger of the 

entities. According to the Gauteng Tourism 

Sector Strategy, the organisation is expected 

to develop and implement strategies to 

promote businesses with a BBBEE Scorecard 

and encourage businesses to improve their 

scores and reach the Tourism Charter targets.

•	 The unit worked with the DED on stakeholder 

engagement on advocating transformation 

issues such as, B-BBEE. Participated at 

Gauteng Provincial and National B-BBEE 

Forums where compliance and challenges 

including the seven elements of the IT Portal 

for the province, were addressed. GTA 

reports periodically to the National B- BBEE 

Forum.  

•	 According to the Monthly Payment Barometer, 

the three entities collectively achieved 

80% compliance in terms of paying SMME 

businesses. The bulk of the work produced 

by this unit is done internally with only an 

extremely limited use of consultants. The 

development of Strategic Plans and Annual 

Performance Plans (APP) are done by the 

team. Consultants are limited to facilitation of 

strategic planning sessions. The development 

of the M&E framework and most legal 

services were also provided internally.

•	 The innovative approach to quantifying jobs 

using a system developed in partnership with 

Statistics South Africa (StatsSA) provides 

a snapshot on a critical output such as job 

creation; using the Tourism Satellite Account 

and the Quarterly Labour Force Survey data.

     We believe these achievements enhanced the 

     effectiveness of the organisation’s efficiency.

4.7.8 Stakeholder engagements

The effective engagement with stakeholders 

particularly in the area of research is a critical 

component in achieving our goal. These included 

both the private sector and other state organs 

involved in tourism. Maximizing the use of 

existing platforms instead of creating parallel 

structures yielded better results in the unit during 

the period under review.   

4.7.9 Challenges and Opportunities

One notable challenge that confronted the unit 

in terms of reporting was the slow organisational 

uptake on the new ways of performance 

compliance reporting. The issue was addressed 

in the regular senior management meetings. 

Challenges in the research area were poor 

application of sector intelligence in some 

areas of operations. Stakeholder relations and 

education on the importance of feeding raw data 

into our research processes in order to provide 

vital intelligence, would enhance the value of 

research work.  Future plans would be enhancing 

bottom-up research intelligence through 

collection of small-area datas.

Section 4 Report on the Performance against the Approved Plans
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The unit was allocated R1 108 000 for projects 

and R1 029 405 was spent. The 4% variance 

was largely  attrubutable to the changes in the 

payment arrangement from an outright upfront 

payment to a monthly rental payment for the 

Smart boxes - the equipment used to collect 

visitor satisfaction data

4 . 8   
T O U R I S M 
I N F R A S T R U C T U R E 

The purpose of this programme 
is a functional area of work 
completed by a seconded 
team in order to factor the 
enhanced priority placed on 
Tourism Infrastructure planning, 
development and management 
as per the Gauteng Tourism 
Sector Strategy (GTSS). In 
particular this work seeks to 
identify and develop strategic 
tourism infrastructure in Gauteng 

Objective 1:  Providing world-class 

  infrastructure that supports

  the tourism industry 

  as well as framework to guide 

  investment and operations in the 

  sector.

Objective 2: Providing a wide-range of world-

  class, customer-focused and 

  vibrant visitor experiences located 

  throughout the province which 

  appeals to the diverse needs of 

  increasing numbers of overseas, 

  African and domestic visitors 

  and local residents with specific 

  reference to increasing public 

  sector, private sector and foreign 

  direct investment.

Objective 3:  Acting responsibly for the benefit 

  of the economy, environment, 

  employees, communities and 

  society as a whole.

in partnership with all spheres of 
the government and the private 
sector. In the period under review 
the primary purpose was to 
identify and define the Tourism 
Infrastructure work for Gauteng.

4.8.1 Strategic Goal and Objectives

The unit directly leads the delivery of the 

following GTA strategic goals and objectives:

Goal 1:  Gauteng is a world class 

  destination renowned for its

  quality tourism experiences.

Goal 2:  Gauteng is recognised as a global 

  tourism competitor for leisure and 

  business travel.

Goal 3:  Tourism is a major contributor to 

  job creation and economic growth 

  in Gauteng. 

Goal 4:  Government, the tourism sector 

  and communities work together for 

  mutual benefit and ensure the 

  growth of responsible tourism in 

  Gauteng.
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4.8.2   Key Milestones and Activities in 
  the period under review

In the period under review all Annual 

Performance Plan (APP) targets were achieved 

and the following work was completed:

•	 Tourism Infrastructure Strategy and 

Plan; 

•	 Tourism Infrastructure Project Portfolio;

•	 Facilitated the introduction of the Gauteng 

Gauteng Hop-on Hop-off Buses Upgrade of 

the visitor desk at OR Tambo International 

Airport to a National Tourism Information 

Gateway;

•	 Upgrade of the visitor desk at OR Tambo 

International Airport to a National Tourism 

Information Gateway;

•	 Visitor Information Services Strategy;

•	 Development of eight themed maps.

The Tourism Infrastructure Strategy and Plan 

and the Tourism Infrastructure Project Portfolio 

laid the foundation for all future Tourism 

Infrastructure Projects and more importantly, the 

integration of the needs of tourists into broader 

infrastructure plans.

The Tourism Infrastructure Strategy has mapped 

the status quo, desired state and created a 

tourism atlas of the following seven categories 

of Tourism Infrastructure, developed and refined 

from more than 70 sub-categories.

The Tourism Project Portfolio has created a 

library of 113 projects across the Province, 79 

being tourism infrastructure specific projects. 

These projects formed the basis of tourism 

project pipeline for progressive implementation.

4.8.3 City Sightseeing Hop On/Off Bus

The launch of the hop on hop off bus service to 

Gauteng on 7 February 2013 at Gold Reef City 

was a culmination of one year collaboration 

between the public and private sector. The 

introduction of this bus service to Gauteng is a 

result of a partnership between City Sightseeing 

South Africa (trading as Topless Tours Pty 

Ltd.) and the GTA. GTA’s role was to assist 

with navigating government requirements for 

the introduction of this service and where 

necessary unblocking obstacles to delivery. 
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City Sightseeing South Africa provided an initial 

investment of over R20M and operates the 

service. The GTA working with Johannesburg 

Tourism Company (JTC) received endorsement 

for the introduction of the product from the 

Johannesburg Mayoral Committee. The red 

buses are a proud addition to the Gauteng 

landscape.   

In line with the National Strategy for Visitor 

Information Centres, the GTA in collaboration 

with the National Department of Tourism (NDT), 

upgraded and delivered the National Tourism 

Information Gateway at OR Tambo International 

Airport. This serves as an interface with both 

domestic and international tourists.

The vision of the recently completed Visitor 

Information Services Strategy is as follows:

By 2015 the GTA and its 

partners will play a leading 

role in strengthening Gauteng’s position as the 

tourism gateway in Southern Africa through the 

provision of exceptional quality visitor information 

services, resulting in longer stays in the province, 

extended experience of the region’s tourism prod-

ucts, more tourism revenues, a high degree of 

repeat visits and recommendations to friends and 

relatives.

The strategy once implemented would achieve 

the following four basic visitor information goals:

•	 Understand	visitors:	To	provide	visitor-

 focused information through active 

 engagement with visitors, formal market 

 research, training in customer handling

 and sales techniques.

•	 Have	the	information	that	fulfils	their	

 needs; to be the most comprehensive 

	 source	of	high‐quality,	reliable	visitor	

 information in Gauteng.

•	 Distribute	it	effectively:	To	deliver	visitor	

 information through easily accessible, 

 relevant and contemporary distribution 

 mechanisms.

•	 Do	it	sustainably:	To	operate	visitor	

 information services efficiently and 

 sustainably and generating optimum 

 levels of commercial income.

Gauteng residents would continue to be 

encouraged to spend 10% more of their leisure 

travel budget in their own province.  

4.8.4   Themed Maps

The following eight themed maps was developed:

•	 Struggle   

•	 Gandhi and Mandela

•	 Gold and Diamonds   

•	 Townships

•	 Alexander   

•	 Soweto

•	 Migrants and Immigrants 

•	 Human Origins 

24 Tourist Guides received training on the 

content of the maps and development of themed 

routes is underway.
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4.8.5 Stakeholder engagements

In all the work outlined above, Project Steering 

Committees comprising local, provincial and 

National Government was constituted to define 

the areas of work. The development of the Visitor 

Information Services Strategy also involved 

participants from the private sector. Public and 

private sector engagement will continue in order 

to sustain delivery of Tourism Infrastructure.

4.8.6 Challenges and Opportunities

Infrastructure investment is a national imperative 

to grow the economy and create jobs and 

tourism infrastructure is a critical subset of this 

imperative. The challenge remained the critical 

funding necessary to implement the scope of 

work through the creation of public private 

partnerships. Tourism Infrastructure presents 

exciting opportunities to transform the tourism 

landscape of Gauteng.  

4 . 9   
G A U T E N G 
C O N V E N T I O N 
B U R E A U

Section 4 Report on the Performance against the Approved Plans

•	 Struggle map The purpose of this unit is to 
position Gauteng as a premier 
sporting, cultural & Meetings, 
Incentives, Convention & 
Exhibitions (MICE) events 
province. The goal is to market 
and sell the five regions of 
Gauteng and secure future MICE 
and other related business events 
to the destination.

4.9.1   Strategic Goal and Objectives

As a business tourism arm of Gauteng 

government, the GTA developed the Convention 

Bureau strategy that focused on promoting 

the five regions as a premier business events 

destination, identifies and bids for business 

events, and provides free assistance to 

associations to bid for national and international 

business events. During the year under review, 

Gauteng acknowledged that conferencing 

and events are the “bread and butter “of the 

Province. 
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The 
identif ied need for 

the establishment of 
convention bureau 
reflected in a fresh 

strategic direction, one that 
reassessed where Gauteng 

Tourism was heading in l ight 
of increasing destination 

exposure and establishing 
a clear pathway in 

achieving its strategic 
objectives. 

Developed in consultation with regions, 

stakeholders, professional conference 

organizers, exhibition organizers and staff 

across the organisation, the strategy plan was 

formulated to position Gauteng as one of the 

world’s best business events destination. The 

implementation plan continued to form the basis 

of the business development of activities.

4.9.2   Gauteng Convention Bureau 
          (GCB) Strategy Development  

The development of the GCB strategy was 

finalized and approved by the GTA Board in 

Quarter 2 of 2012. This strategy highlights 

Gauteng’s ability to host successful business 

events and also generate significant revenue. 

The strategy assessed the product and market 

priorities and identified what each region’s 

potential were. It also examined the spending 

and travelling habits of delegates attending 

conferences held in different regions and 

concluded that conventions create new visitors, 

repeat visitors and drive regional tourism. 

Key markets continued to be located in the Africa, 

Europe, USA, UK and Asia with a continued 

focus on the international association market. 

A renewed emphasis was placed on business 

opportunities existing within the knowledge 

sectors with business development, sales and 

marketing activity concentrated on this area in 

line with GTA’s strategic objectives and long-term 

goals of GCB’s Strategic Business Plan.

4.9.3   Business Development activities

In the year under review, the business 

development activities delivered a total of 38 

conferences and events. 23 were international 

events, 10 national conferences and five (5) 

signature events. Five more international 

conferences was confirmed for 2014. 

Impressively, room nights secured during the year 

increased and yielded stronger economic impact 

due to increased delegate numbers.  

Major conferences held during the year under 

review included:

•	 International Small Business Council  

(2000 delegates)

•	 African Biological Safety Association  

(400 delegates)

•	 Africa Airlines Association (AFRAA) (350 

delegates)

•	 African Grant Makers(500 delegates) 

•	 Cosmetic Chemist Congress (600 delegates)

4.9.4   Significant future Business Events 
  (including expected delegate 
  numbers)

The GCB assisted in securing approximately 30 

international and national business events for the 

province. These events would bring over 50,000 

international delegates, 300 000 visitors to different 

regions of the province over the coming year. 
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The conferences included: 

YEAR MONTH NAME OF EVENT LEAD DELEGATE # 

2013 April Airports Cities IMEX 800 

2013 April African Football Exhibition PCO 200

2013 April Talking Golf Show Meetings Africa 180

2013 May Megacities Conference EIBTM 500

2013 May African Alzheimer’s Meetings Africa 200

2013 May Coating For Africa  ICCA Africa 500

2013 June Pan African Business Association ICCA Africa 500

2013 July Metropolis Conference PCO/JTC 300

2013 August South African Medical Association Meetings Africa 800

2013 August 14th CDE Postgraduate forum in Diabetes Meeting Africa 300

2013 August South African Youth Tourism Conference Local Association 250

2013 August International Council of Management Council Institute Local Association 300

2013 September One Young World JTC 1500 

2013 September World Hindu Conference Indian Consulate 1500 

2013 September 29
th

 Commonwealth Parliamentary Association Government 1000 

2013 October BRICS Trade and Investment Government 500

2013 October National SMME Convention Local Association 500

2013 November DISCOP – TV loves Africa IMEX 3500 

2013 November World Association of Anti-doping Sport JTC 3000 

2014 February African  Energy PCO 750

2014 August International Mineralogical Association PCO 1500 

2014 September World Orchid Congress ICCA (JTC) 2000

2015 March 2nd World Congress on Health Aging EIBTM 2000

Section 4 Report on the Performance against the Approved Plans
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4.9.5   Major Exhibition and Events 
  secured in the current year to be 
  hosted in the Province are:

•	 SA Auto-Mechanika  May 2013(25 000 

visitors)

•	 Wastex Africa Expo May 2013(5000 visitors)

•	 South African International Trade Exhibition 

for Retail Products June( 20 000 visitors)

•	 Coffee and Chocolate Expo July 2013( 5000 

visitors)

•	 Body Works April -June 2013 ( 50 000 

visitors)

•	 Joy of Jazz August 2013 ( 23000 visitors)

•	 Tribute Concert August 2013 ( 30 000 visitors)

•	 Vaal Carnival August 2013( 15000 visitors)

•	 Bauma Africa September 2013 ( 15000 

visitors)

•	 Joburg  International Motorshow October 

2013 (25 000 visitors)

•	 Sansui Summer Cup November 2013  

( 22000 visitors)

•	 80’s Rewind Festival (30 000 visitors)

4.9.6   ICCA Rankings 2012/13 

Through our combined efforts with the city 

bureau, Johannesburg was ranked 142 of 

234 listed countries in the previous year and 

is placed third in Africa in this year’s ICCA 

rankings.

4.9.7   Generating Leads 

During the year, GCB continued to participate in 

initiatives specifically designed to generate new 

leads including: 

•	 Hosted ICCA Africa Client Workshops and 

SAACI conference in Gauteng during the year 

under review. These formal leads exchange 

resulted in a number of new leads and the 

progression of existing bids. 

•	 ICCA Leads Exchanges – GCB participated 

in leads exchanges at the ICCA Congress in 

Puerto Rico in October. 

•	 Attendance at trade shows included, EIBTM 

2012, IMEX 2012 and Meetings Africa 2013. 

•	 Attendance at SAACI, ICCA and EXSA 

congresses to capitalise on the large 

business events coming to Gauteng over the 

next three years and drive yield for both the 

city and the province.

•	 Comprehensive sales calls were undertaken 

in key source markets by the Convention 

Bureau team, including visits to conference 

and exhibition venues, hotels and relevant 

attractions. This program of targeted sales 

calls resulted in both new leads and secured 

business.

•	 A new focused area for the year under review 

was working with the professional conference 

organizers, destination management 

companies, exhibition organizers, tourism 

attractions and events, national and city 

convention bureaus, to develop ongoing 

initiatives to enhance delegates’ experiences 

of Gauteng and connect them to the unique 

cultural, retail and dining offerings during 

their stay. 

4.9.8   Meetings Africa 2013

In recent years, the global meetings industry 

recognised Africa, as a sought after destination. 

Meetings Africa showcases Africa’s diverse 

offerings of services and products where 

African associations and the Meetings industry 

professionals partnered to help transform our 

continent. GCB is a bid partner with South 

African National Convention Bureau and 

Johannesburg Convention Bureau in hosting 

Meetings Africa - a milestone that recognize the 

achievements of the Province’s most prestigious 

Meetings and Incentives show.

4.9.9  Delegate Boosting 

During the year under review, delegate boosting 

activities were undertaken for 22 Conferences 

and Exhibitions to be held in Gauteng. The 
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purpose of this activity was to promote Gauteng 

as the host province for the next event and also 

raise awareness about options for extending 

delegates’ stay to include pre or post touring 

experiences. To maximise delegate attendance, 

the Convention Bureau team plays an active role, 

working alongside with City Bureau, local hosts 

and conference or exhibition organizers, through 

the delivery of delegate boosting initiatives and 

other marketing and promotional activities.

4.9.10   Familiarizations 

A number of international familiarizations and 

site visits were held in Gauteng during the year 

under review. Key decision makers were hosted 

by GCB staff and sometimes in partnership with 

the local host organisation and the city. Decision 

makers were given a comprehensive overview of 

the GCB’s business events offerings, in line with 

the requirements of their specific conference. 

This was done to ensure that they are shown 

the premier suppliers of convention venues, 

exhibition centres, accommodation establishment 

and tourism attractions in all five regions of 

Gauteng. In all cases, hosted buyers and media 

were impressed with Gauteng and its unique 

visitor offerings.

4.9.11   Membership

The team continued to leverage from GCBs 

membership with the ICCA, SAACI and EXSA. 

These important relationships continued to offer 

real opportunities for lead generation and in 

securing valuable bids.

4.9.12   Trade and International 
      Marketing

The purpose of the trade marketing unit is to 

promote and strengthen Gauteng’s position in 

both the international and domestic market place 

and to develop awareness and appeal of Gauteng 

as a leisure and business tourism destination. 

This is done by implementing a focused, cost-

effective and customer driven approach, using 

evidence based marketing strategies.

Statistically, neighbouring countries remained 

the most significant source markets, with the 

United Kingdom, the United States of America 

and Germany serving as the strongest long-haul 

markets. For the year under review, India has 

been identified as another core market. More 

effort was spent on China and South East Asia, 

as an investment market.  Although the domestic 

market accounts for 75% of the total tourism 

volume to South Africa, it is the foreign markets 

that contribute the most of total tourism revenue.

In order to develop awareness and appeal of 

Gauteng as a recognized global competitor for 

leisure and business travel, the promotional 

plan for trade marketing in the year under 

review, was aligned to the South African Tourism 

(SAT) co-funded events, where provinces 

participated. This was mainly international trade 

shows and SAT road shows. Together with the 

national tourism office, the province is being 

sold holistically through these key marketing 

platforms.

4.9.13   Trade and Consumer Shows

Trade and consumer shows offer opportunities 

to promote the destination either to a large 

number of travel industry buyers such as travel 

agents, tour operators and tour wholesalers 

or to the purchasing consumer. These shows 

are used to promote member product and their 

regions and enables the organisation to arrange 

appointments with buyers. 

4.9.14   Road shows 

Road shows are facilitated by SAT to open key 

emerging markets. The province was represented 

Section 4 Report on the Performance against the Approved Plans
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at the road shows to share insights and promote 

the provincial product offerings to hosted trade 

and invited media. Participating in road shows 

provided opportunities to increase volume 

of visitors to the province, and also enables 

leveraging of leisure tourism benefits from visitors 

and delegates through their extension of stay, 

and as a result, increases direct foreign spend.

During the period under review, the GTA 

participated in the following trade exhibitions and 

road shows: 

•	 Tourism Indaba (May 2012); 

•	 China road show (June 2012); 

•	 Kenya trade workshop (September 2012); 

•	 International Tourism Bourse (ITB) - Asia 

(October 2012); 

•	 World Travel Market (WTM) (November 2012); 

•	 India road show (January 2013); 

•	 ITB Berlin (March 2013).

In order to maintain strategic travel trade 

partnerships to leverage related tourist 

opportunities, the trade development portfolio 

was tasked to develop a Sales Action Plan based 

on key source markets. Proposals were called 

for, inviting interested companies to tender 

and a service provider was appointed. The first 

phase of a trade sales strategy is due in the next 

period.

4.9.15   Looking Forward 

This year’s results showed that Gauteng 

continued growth in popularity as a world-

class business events destination, attracting a 

high caliber of both national and international 

Meetings, year on year, and improving its 

position in the business events industry. 
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President Jacob Zuma, stated at the international tourism 
statistic media briefing at Victoria and Alfred Waterfront in 
Cape Town on 25 April 2013 saying, “This phenomenal tourism 
growth is evidence that we are successfully setting ourselves 
apart in a competitive marketplace and that South Africa’s 
reputation as a friendly, welcoming, inspiring and unique 
tourism destination, continues to grow.”
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5 . 1   
A  G L O B A L 
P I C T U R E

International tourism continued to recover from 

the global financial crisis growing by 3.8 % in 

2012, surpassing a record of 1 billion tourists 

globally.

5.1.1   International Tourist Arrival 

According to the latest United Nation World 

Tourism Organisation (UNWTO) World Tourism 

Barometer, international arrivals reached 1,035 

million tourists, up from 966 million in 2011. 

Asia and the Pacific saw the highest growth of 

all regions with 7% more international tourists. 

Below graph, shows growth performance of other 

world regions. 

5.1.2   International Tourism Receipts 
 and Expenditures 

Tourism followed a positive trend in arrivals 

and growth trends were seen in the first nine to 

twelve months of 2012. Of the 119 destinations 

reporting tourism receipts data for the first 

part of 2012, 99 countries (83%) saw growth 

in earnings, of which 41 doubled (34%), while 

only 20 (17%) saw declines. Among the top 

ten destinations, international tourism receipts 

increased significantly in the same period, 

United States received an increase of 10% and 

Hong Kong the largest earner, with a growth of 

16%. As illustrated in the above graph, Germany 

posted an estimated 6% growth in receipt whilst 

the United Kingdom which hosted the London 

Summer Olympics, Spain, France, Italy and 

Australia, posted between 1 and 4 percentage 

growth. China reported a slight decrease of -1%.

5.1.3   Emerging Markets

Emerging markets saw a surge in tourism 

expenditure, while traditional source markets 

showed renewed dynamism. International 

tourism expenditure last year was marked by 

an impressive growth in the world’s two largest 

emerging markets; China seen as the 3rd largest 

spender, saw a surge of 42% while the Russian 

Federation, the 7th recorded an outstanding 31% 

growth in the same period.
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Although the highest growth rates in expenditure 

came from emerging economies, important 

traditional source markets showed particularly 

good results. Despite economic pressures in 

Europe, expenditure on international tourism by 

the top 10 spenders (graph shown in the next 

page) held on well, Germany +3%, the United 

Kingdom +5% returned to growth after two flat 

years. In the Americas, both USA and Canada 

grew at 7%.  Australia increased expenditure 

by 5% and Japan by 3%.  The only declines 

experienced were in France -7% and Italy -2%.  

5.1.4   Prospects for 2013 

Despite ongoing economic challenges, the 

UNWTO is forecasting growth of international 

arrivals worldwide to continue in 2013 at a similar 

to slightly slower pace +3% to +4%. This rate is 

well in line with UNWTO’s long-term Outlook for 

Tourism towards 2030, which projects an average 

growth of 3.8% per year.

Prospects for 2013 was led by Asia and the 

Pacific 5% to 6%, followed by Africa 4% to 

6%, the Americans 3% to 4% Europe +2% to 

3% and the Middle East 0% to +5%. Trends 

in the Middle East are the hardest to forecast 

due to volatile environments and the widely 

varying trends across countries. For this reason 

growth is projected in a wider range. However, 

some countries are still in recovery from 

recent conflicts while others push ahead in the 

development of their tourism industry.  Figures 

are expected to be positive in 2013. At the end 

of December 2012 and January to April 2013, 

the total reservation for flights were up by 4% as 

compared to the period in the previous year.

5 . 2   
N A T I O N A L 
P I C T U R E

Tourism in South Africa continues to grow at a 

steady pace, in 2012 the rate was more than 

doubled the average global tourist growth of 4% 

estimated by the UNWTO.

President Jacob Zuma, stated at the international 

tourism statistic media briefing at Victoria and 

Alfred Waterfront in Cape Town on 25 April 

2013 saying, “This phenomenal tourism growth 

is evidence that we are successfully setting 

ourselves apart in a competitive marketplace 

and that South Africa’s reputation as a friendly, 

welcoming, inspiring and unique tourism 

destination, continues to grow.” In view of global 

performance and trends, it is evident that South 

Africa has a definite opportunity to grow. The 

UNWTO forecasted that African destinations 

will continue to grow on an average of 3 to 6 

percentage towards 2030, and emerging markets 

will fuel this growth.  

5.2.1   Arrivals

In 1993 a mere 3.4 million foreign visitors were 

received in South Africa. By 2012, the figure had 

grown by 300 percent to 13.5 million visitors, 

of which 9.2 million were tourists. The number 

of foreign tourists to South Africa increased by 

10.2% from 8 339 354 in 2011 to 9 188 368 in 

2012. 

5.2.2   Regional Performance
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Africa remains the largest source of tourist 

arrivals in South Africa, the region contributed an 

additional 517 828 tourists, equalling a growth of 

8,5% over 2011. The region constitutes 73% of 

all arrivals in South Africa.  Africa land markets 

in 2012 grew by 8.2% and Africa air markets by 

14.2%. Europe is the highest source of overseas 

tourists to South Africa growing by 9.5%, 

attracting 1 396 978 European tourists to the 

country in 2012. The Americas region increased 

by 18.6%, an additional 80 469 tourists. The 

Central South American region saw an increase 

of 37.0%, whilst North America, grew by 13.9%, 

despite the continent facing major economic 

challenges. Asia and Australasia grew by 28.7% 

in certain markets in this region. 

5 . 3   
M A R K E T 
P E R F O R M A N C E S

5.3.1   African Market

Within the Africa Air Markets, Nigeria is the 

largest whist Angola grew by 21, 7%. Tanzania 

and Ghana mainly contributed in the “other 

African air” market growing by 25, 4% and 23, 

8%, respectively. African Land Markets continued 

to be main contributors of volume in South Africa 

and saw 68,6% tourist arrivals. Zimbabwe is the 

biggest  lvand market surpassing Lesotho for the 

first time since 2009. Significant growth of 19% 

was seen from Zimbabwe followed by Swaziland 

grown by 9.8%.

5.3.2   Brazil, Russia, India and China
           The (BRICS) Market

The BRICS summit held in Durban during the 

period under review highlighted the economic 

potential the affiliation has for South Africa and 

the tourism industry is no exception. Tourist 

arrivals from the BRICS countries accounted for 

330 834 of our international tourist numbers in 

2012. Brazil had arrival figures of 54 183 tourist 

in 2011 and in 2012 arrivals grew by 44.7%.  

Tourist arrivals from China (including Hong Kong) 

increased by 55.9% above the 2011 figure of 84 

883. India tourist arrivals in 2011 were 90 367 

and increased to 106 774 in 2012. 

China has become South Africa’s fourth biggest 

overseas tourism market moving up from 6th 

position overtaking the Netherlands, Australia 

and France. Arrivals from this market increased 

by 55.9% - a record high of 132 334 tourists.   

Although Russia recorded 13,350 tourists’ 

arrivals, this nation has grown at a significant 

pace.  

5.3.3 Top 10 Arrivals in South Africa

United Kingdom is South Africa’s biggest 

overseas tourism market, recording 438 023 UK 

tourists to South Africa in 2012. This market went 

up by 4.2%.  There has been an increase in tourist 

arrivals from all markets in the Americas region, 

USA increased by 13.6%. Germany went up by 

13% over 2011 figures, the third biggest overseas 

market with 266 333 tourists. South Africa’s fifth 

biggest overseas tourism market, France, went up 

by 16% recording 122 244 tourists in 2012. The 

graph in the next page shows performance of Top 

10 arrivals in South Africa.

Section 5:  Provincial Performance Overview Report
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5.3.4   Length of Stay

Foreign tourists stayed for shorter period in 2012 

compared to 2011. The average length of stay of 

a foreign tourist was 7.7 nights compared to 8.3 

nights in 2011. The most common length of stay 

of tourists from air and land markets declined to 

five nights and one night. All markets declined in

the nights spent in SA except Africa Land market. 

5.3.5   Revenue

Foreign tourists spent a total of R76.4 billion in South 

Africa in 2012. This is up by 7.6% from the Total 

Foreign Direct Spend (TFDS) in the country in 2011. 

Spend by tourists from the Americas; Asia, Australia 

and Europe all increased. The only decrease in 

spend was from African markets, which led to the 

average spend per tourist decreasing by 2.3%.

While the domestic market accounts for 73% 

of total tourism volume to SA, foreign markets 

contributed 78% of the total tourism revenue.  

The Total Tourism Spend for 2012 was 98.2 

billion, an increase of 2.4% from the 91.1 billion 

spent in 2011. Africa land markets registered a 

negative growth of -3.5%. 

6 . 0
T H E  P R O V I N C I A L 
P I C T U R E

6.3.1   Arrivals

Gauteng continued to enjoy the largest share of 

foreign arrivals in 2012 although losing market 

share by 1.7%. For the first time, the province 

recorded a share below 45%. The table below 

shows market share performance of Gauteng 

from 2009 – 2012. 
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Gauteng captured the highest tourism revenue in 

South Africa, contributing R30 billion, followed by 

Western Cape with R18.4 billion. Significant growth 

in revenue was seen in Gauteng, Mpumalanga 

and Free State. Losses were registered in the 

Eastern Cape, Kwa-Zulu Natal and the Northern 

Cape. Johannesburg is set to be the most popular 

destination in Africa, with a projected 2.54 million 

international visitors expected to visit in 2013, 

according to the third annual MasterCard Global 

Destination Cities Index.  

Despite a marginal 5,5% increase in the 

number of international visitors from 2012, 

Johannesburg’s substantial 53,6% growth in 

international visitors from 2009 to 2013 has 

propelled it into the index’s top 20 fastest 

growing cities globally.  Johannesburg also 

comes out tops in Africa in terms of international 

visitor spending, with $2,7 billion estimated to 

be injected into the city during 2013, a slight 

increase (1%) on 2012 expenditure.

6.3.4  Occupancy Rates

According to STR Global hotel review data, 

Gauteng experienced an overall increase in 

occupancy rates in 2012 compared to 2011. 

The revenue per available room also showed 

an increase with not much of a change, with 

the biggest change seen in October 61.1% and 

November 65.5%. Negative levels in December 

recorded -1.1%.  The biggest raise was seen 

in May 2012 with a 16.6% increase from 2011, 

53.1%.  September and October also saw a great 

increase with similar percentage increases. 

The highest occupancy rates in both 2011 and 

2012 were seen in the months of October and 

November. 

Revenue Generated in Provices: 2012

Gauteng Western 
Cape

20

25

30

35

15

10

5

0
Eastern 
Cape

Kwazulu-
Natal

Mpuma-
langa

Limpopo Northern 
Cape

North 
West

Free 
State

Section 5:  Provincial Performance Overview Report

Despite the decline in market share, Gauteng 

enjoyed an increase of 6.1% growth, from 3.8 

million to 4.1 million in 2012. The average 

number of provinces visited also decreased in 

2012.  Air markets visits to provinces declined to 

1.4 in 2012.  This result implied that Gauteng is 

losing its gateway status.  The previous trend was 

seeing “air visitors” landing first in Gauteng, and 

proceeding to visit one other province,  now more 

visitors fly directly to Cape Town and Durban.

6.3.2   Bed nights in Provinces

Gauteng continued to capture the most bed-

nights increase from 25 658 189 to 26 514 207, 

a 3.35 growth rate.

6.3.3   Revenue
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Compared to other provinces, occupancy grew 

in 2012 in most of the provinces, except slight 

decreases in Northern Cape from 71.22% in 

2011 to 64.39% in 2012; and in Limpopo, the 

occupancy percentage was 59.05 in 2011 and 

dropped slightly to 57.33 in 2012.

7 . 0
D O M E S T I C 
T O U R I S M

In total, 12.5 million South Africans took 

domestic trip in 2012 which is 11% decrease 

when compared with 13.9 million in 2011. On 

average, 2.1 trips were taken throughout the year 

similar to 2011. As a result, the number of total 

trips taken decreased from 26.3 million in 2011 

to 25.4 in 2012. Economic constraints remained 

the biggest barrier of domestic travel, with 35% 

citing non affordability. 

7.1 Domestic Trips

Most of the trips were made to KwaZulu Natal 

and Limpopo followed by Gauteng. 

Source: SAT Performance report 2012

7.2  Purpose of Visit

VFR trips still accounted the largest share of trips 

taken.  However, there was decrease from 73% in 

2011 to 72%, 2012.  The holiday trips share fell 

from 29% in 2011 to 23% in 2012; whist business 

share grew from 12% to 17% over the same period.  

7.3    Length of Stay and Bednights

As the length of stay remained constant, the total 

bed-nights decreased by 12.2% from 131 million 

in 2010 to 115 million in 2011.  This was driven 

by the decline of domestic trips.  There was an 

increase in average length of stay per trip, from 

4.4 nights in 2011 to 4.8 nights in 2012.  As a 

result, bed-nights increased from 114.8 million in 

2011 to 121.2 million in 2012 registering a 5.6% 

growth over the reported period.

7.4. Spend

The average spend per trip increased from R760 

in 2011 to R850 in 2012. Consequently, total 

spend grew by 8% from R20.2 billion in 2011 to 

R21.8 billion in 2012.  The average spend per 

day increased, from R170 to R180 over the same 

period.  The VFR spend share remained greatest 

at 52% followed by holiday 23% and business at 

17%.

Holiday VFR

40%

80%

30%

70%

90%

20%

60%

10%

50%

0

Business Medical Religion

Gauteng Percentage of Purpose of Visit

Provincial Occupancy: April - December 2012

50
40

60
70
80

120

100

140

90

130

110

150

South 
Africa

Northern 
Cape

Eastern 
Cape

Limpopo North 
West

Free 
state

KwaZulu-
Natal

Mpuma-
langa

Western 
Cape

Gauteng

59.97 64.39 59.05 51.79 62.57 62.62 62.76 56.01 56.98 61.51

56.36 71.22 58.45 57.33 60.55 57.08 61.31 52.1 53.17 55.83P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

%

2011    Graph Key

KwaZulu- 
Natal

Gauteng

4

5

6

7

3

2

1

0

Limpopo Eastern 
Cape

Western 
Cape

Mpuma-
langa

North 
West

Annual Trips to Each Province

2011    Graph Key

2011    Graph Key







SECTION 06
GTA Performance Report



Gauteng is a world- class destination 
renowed for its quality tourism.
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S E C T I O N  6 :   T O U R I S M  G A U T E N G  P E R F O R M A N C E  R E P O R T

For the year ended 31 March 2013

Corporate Services

Strategic  

Objective

Actual  

Achievement 

for 2011/12

Performance Indicator Planned 

Target for 

2012/13 

Actual  

Achievement 

for 2012/2013

Deviation from planned 

target to Actual  

Achievement for 

2013/2014

Comments on deviation

Enhanced 

organizational 

performance through 

the provision of 

effective Human 

Resources 

management and 

support

1 1 Human Resource 

Development Strategy 

approved by 31 March 2013

1 A Business 

Case for 

the merger 

process was 

developed by 

the Merger 

Task Team

The Human Resource 

Development Strategy 

was not developed 

Since the Gauteng Tourism Authority 

is being merged with the Cradle of 

Humankind World Heritage Site and 

Dinokeng Projects, it was necessary 

to first develop the Business Case 

for the new combined entity before 

embarking on the development 

of a combined Human Resource 

Development Strategy for the new 

entity.

100% 100% staff have signed 

Performance Contracts by 31 

March 2013

100% 100% No deviations from 

planned target

There was no deviation

100% 4 Quarterly Human Resource 

Report on compliance to Labour 

legislation by 31 March 2013

4 4 No deviations from 

planned target

There was no deviation

4 4 Quarterly occupational health 

and safety reports by 31 March 

2013

4 4 No deviations from 

planned target

There was no deviation
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Enhanced 

organizational 

performance through 

the provision of 

effective Information 

Technology and 

support

1 1 ICT Strategy reviewed by 31 

March 2013 

1 1 ICT Strategy 

reviewed and 

approved

No deviations from 

planned target

There was no deviation

Average 95% Average 95% uptime for the ICT 

Infrastructure by 31 March 2013  

Average 

95%

Average 99.4% Target exceeded by 4.4% The better results are due to 

constant monitoring and proactive 

maintenance. Implementation of 

Best of Breed equipment also 

helped to create a stable platform. 

Support SLA for high-end technical 

support also ensure effective fault 

resolution in the shortest possible 

time.

Enhanced 

organizational 

performance through 

the provision of 

effective processes 

and administrative 

support

1 1 Standard Operating 

Procedure revised by 31 March 

2013

1 1 Standard 

Operating 

Procedure 

revised and 

approved

No deviations from 

planned target.

There was no deviation

1 1 revised Business Continuity 

Plan by 31 March 2013

1 1 Business 

Continuity Plan 

revised and 

approved

No deviations from 

planned target

There was no deviation
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Enhanced financial 

accountability and 

compliance to 

prescribed financial 

regulations and 

guidelines

1 1 complete and accurate asset 

register developed by 31 March 

2013

1 1 complete 

and accurate 

asset register 

developed

No deviations from planned 

target

There was no deviation

100% 100% implementation 

of internal Audit Report 

Recommendations by 31 March 

2013

100% 100% No deviations from planned 

target

There was no deviation

1 1 unqualified audit report 

received for Gauteng Tourism 

Authority by 31 March 2013

1 1 unqualified 

report received

No deviations from planned 

target

There was no deviation

Sector intelligence is 

used to ensure that 

the needs of visitors 

drive new, innovative 

and sustainable 

tourism practices

1 1 annual stakeholder research 

needs analysis conducted by 

31 March 2013

1 1 Stakeholder 

research needs 

analysis report 

finalised

No deviations from planned 

target

There was no deviation

100 At least 200 industry 

stakeholders (individuals) 

attend tourism intelligence 

sessions by 31 March 2013

200 201 Target exceeded There was no deviation
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50% 65% rating of the content of 

the intelligence sessions by 

stakeholders attending the 

session by 31 March 2013

Average 

65%

Average 78% Target exceeded Better coordination and 

communication with stakeholders 

has resulted in better quality of 

research reports and satisfaction 

with this reports

The sector is 

committed to 

monitoring visitor 

satisfaction and 

perceptions of quality 

experiences

2 2 studies monitoring visitor 

satisfaction and perceptions of 

quality experiences in Gauteng 

by 2013

2 2 Target achieved There was no deviation

Visitor requirements 

are met through 

world class product 

provision and 

authentic, unique 

experiences

1 1 Gauteng Tourism Product 

Database updated by 31 March 

2013

1 1 Gauteng 

Tourism Product 

Database 

updated

Target achieved There was no deviation
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Attract visitors 

by implementing 

evidence based 

marketing strategies

- 1 Legislative framework 

to allow Gauteng Tourism 

Authority to access industry 

administrative data by 31 

March 2013

Legislative 

framework 

to allow 

Authority to 

access

industry 

administrative

data

This 

performance 

indicator 

should best 

be considered 

to be Not 

Applicable. 

The Act review was no 

longer necessary due to 

the new interpretation that 

the existing Act would be 

adequate for the specific 

purpose of mandatory 

registration of tourism 

products. Previous 

legal consultations 

had suggested that the 

Act review would be 

necessary

Not Applicable as the Act review 

Not Applicable as the Act review 

was no longer necessary due to 

the new interpretation that the 

existing Act would be adequate for 

the specific purpose of mandatory 

registration of tourism products. 

Previous legal consultations had 

suggested that the Act review 

would be necessary. The internal 

task team has been established 

to work on the mechanics of 

the application of the Act as 

it currently stands; prior to its 

review for different purposes 

associated with the merger of 

the GTA, Cradle of Humankind 

World Heritage Site and Dinokeng 

Projects

Attract visitors 

by implementing 

evidence based 

marketing strategies

5.6 4.2 million international visitors 

to Gauteng by 31 March 2013

4.2 4.1 Target not achieved by 0.1 

million

There has been a significant shift 

in the tourism market conditions 

that has adversely affected 

the province's market share  

compared to other provinces. 

Gauteng has suffered a 2% 

decline in market share which 

necessitates a revision of our 

marketing strategy. 
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The introduction of new tourist 

calculation methodology 

necessitate that the province 

reconsiders its marketing initiatives 

approach and target setting that 

ideally should be done only after 

the the current year’s destination 

performance date has been made 

available by SA Tourism.

5.4 Average length of stay of 5 

days spent by international 

tourists in Gauteng by 31 

March 2013

5 6.8 Target exceeded by 1.8 Target exceeded 

39.7 27.3 million bed nights spent  

by international tourists in 

Gauteng by 31 March 2013

27 26.50 Target achieved This is consistent with the decline 

of other indicators with a direct 

correlation, particularly the arrival 

numbers and to a lesser degree 

revenue generated

40.3 R30.8 billion in total revenue 

generated from international 

tourists in Gauteng by 31 

March 2013

30.8 30 Target less by R 0.8 

billion

The decline in number of tourists 

has evidently also filtered through 

the ability to generate high 

revenues despite declines in 

arrival figures



GAUTENG TOURISM |  ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013

Domestic tourism in 

Gauteng is a vibrant 

and profitable part 

of provincial tourism 

economy

5.1 5.6 million domestic trips to 

Gauteng by 31 March 2016

5.6 4.19 Target less by 1.41 

million

In the absence of a comprehensive 

narrative report from SA Tourism at the 

time of writing this report, speculation 

is that the general decline in domestic 

trips is largely due to unfavourable 

job market and economic conditions. 

Mitigation plans will be devised once a 

full analytical report is available

3.7 R4.6 billion in total domestic 

direct spend by 31 March 2013

4.6 3.5 Target less by R1.1 

billion

In the absence of a comprehensive 

narrative report from SA Tourism at the 

time of writing this report, speculation 

is that the general decline in domestic 

trips is largely due to unfavourable 

job market and economic conditions; 

despite the marginal general increase 

in domestic tourism revenue from 

R20.2 billion to R21.8 billion and an 

average spend per trip from R760 

to R850. Mitigation plans will be 

devised once a full analytical report is 

available. 

Preliminary 

data from 

SAT does 

not cover 

this variable

Length of stay domestic visitors 

is 6 days by 31 March 2013

6 3.7 Target missed by an 

average of 2.3 

It is suspected that there is a specific 

phenomenon that can only be 

established once the fully analytical 

report is available.
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Preliminary 

data from 

SAT does 

not cover 

this variable

26.7 million bed nights by 

domestic visitors by 31 March 

2013

26.7 19.6 The target is less by 7.1 

million bednights

It is suspected that there is a specific 

phenomenon that can only be 

established once the fully analytical 

report is available.

Data 

unavailable

6 500 direct permanent jobs 

accounted by the Tourism 

Sector Gauteng by 31 March 

2013

6 500 -1 527 The target is less by 

-1527 

The job losses recorded by the sector 

are consistent with the general trends. 

The Agency is not directly responsible 

for creating jobs but rather to facilitate 

the creation of a conducive environment 

for the private sector to thrive and 

create jobs. The National Tourism Sector 

Strategy (NTSS) has introduced an NTSS 

Delivery Forum in which private sector 

also plays a strategic role in delivering 

on the NTSS objectives among which 

is creation of decent work in the sector. 

The sector therefore uses this social 

compact platform to engage on job 

creation matters

Data 

unavailable

1 200 temporary jobs  accounted 

by the Tourism Sector in 

Gauteng by 31 March 2013

1 520 5 685 Target exceeded by 4 

165 

Temporary job opportunities largely 

associated with eventing

Enhanced financial 

accountability and 

compliance to 

prescribed financial 

regulations and 

guidelines

1 1 Annual Performance Plan 

produced for Gauteng Tourism 

Authority by 31 March 2013

1 1 Annual 

Performance 

Plan for 2013/14 

approved 

for Gauteng 

Tourism 

Authority

No deviations from 

planned target

There was no deviation
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Facilitate, 

appropriate, high 

quality infrastructure 

which underpins and 

support quality visitor 

experiences

20% 

(Approved 

plan)

70% regeneration of Ga-

Rankuwa Hotel School by 31 

March 2013

70% 

(Implement 

first 

milestones in 

regeneration 

plan)

40% (In 

coordination 

with the 

Department 

of Economic 

Development 

the due 

diligence report, 

the regeneration 

strategy and 

the Transfer 

guidelines 

Framework for 

the Ga-Rankuwa 

Hotel School 

was finalised)

30% (Detailed infrastructure 

plans not developed)

The project was dependant 

on the Department finalising 

the transfer of the school from 

the North West. As this still 

has not been concluded it was 

not possible to implement the 

regeneration strategy.

Enhance the Tourism 

contribution to job 

creation in Gauteng

1 3 Youth Employability 

programmes implemented by 

31 March 2013

3 4 Target Exceeded More demand for Youth 

Employability programmes 

136 150 Youth employed through 

Youth Employability Programme 

by 31 March 2013

150 365 Target Exceeded More demand for Youth 

Employability programmes 

10 10 target group specific 

interventions in the sector by 

31 March 2013

10 10 Target achieved No deviation from planned 

target 
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Visitors receive 

the highest level of 

service excellence at 

every stage of their 

journey

4 4 Quarterly accommodation 

grading reports by 31 March 

2013

4 4 Target achieved No deviation from planned 

target 

550 650 newly graded rooms in 

Gauteng by 31 March 2013

650 1018 Target Exceeded Effective partnership with the 

Tourism Grading Council of S 

Africa

5 5 service excellence training 

programmes implemented by 

31 March 2013

5 9 Target Exceeded More demand for training and 

support from key stakeholders 

in the tourism sector

1 1 integrated Provincial Award 

Programme conducted by 31 

March 2013

1 1 Draft 

Provincial 

awards plan 

and project plan 

developed and 

presented to  

stakeholders for 

further inputs

Not able to host provincial 

awards a the National 

Department of Tourism 

did not finalise the new 

awards framework for 

implementation in 2012-13

The Provincial Awards 

Programme ready to be 

implemented once the new 

integrated national tourism 

awards are implemented 

2 2 tourism product categories 

addressed in the new grading 

system in Gauteng by 31 March 

2013

2 2 Target achieved No deviation from planned 

target 
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Ensure that sector 

employees and new 

entrants have skills 

necessary to deliver 

quality products and 

services

Commen-

cement of 

planning for 

the project

1 Sector skills audit conducted 

by 31 March 2013

1 Sector 

Skills Audit 

conducted 

Sector Skills 

Audit conducted 

Target achieved No deviation from planned target 

- 1 Provincial Tourism Sector 

Skills Plan developed  by 31 

March 2013

1 

Provincial 

Tourism 

Sector 

Skills Plan 

informed 

by audit 

The Sector 

Skills Audit is 

currently work 

in progress

Target  achieved The development of this skills 

plan was dependent on the 

sector skills audit. Due to the late 

finalisation of the audit by the 

Cathsseta the skills plan  is only 

expected to be completed early in 

2013/14.

5 5 skills development initiatives 

supported by 31 March 2013 

5 9 Target Achieved No deviation

1 000 1 000 people trained 

(beneficiaries) in sector skills 

by 31 March 2013

1 000 1 019 Target Exceeded More demand for training and 

support from key stakeholders in 

the tourism sector. Initial target 

did no factor other benefiaciaries 

facilitated through the martketing 

unit as per their events 

implementation plan

Identify opportunities 

to attract and 

increase new 

investment and 

infrastructure in the 

tourism sector 

300 300 SMMEs supported non-

financially by 31 March 2013

300 306 Target Exceeded No deviation from planned target 
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3 4 cooperatives identified and 

facilitated to be supported by 

31 March 2013

4 4 Target achieved No deviation from planned target 

Develop a niche 

market approach 

offering unique 

experiences that 

others do not to 

stimulate new 

markets and grow 

overall market share

- 1 niche market (Shopping) 

promoted through specific 

campaign by 31 March 2013

1 campaign 1 niche market 

(Shopping) 

promoted 

through 

domestic 

campaign

Target not achieved No specific campaign, however 

shopping was addressed through 

the integrated domestic campaign

Develop sector sub-

strategies to support 

the development of 

the destination

Strategy 

Developed

1 Brand Management Strategy 

developed by 31 March 2013

1 Brand 

Manage-

ment 

Strategy

1 Brand 

Management 

Strategy 

approved

No deviations from 

planned target

No deviations from planned target

Strategy 

Developed

1 Marketing and Sales Strategy  

developed by 31 March 2013

1 

Marketing 

and Sales 

Strategy

1 Marketing and 

Sales Strategy 

approved 

No deviations from 

planned target

No deviations from planned target

Strategy 

Developed

1 Convention and Events 

Strategy developed by 31 

March 2013

1 

Convention 

and Events 

Strategy

1 Convention 

and Events 

Strategy 

approved

No deviations from 

planned target

No deviations from planned target
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Position Gauteng as 

a premier sporting, 

cultural and MICE 

events province

5 6 Gauteng Tourism Authority 

led events undertaken by 31 

March 2013

6 6 No deviations from 

planned target

No deviations from planned 

target

4 5 events organized in support 

of  strategic stakeholders by 

31 March 2013

5 14 Target exceeded A number of opportunities 

arose to support key events 

that enhanced Gauteng’s profile 

as a Leisure and Business 

destination 

Build and implement 

Gauteng Tourism 

Authority’s media 

engagement 

programmes

1 1 media engagement 

programme embarked upon 

by 31 March2013

1 1 media 

engagement 

programme

No deviations from 

planned target

No deviations from planned 

target

Build the destination  

Marketing 

capabilities 

through the use 

of technology and 

social media

160 437 180 000 unique visitors to the 

website by 31 March 2013

180 000 344 066 Target Exceeded Better awareness of Brand 

Gauteng through marketing and 

promotional activities

0 5 000 mobile and tablet apps 

downloads by 31 March 2013

5 000 5 341 Target Exceeded No deviations from planned 

target.

3 393 7 000 followers to owned 

properties on all social media 

channels by 31 March 2013

7 000 13 986 Target Exceeded Better awareness of Brand 

Gauteng through marketing and 

promotional activities
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Domestic tourism in 

Gauteng is a vibrant 

and profitable part 

of provincial tourism 

economy

- 100  tourism products signed 

up to the GEEPEE Campaign

100 100 Target Achieved Target achieved for compliance 

but no attempt to exceed the 

100 as new approach to the 

programme  

to be implemented

- 15 000 GEEPEE cardholders 

registered

 15 000  15 900  Target Exceeded No deviations from planned 

target

Market Gauteng 

Province locally and 

internationally to 

attract visitors

4 7 trade interventions 

facilitated by 31 March 2013

7 7 No deviations from 

planned target.

No deviations from planned 

target

4 4 consumers shows used to 

promote Gauteng province  

by 31 March 2013

4 4 No deviations from 

planned target.

No deviations from planned 

target

Market Gauteng 

province locally 

and internationally 

to attract business 

delegates

4 5 MICE interventions 

facilitated by 31 March 2013

5 21 Target exceeded Implementation of Convention 

Bureau Strategy has resulted in 

increased awareness of Gauteng 

as a MICE destination
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Enhanced financial 

accountability and 

compliance to 

prescribed financial 

regulations and 

guidelines

1 1 Annual Reports produced 

for GTA by 31 March 2013

1 1 No deviations from 

planned target.

No deviations from 

planned target.

A responsible 

and sustainable 

tourism industry 

is developed and 

promoted

- Develop an inclusive 

Responsible Tourism Strategy 

that incorporates the Green 

Tourism Economy framework 

by 31 March 2013

Developed 

Provincial 

Responsible 

Tourism 

Strategy that 

incorporates the 

Green Tourism 

Economy 

framework 

Responsible 

Tourism strategy 

developed

Target Achieved No deviations from 

planned target

3 4 new initiatives for adopting 

responsible tourism practices 

regionally and practitioners 

by 31 March 2013

4 6 Target Exceeded There was more demand 

for Responsible Tourism 

initiatives from key 

stakeholders

The value of tourism 

at local government 

level is promoted 

to ensure local 

government support

New 

Indicator

10 Regional Tourism 

initiatives facilitated by 31 

March 2013

10 49 Target Exceeded Increased awareness 

and support offered by 

Gauteng 

Tourism Authority towards 

regional and local 

initiatives
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4 5 new Regional Tourism 

Structures established by 31 

March 2013

5 6 Target Exceeded Increased support from 

regional stakeholders

Promotion of 

a “joined-up 

government” 

approach to ensure 

better tourism 

coordination and 

integrated plans. 

(IGR)

4 4 new partnerships signed 

with tourism stakeholders by 

31 March 2013

4 4 Target Achieved No deviations from 

planned target.

New 

Indicator

1 integrated Stakeholder 

Engagement Strategy 

developed by 31 March 2013

1 Strategy Cooperative 

Governance 

& Stakeholder 

Engagement 

Framework 

developed

Target achieved No deviations from 

planned target.

New 

Indicator

1 Institutional Framework 

revised by 31 March 2013

1 Framework 1 Draft 

Institutional  

Framework 

Target achieved No deviations from 

planned target.

Facilitate, 

appropriate, high 

quality infrastructure 

which underpins 

and support quality 

visitor experiences

5% 

(Concept)

100%  completion of VIC 

project (ORTIA) by 31 March 

2013

100% 

(Commissioned 

/ Sign-off)

100% 

(Commissioning 

of the project)

No deviations from 

planned target

No deviations from 

planned target.
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New 

Indicator

1 Approved tourism 

Infrastructure Strategy and Plan 

by 31 March 2013

1 1 Approved 

tourism 

Infrastructure 

Strategy and Plan

No deviations from planned 

target

No deviations from planned 

target.

New 

Indicator

1 Approved Infrastructure 

Project Portfolio by 31 March 

2013

1 1 Approved 

Infrastructure 

Project Portfolio 

No deviations from planned 

target

No deviations from planned 

target.v

Visitor requirements 

are met through 

world class product 

provision and 

authentic, unique 

experiences

11 3 existing non-infrastructure 

tourism products identified and 

facilitated for improvement by 

31 March 2013

3 9 existing non-

infrastructure 

tourism products 

identified and 

facilitated for 

improvement

Target exceeded by 6 The target was exceeded due 

to the need to develop 

8 themed maps and 1 Hop-

on Hop-off bus during the 

current year

Participate in Tourism 

Infrastructure 

Planning and 

implementing 

structures in Gauteng

1 1 infrastructure development 

committees/workshops 

attended/affiliated to

1 4 Target exceeded by 3 A number of opportunities 

arose which could be

 leveraged to enhance 

Gauteng position as key 

investment destination.
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SECTION 07



The Board Members are responsible 
for monitoring the preparation and 
the integrity of the finacial statement 
included in the annual report.
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R E P O R T  O N 
T H E  F I N A N C I A L 
S T A T E M E N T S

Introduction

1.  I have audited the financial statements of the 
Gauteng Tourism Authority set out on pages 
104 to 140, which comprise the statement 
of financial position as at 31 March 2013, 
the statement of financial performance, 
statement of changes in net assets and the 
cash flow statement for the year then ended, 
and the notes, comprising a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.

Accounting Officer’s responsibility for the 

financial statements

2.   The board of directors which constitutes the 
accounting authority is responsible for the 
preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with 
the South African Standards of Generally 
Recognised Accounting Practice (SA 
Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of 
the Public Finance Management Act of South 
Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999)(PFMA) and 
for such internal control as the accounting 
officer determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error.

Auditor-General’s responsibility

3.   My responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these financial statements based on my 
audit. I conducted my audit in accordance 
with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 
2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), the 
General Notice issued in terms thereof and 
International Standards on Auditing. Those 
standards require that I comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement.

4.   An audit involves performing procedures to 
obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In 
making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the 
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.

5.  I believe that the audit evidence I have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

6.   In my opinion, the financial statements 
present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Gauteng Tourism 
Authority as at 31 March 2013, and its 
financial performance and cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with the 
SA Standards of GRAP prescribed by the 
National Treasury and the requirements of 
the PFMA.

Emphasis of matter

7.   I draw attention to the matter below. My 
opinion is not modified in respect of these 
matters. 

Restatement of corresponding figures

REPORT OF
 THE AUDITOR-

GENERAL TO 
GAUTENG PROVINCIAL 

LEGISLATURE ON THE 
GAUTENG TOURISM 

AUTHORITY
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8.   As disclosed in Note 23 to the financial 
statements, the corresponding figures for 31 
March 2012 have been restated as a result of 
not applying the principles of GRAP17, which 
states that the residual value and the useful 
life of an asset shall be reviewed at least at 
each reporting date. The entity did not review 
the residual value and the useful life of its 
assets in the previous years.

Additional Matter

Attention to the matter below. My opinion is not 
modified in respect of this matter.

Unaudited supplementary schedules

9.   The supplementary information set out on 
pages 104 to 147 do not form part of the 
financial statements and is presented as 
additional information. I have not audited 
these schedules and, accordingly, I do not 
express an opinion thereon.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY 

REQUIREMENTS

10.  In accordance with the PAA and the General 
Notice issued in terms thereof, I report the 
following findings relevant to performance 
against predetermined objectives, 
compliance with laws and regulations and 
internal control, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion.

 Predetermined objectives 

11. I performed procedures to obtain evidence 
      about the usefulness and reliability of the 
      information in the annual performance report  

 of the Gauteng Tourism Authority as set out  
 on pages 104 to 147 of the annual report.

 12.  The reported performance against 
predetermined objectives was evaluated 
against the overall criteria of usefulness and 
reliability. The usefulness of information in 
the annual performance report relates to 
whether it is presented in accordance with 
the National Treasury’s annual reporting 
principles and whether the reported 
performance is consistent with the planned 
objectives. The usefulness of information 
further relates to whether indicators and 
targets are measurable (i.e. well defined, 
verifiable, specific, measurable and time 
bound) and relevant as required by the 
National Treasury Framework for managing 
programme performance information.

 
   The reliability of the information in respect 

of the selected objectives is assessed to 
determine whether it adequately reflects the 
facts (i.e. whether it is valid, accurate and 
complete). 

13.  There were no material findings on the 
annual performance report concerning the 
usefulness and reliability of the information.

Compliance with laws and regulations

14.   I performed procedures to obtain evidence 
that the entity has complied with applicable 
laws and regulations regarding financial 
matters, financial management and other 
related matters. My findings on material 
non-compliance with specific matters in key 
applicable laws and regulations as set out 
in the General Notice issued in terms of the 
PAA are as follows:

Annual financial statements

15.   Material misstatements of income and 
expenditure in the financial statements 
were identified during the audit and they 
constituted non-compliance with section 
55(1) (a) and (b) of the PFMA. These 
misstatements were subsequently revised 
and corrected to align the presentation, 
accounting policies and the disclosure to 
the requirements of the GRAP, resulting in 
the annual financial statements receiving an 
unqualified audit opinion.

Internal control

16.   The matters reported below under the 
fundamentals of internal control are limited 
to the significant deficiencies that resulted 
in the findings on compliance with laws and 
regulations included in this report.

Financial and performance management

17.   Management did not undertake adequate 
financial statements reviews to ensure 
the accuracy of the annual financial 
statements prior to the submission for 
audit purposes.

Johannesburg
31 July 2013
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S T A T E M E N T  O F 
R E S P O N S I B I L I T Y 
B Y  T H E  M E M B E R S 
O F  T H E  B O A R D

31 March 2013

The Board Members are responsible for 
monitoring the preparation and the integrity of 
the financial statements and related information 
included in the annual report.

Internal and Accounting Controls

In order for the Board to discharge its 
responsibilities, management has developed and 
continues to maintain an effective and efficient 
system of internal control through its policies as 
per Item 3.1 of the Report of the Board.

The system of internal controls is designed 
to provide reasonable assurance as to the 
integrity and reliability of the financial records 
of the Authority and to safeguard and maintain 
accountability of the Authority’s assets.

The Audit Committee and the Board regularly 
review the Risk Management Policy and system 
of internal control and these are revised as 
legislative and operational conditions change.

The system of internal control includes a 
comprehensive budgeting system operating 
within strict deadlines and monitored by 
Management, the Board, the Audit Committee 

and the Internal Auditor.

As part of the system of internal control, the 
Board’s internal audit function conducts the 
internal audit in accordance with the standards 
set by the Institute of Internal Auditors and the 
Auditor-General.

The Board is satisfied that the system of internal 
control is adequate so that the financial records 
and system may be relied upon for preparing 
the financial statements and maintaining 
accountability of assets and liabilities.

The Board applies a system of declaration of 
interest.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board consists of 
three non-executive Board members and meets 
at least two times a year. The committee ensures 
effective communication between the Board, 
Internal Audit and the Auditor-General. The 
Auditor-General and the Internal Auditor have 
free access to the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee operates within the 
framework of formal terms of reference 
approved by the Board and has discharged its 
responsibilities for the year, in compliance with 
its terms of reference approved by the Board. 
The Chairperson, Mr H Moolla, resigned on 14 
December 2012. Ms M Molotsi was appointed as 
Chairperson from March 2013.

Annual Financial Statements

The annual financial statements are prepared 
in accordance with the applicable Statements 
of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice 
as approved directives from the Accountant 
General and incorporate responsible disclosure 
in line with the accounting philosophy of the 
Authority.

The financial statements are based on 
appropriate accounting policies as set out 
in the notes to these financial statements 
and are consistently applied and supported 
by reasonable and prudent judgements and 
estimates within the requirements of the Public 
Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 
1999), as amended.

The financial statements have been prepared on 
the going concern basis of accrual as the Board 

Members have every reason to believe that 
the Board has adequate resources in place to 
continue in operation for the year ahead.

The Board believes that the annual financial 
statements fairly present, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Board 
as at 31 March 2013 and the results of its 
operations and cash flows for the year then 
ended.

Chairperson of the board 
Mr S Mthembu
Signed: July 2013
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R E P O R T 
O F  T H E  B O A R D

31 March 2013

1. Introduction

The Gauteng Tourism Authority (GTA) was 

established as an Authority on 1 April 2000 in 

terms of the Gauteng Tourism Act of 1999 and 

succeeded the Gauteng Tourism Agency, a 

Section 21 Company, as a going concern. The 

Authority received tax clearance from SARS and 

confirmation of deregistration from the Registrar 

of Companies during the 2001/2 financial year. 

The Authority was deregistered for VAT on 

1 October 2005 due to the fact that National 

Treasury and SARS considered section 3(c) 

entities as VAT exempt.

The Gauteng Tourism Act No 10 of 2001 was 

promulgated on 5 February 2002 with the Chief 

Executive Officer as the Accounting Authority in 

terms of section 49 2(b) of the Public Finance 

Management Act No 1 of 1999.

On 7 June 2006, Act No.3 of 2006 came into 

effect, resulting in the establishment of a Board 

which became operational as from 1 February 

2007. The Board then became the Accounting 

Authority of GTA.

The Department of Economic Development MEC 

issued an instruction that the Gauteng Tourism 

Authority (GTA), The Cradle of Humankind 

(COHWHS) and The Dinokeng Trading Entity 

must integrate at a functional and operating 

level to enable the optimal achievement of the 

provincial tourism mandate as from 1 April 2012. 

This instruction is in line with the broader DED 

Agency reconfiguration process that may have 

an impact on the current status and form of the 

combined entity.

Section 7 Annual Financial Statements 
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2. General Review of the State of Financial Affairs

The financial statements reflect the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2013 and the results of its operations for the year then ended 

are summarised as follows:

    Actual Budget  Deviation

    R’000 R’000 %

Income 

Provincial Grant   52,045 52,045 0.0

Registration Fees   135 121 11.8

Interest received   432 700 (38.3)

Other    958 977 (1.9)

Total revenue   53,570 53,843 (0.5)

Expenditure

Destination Management  6,889 7,149 (3.6)

Destination Marketing   8,239 8,285 (0.5)

Corporate Communications   4,417 4,431 (0.3)

Corporate Services incl CA & ICT  14,135 15,383 (8.1)

Finance   3,805 4,658 (18.3)

Research and Strategy  4,252 4,408 (3.5)

Regional Tourism   9,022 9,330 (3.3)

Sub Total

Operational cost   50,759 53,643 (5.4)

Capital expenditure  197 200 (1.7)

Total expenditure   50,955 53,843 (5.4)

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year including Capital Expenditure 2,615 –
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2. General Review – continued

The total operational cost of R50,758,818 is 
R2,884,182 less than budgeted and indicates an 
underspend of -5%. The Authority hereby 
indicates that it has the capacity to spend the 
allocation from the Provincial Department of 
Economic Development, amounting to 
R52,045,000. The net surplus for the year, 
excluding Capital Expenditure of R196,547 is 
R2,811,498 and relates to the accounting 
adjustment of R3,088,076 from previous 
premises rental straight-lining to the expense 
vote to make provision for 124 Main Street 
rental.

The Reserve (Capital and General) as at 
Statement of Financial Position date is 
R6,233,485.

3. Business Activities

3.1 Legislation

The Gauteng Tourism Authority was established 
in terms of the Gauteng Tourism Act No 10 of 
2001 as from 5 February 2002. Prior to this, the 
Gauteng Tourism Act of 1999 was applicable. 
The result of this process is that policies, 
procedures and the delegation of powers were 
revised in order to provide for the transfer of the 
Accounting Authority from the Board to the Chief 
Executive Officer (CEO).
Subsequently, the Gauteng Tourism Act No 3 of 

2006 came into effect on 7 June 2006 stipulating 
that a Board of Directors take over from the CEO 
the responsibilities of the Accounting Authority. 
The Board was appointed on 1 February 2007. 
The GTA is a Schedule 3(c) Provincial Public 
Entity in terms of the PFMA.

The Public Finance Management Act No 1 of 
1999 is implemented resulting in the maintaining 
of and complying to the following required 
documents:

•	 Supply-Chain	Management	Policy
•	 Risk	Management	Policy
•	 Investment	Policy;
•	 Debt	Collection	Policy;
•	 Fraud	Prevention	Plan;	
•	 Asset	Management	Policy;	and
•	 Materiality	Framework	Policy.

3.2  Governance and Management

Until 5 February 2002, the Authority was 
governed by a Board, appointed by the MEC for 
Finance and Economic Development. On 5 
February 2002 the CEO became the Accounting 
Authority with the MEC, being the Executive 
Authority advised by an Advisory Committee. 
The Authority also has an Audit Committee and 
a Procurement Committee. Staff was appointed 
according to the organogram.
As from 1 February 2007, the responsibilities of 
the Accounting Authority were transferred to the 
new Board who became fully functional in the 
2007/8 financial year. At the first Board Meeting 

held on 22 May 2007, a resolution was passed 
that each Board Member must sign a declaration 
of interest at every future board meeting.

The Board:
•	 	Retains	full	control	over	the	entity,	its	

plans and strategy; and
•	 	Acknowledges	its	responsibilities	as	to	

strategy, compliance with internal policies, 
external laws and regulations, effective 
risk management and performance 
measurement, transparency and effective 
communication both internally and 
externally by the entity.

Compliance to the policies, procedures and 
applicable legislation, are strictly monitored. In 
order to improve on internal controls, various 
other policies and procedures were also put in 
place. An Audit Committee is functional. The 
Audit Committee evaluated the effectiveness of 
the internal audit function provided by the firm 
Phandahanu Forensics (Pty) Ltd on an ongoing 
basis with recommendations reflected in the 
minutes of the Audit Committee meetings.

3.3  Planning and Mandate

The Authority follows a strategic approach 
resulting in a Strategic Plan, three year Business 
Plan and MTEF Budget and is in compliance 
with the requirements of the PFMA. This is done 
in accordance with the Annual Planning 
Programme. The Strategic Plan is revised on an 
annual basis, resulting in revising the Business 
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Plan and Annual Performance Plan accordingly. 
The Gauteng

3.3  Planning and Mandate (continued)

Tourism Development Strategy was approved by 
the Gauteng Executive Council during November 
2007 and has been affected in the 2008/9 
financial year. 

These documents guide the Authority throughout 
the decision making process in order to meet 
the Authority’s Vision and Mission namely:

Vision:  To be the strategic leader of tourism 
in Gauteng.

Mission:  To develop, promote, co-ordinate and 
facilitate responsible and sustainable 
tourism in Gauteng, to create a world 
class destination that attracts 
business visitors and all other tourists 
to the Province, benefits our people 
and contributes to economic growth.

3.4  CEO’s Responsibility

The CEO is responsible for monitoring the 
preparation and the integrity of the financial 
statements and related information included in 
this report.

Management has developed and continues to 
maintain a sound accounting system and 
internal controls. During the 2009/10 financial 
year, internal controls, policies and procedures 
were adjusted to incorporate the Board in terms 

of the new Delegation of Authority as approved 
by the Board. The Board and CEO reviews the 
operations of the Authority on a regular basis in 
conjunction with the Internal Auditor and the Audit 
Committee.
The internal controls include a risk-based 
system of internal accounting and administrative 
controls designed to provide reasonable 
assurance that assets are safeguarded and that 
transactions are executed and recorded in 
accordance with generally accepted business 
practices and the Authority’s policies and 
procedures. These controls are implemented by 
trained, skilled personnel with an appropriate 
segregation of duties and monitored by 
management and include a comprehensive 
budgeting and reporting system operating within 
strict deadlines and an appropriate control 
framework.

The financial statements are prepared in 
accordance with applicable accounting 
standards as approved and incorporate 
responsible disclosure in line with the 
accounting philosophy of the Authority. The 
financial statements are based on appropriate 
accounting policies consistently applied and 
supported by reasonable and prudent 
judgements and estimates.

During this financial year the Authority’s 
Strategic Plan, Business Plan and Annual 
Performance Plan were revised and 
subsequently implemented. An effective system 
of monitoring and evaluation was introduced to 
ensure ongoing progress towards reaching the 
targets set out in the above-mentioned plans. 

4.  Tourism Development Fund

The total amount spent on projects of a 
developmental nature was R18,049,690 which 
was 35% of the DED grant of R52,045,000 
received. 
The development fund expenditure per business 
unit was as follows:

   R

Destination Management  5,023,435
Corporate Communications 1,219,039
Destination Marketing : 2,958,381
Research and ICT: 1,475,875
Regional Tourism: 5,147,207
Corporate Services incl 
Corporate Governance 1,357,722
Finance 868,030

Total  R18,049,690

5.  Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements for the Gauteng 
Tourism Authority for the financial year ended 31 
March 2013 are hereby approved.

Mr S Mthembu
Chairman of the Board
Signed: July 2013 

124 Main Street
Johannesburg
2001

Fax. 011-639 1700
www.visitgauteng.net
Tel. 011-085 2500
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R E P O R T  O F  T H E 
A U D I T  C O M M I T T E E
 

31 March 2013

We are pleased to present our report for the 

financial year ended 31 March 2013.

Audit Committee Members and 
Attendance

The Audit Committee consists of the members 

listed hereunder and met six times during the

year under review.

Name of Number of

Member Meetings Attended

Mr H Moolla 

(Chairman) (resigned December 2012) 5

Mr S Mthembu (appointed March 2013) 1

Ms N Majokweni 2

Ms M Molotsi (Chairperson from March 2013) 5

Ms B Mbolekwa (appointed March 2013) 1

 

Audit Committee Responsibility

The Audit Committee’s responsibilities arise 

from section 51(1)(a) if the Public Finance 

Management Act (“the Act”) and Treasury 

Regulations 27.1.8 and 27.1.10. The Audit 

Committee also adopted formal terms of 

reference as its audit committee charter and 

regulates its affairs in compliance with this 

charter.

The Ef fectiveness of Internal Control

The system of internal control is effective 

according to the various reports of the 

Internal Auditors, the Audit Report on the 

Annual Financial Statements and management 

letter of the Auditor-General. All reports of 

Auditors are discussed at the committee 

meetings and applicable resolutions are 

taken.

Internal Audit

The internal audit function is outsourced 

Phandahanu Forensics (Pty) Ltd. Audits were 

performed in accordance with an approved 

Risk Management Plan and Three Year 

Rolling Audit Plan. All the reports issued 

were discussed between the firm and the 

relevant business unit before finalisation. 

It is the CEO’s responsibility to ensure that 

recommendations are implemented.

The Quality of Management and Monthly/

Quarterly Reports Submitted in Terms of 

the Act

The Committee discusses the content and 

quality of monthly and quarterly reports 

prepared and issued by the CEO.

The Chief Financial Of ficer

Mr Yaseen Asmal was appointed as the 

Authority’s Chief Financial Officer as from 

1 September 2012. The Finance Manager 

was appointed as acting CFO until his 

appointment.

Evaluation of Financial Statements

The Audit Committee has reviewed and 

discussed the audited annual financial 

statements, the Auditor-General’s 

management letter, management responses 

and the Auditor-General’s final report for the 

2012/13 financial year.

Ms M Molotsi
Chairperson of the Audit Committee  

Date: July 2013
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S T A T E M E N T  O F  F I N A N C I A L  P O S I T I O N
As At 31 March 2013

  2012/2013 2011/2012 

  Actual Actual

 Note R’000 R’000

 

ASSETS   

Current assets    9,276   14,229 

Cash and cash equivalents 11.5 8,902 9,659

Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions 3 304 3,915

Other receivables from non-exchange transactions  – –

Prepayments 4 71 655

Non-current assets  407 994

Property, plant and equipment 2.1 407 986

Intangible assets 2.2 – 8

TOTAL ASSETS  9,684 15,223

LIABILITIES   

Current liabilities  3,450 11,801

Trade and other payables 5.1 3,150 11,801

Payments received in advance 5.1 300  – 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  3,450 11,801

NET ASSETS   

CAPITAL AND RESERVES 12.1 6,233 3,422

Accumulated surplus 12.1 6,233 3,422

TOTAL NET ASSETS AND LIABILITIES  9,684 15,223
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S T A T E M E N T  O F  F I N A N C I A L  P E R F O R M A N C E
For the Year Ended 31 March 2013

  2012/13 2012/13 2012/13 2011/12 2011/12 2011/12

  Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance

 Note R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

REVENUE       

Non-exchange transactions Government grant 6 52,045 52,045 – 61,488 61,488 –

Interest earned – external investment 6.2 700 432 (268) 680 580 (100)

Other income 6.1 1,098 1,093 (5) 7,924 7,706 (218)

TOTAL REVENUE  53,843 53,570 (273) 70,092 69,774 (318)

EXPENDITURE       

Employee related costs 

(incl. Remuneration of Executive Committee 7.1 31,620 30,173 (1,447) 28,394 28,263 (131)

Depreciation 7.2 454 425 (29) 425 429 –

Amoritisation 7.3 46 8 (38) 28 23 (5)

Repairs and maintenance 7.4 1,407 1,408 1 1,099 1,086 (13)

General expenses 7.5 19,769 18,395 (1373) 39,778 40,009 231

TOTAL EXPENSES  53,295 50,409 (2,886) 69,724 69,809 82

OTHER GAINS/LOSSES

Loss on disposal of assets 7.6 348 349 1 20 7 (13)

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FROM OPERATIONS  200 2,811 (2,611) 348 (43) (391)

Surplus/(Deficit) for the period  200 2,811 (2,611) 348 (43) (391)
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  Accumulated)  2010/2011

  Surplus/(Deficit

 Notes R’000  R’000

Balance at 01 April 2011  3,372 – 3,372

    

Balance brought forward  3,372 – 3,372

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year  (43) – (43)

Prior period error 23 93 – 93

Balance at 31 March 2012 restated  3,422 – 3,422

Balance at 01 April 2012  3,422 – 3,422

Balance brought forward  3,422 – 3,422

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year  2,811 – 2,811

Balance at 31 March 2013  6,233 – 6,233

S T A T E M E N T  O F  C H A N G E S  I N  N E T  A S S E T S
For the Year Ended 31 March 2013
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S T A T E M E N T  O F  C A S H  F L O W S
For the Year Ended 31 March 2013

  2012/2013 2011/2012 

 Note R’000 R’000

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  (561) 4,271

Cash receipts from customers  57,334 65,020

Cash paid to suppliers and employees  (58,326) (69,871)

Cash generated/utilised from operations 11.1 (992) (4,851)

Interest received 6.2 432 580

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  (197) (243)

Addition to property,plan and equipment 11.2 (197) (243)

Property, plant and equipment disposed    

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  – –

Increase/(Decrease) in general reserve fund  – –

Net cash flow from financing activities  – –

Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (757) (4,514)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 11.4 9,659 14,173

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 11.5 8,902 9,659
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
  
1.1 Basis of Preparation
  The annual financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis in accordance with the effective Standards of Generally 

Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) including any interpretations and directives of such statements issued by the Accounting 
Standards Board and in accordance with Section 91(1) of the Public Finance Management Act, (Act No 1 of 1999).

1.1.1 The following GRAP Standards have been approved but not yet effective:
 

Standard Effective Date Applicable

GRAP 18 – Segment Reporting Unknown N/A

GRAP 20 – Related Party Disclosures 01 April 2012 Yes

GRAP 25 – Employee Benefits Unknown Yes

GRAP 105 – Transfers of Functions between Entities under Common Control 01 April 2012 Yes

GRAP 106 – Transfer of Functions between Entities not under Common Control 01 April 2012 Yes

GRAP 107 – Mergers 01 April 2012 Yes

1.2 Going Concern
  These financial statements were prepared based on the expectation that the entity will continue to operate as a going concern for at least 

the next 12 months. The annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis.
 

1.3 Currency
 The financial statements are presented in South African Rand which is the Authority’s functional currency. See Note 15 to the Financial 
 Statements.
 

1.4 Revenue Recognition
  Revenue was derived from Government grants, donated assets (non-exchange transactions) as other income (exchange transactions) and 

interest earned (external investment). Government grants are recognised on a systematic basis, either on the date of receipt or receivable 

N O T E S  T O  T H E  A N N U A L  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S 
For the Year Ended 31 March 2013
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as confirmed by the Department of Economic Development whilst other exchange revenue and interest earned refer to revenue and interest 
that accrues to the entity for services rendered and interest on external investment and are recognised when it can be measured reliably. 

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.5 Government Grants
  Government grants are recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Authority and these benefits can be 

measured reliably. The grants are recognised to the extent that there are no further obligations arising from the receipt of the grant. 
 

1.6 Leasing
 Operating leases
  Lease payments by the Authority as the lessee under an operating lease are recognised as expenses in the statement of financial 

performance on a straight line basis over the lease period.
 

1.7 Retirement Benefit Costs/Employee Benefits (Long/Short Term)
 Provident Fund
  The Authority operates a defined contribution provident fund for all its permanent employees, the assets of which are held in a separate 

trustee administered fund subject to the Pension Fund Act, 1956 as amended. Payments are charged to the Statement of Financial 
Performance in the year to which they relate. The Authority only has short term employee benefit costs and is recognised during the period 
in which the employee renders the related services.

1.8 Property, plant and equipment
 Initial recognition and measurement
  Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets that are expected to be used during more than one year. These items are 

initially recognised in the Statement of Financial Position when it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated 
with the item will flow to the Authority and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. The Authority does not componentise any asset.

 Depreciation
  Depreciation commences when the item is available for use and is calculated on the straight line method to write off the cost of each asset 

over its estimated useful life as follows:
 
 Furniture and Fittings  7.5% – 15% Per Annum
 Equipment  12.5% – 20% Per Annum
 Computer equipment  16.5% – 33% Per Annum
 Leasehold improvements  10% Per Annum
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.8 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
 Subsequent measurement
  Subsequent to initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

impairment losses. All assets are reassessed annually to determine its useful life. Assets received as donation are carried at cost as per 
the donator invoice less accumulated depreciation.

 Subsequent expenditure
  Subsequent cost on capitalised tangible assets is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefit in the specific asset. All 

other expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance as an expense when incurred.

  The effect on the current year is to decrease the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment by the annual depreciation charge. 
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed annually before 31 March based on physical inspection of each 
asset by the IT and Office Manager. De-recognition on disposal is executed in terms of the Authority’s Asset Management Policy whereby 
profits or losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with its carrying 
amount and are accounted for as such in the Statement of Financial Performance. 

1.9 Intangible assets
 Initial recognition and measurement
  Intangible assets comprising of computer software purchased are identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance and are 

recognised in the Statement of Financial Position in the month of acquiring the asset only when it is probable that the expected future 
economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliable. Amortisation 
commences when the asset is available for use and is calculated on the straight line method to write off the cost of each asset over its 
estimated useful life as follows:

 Amortisation
 Computer Software 50% Per Annum
 Expenditure on research is recognised as an expense when incurred.

 Subsequent measurement
  Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. All 

intangible assets are reassessed annually to determine its useful life.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.9 Intangible assets (continued)
 Subsequent expenditure  
  Subsequent cost on capitalised intangible assets is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefit in the specific asset. All 

other expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance as an expense when incurred.

1.10 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
  At each reporting date, the Authority physically reviews all of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any 

indication that those assets may be impaired. In the event of impairment, the carrying amount is reduced with the impairment loss and the 
impairment loss recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance. 

1.11 Contingencies/Other Liabilities (Provisions/Accruals)/Other Assets
 Any known or anticipated contingent liability and asset that may occur are declared in the notes to the Annual Financial Statements.

   The only contingencies applicable to the Authority are provisions and accruals. Provisions are recognised when the Authority has a 
present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that this will result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be estimated 
reliably. 

  Accruals are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or supplied but have not been paid, including amounts due 
to employees for accrued vacation pay. Accruals are reported as part of trade and other payables in the Statement of Financial Position. 
The Authority does not recognise a contingent asset and contingent liability but discloses details of any contingencies in the notes to the 
Annual Financial Statements.

1.12 Financial Instruments
  Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Authority’s Statement of Financial Position when the Authority becomes a 

party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

  Upon initial recognition the Authority classifies financial instruments as financial liabilities, financial assets or residual interests in 
conformity with the substance of the contractual arrangement and to the extent that an instrument satisfies the definitions of a financial 
liability, a financial asset or a residual interest. The Authority’s financial instruments consist of cash and bank balances, trade and other 
receivables and trade and other payables and are measured at cost at initial recognition. Refer to Note 19 of the Notes to the Annual 
Financial Statements.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.12.1 Cash and Cash Equivalent
  Cash and cash equivalents for purposes of the Cash flow Statement and Statement of Financial Position comprise cash at banks and cash 

on hand. Cash and cash equivalents are held with the Reserve Bank and the Authority’s appointed banker. Cash and cash equivalents are 
measured at amortised cost.

1.12.2 Trade and other receivables
  Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at cost and subsequently stated at amortised cost. All trade and other receivables are 

assessed at least annually for possible impairment.

1.12.3 Trade and other payables
 Trade and other payables are initially measured at cost and subsequently stated at amortised cost.

1.13 General Reserve Fund
 Accumulated surpluses or deficits are taken to the General Reserve Fund.
 

1.14 Comparatives
  Budget information in accordance with GRAP 1 and 24, has been provided in a separate disclosure note to these annual financial 

statements. Where necessary comparative figures are adjusted to conform to changes in presentation in the current year. Prior period 
comparative amounts are also reclassified and restated, unless such comparative reclassification and/or restatement is not required by a 
Standard of GRAP. The nature and reason for reclassifications and restatements are also disclosed.

 

1.15 Irregular, Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure
  Irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure incurred in contravention of, or not in accordance with, a requirement of 

any particular legislation, including the Public Finance Management Act of 1999 (as amended by Act of 1999).
 

1.16 Related Party Transactions
  The Authority operates within the auspices of its parent organisation, the Department of Economic Development who is primarily 

responsible for funding and is therefore regarded as its related party. Other related parties are Cradle of Humankind, Dinokeng, GEDA, 
Gauteng Gambling Board, Gauteng Film Commission, GGDA and Gauteng Liquor Board.

  The above other related parties are entities within the same sphere of government and under common control of the Department of 
Economic Development.  
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.16 Related Party Transactions (continued)
  The Authority has internal controls in place to aid in the identification of related parties. All prospective service providers must complete a 

declaration of interest form prior to appointment. See Notes to the Annual Financial Statements No 16. 

1.17 Budget Information in the Financial Statements
  As per GRAP 1.12, a comparison of the budget and actual amounts for the reporting period is included in the financial statements. The 

Authority’s financial statements and budget are on the same basis of accounting which is a pre-requisite for this inclusion. GRAP 24 to 
be effective on 1 April 2012 stipulates that entities may elect to make available its approved budget subject to disclosing the reasons for 
material differences between the budget and actual amounts. The Authority is of the opinion that disclosure of budget amounts compared 
to the actual amounts arising from execution of the budget may enhance the user of the financial statements’ understanding and may also 
be used as a performance measure indicator.

1.18 Prepayments
  The Authority recognises prepayments made in respect of exchange transactions for next financial year in the Statement of Financial 

Position. Prepayments are reviewed at each Statement of Financial Position date and adjusted if necessary.

1.19 Events after Reporting Date
  Any known or anticipated event that may occur after the reporting period is declared in the notes to the financial statements. See Notes to 

the Annual Financial Statements No. 17.

1.20 Borrowing Costs/Financial Costs
 In terms of the PFMA, the Authority is prohibited from borrowing. 

1.21 Deposits
 The Authority recognises deposits made in respect of exchange transactions in the statement of financial position as current assets. 

1.22 Staff Advances/Loans
  The Authority recognises staff advances in the statement of financial position as current assets and any interest if applicable in the 

statement of financial performance. These advances are granted in terms of the Authority’s HR Policy on Staff Loans and/or Advances.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.23 Financial Risk Management
 The Authority’s activities expose it to the following risks:
  – Credit Risk
 – Liquidity risk; and
 – Market risk

  The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Risk Management Framework of the Authority. The Board 
has established the Audit Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Authority’s risk management policies. 
The Committee reports regularly to the Members of the Board on its activities. The Authority’s risk management policies and systems 
are established to identify and analyse the risks the Authority faces, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and 
adherence to limits. The Authority reports on its risks on a monthly basis in terms of the Board approved Risk Register. These reports are 
consolidated into quarterly reports and presented to the Audit Committee as a standing item on the Audit Committee Agenda.

1.24 Foreign Exchange Gains/Losses
  Foreign exchange gains/losses arising from international payments are recognised in the Authority’s  Statement of Financial Performance 

in the period in which they occur. Exchange differences arise when the rates at settlement of creditors are different from those initially 
recorded and expensed. Transactions in foreign currency are accounted for at the spot rate of the exchange ruling on the date of the 
transaction. 

1.25 Assets, Liabilities, Revenues and Expenses Off-setting
  Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses are not to be off-set, except where off-setting is either required or permitted by a Standard of 

GRAP.
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  Computer Equipment Furniture & Motor Leasehold Total

  Equipment  Fittings Vehicles Improvements 

  R R R R R R

2. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

 Year ended 31 March 2013
 Opening net carrying amount 333,831 44,923 109,120 – 497,631 985,506
 Gross carrying amount 1,816,816 765,117 1,802,409 – 1,696,030 6,080,372
 Accumulated depreciation (1,482,985) (720,194) (1,693,289) – (1,198,399) (5,094,866)

 Additions 36,190 – 160,357 – – 196,547

 Disposals (9,066) (8,482) (3,902) – (328,028) (349,478)
 Cost 1,001,113 550,686 784,158 – 1,696,030 4,031,987
 Depreciation charge – disposals (992,047) (542,205) (780,256) – (1,368,002) (3,682,510)

 Depreciation charge (162,958) (21,657) (71,156) – (169,603) (425,373)
 Closing net carrying amount 197,998 14,784 194,422 –  407,201
 Gross carrying amount 851,893 214,431 1,178,608 – – 2,244,932
 Accumulated depreciation (653,895) (199,646) (984,186) – – (1,837,728)

 Year ended 31 March 2012      
 Opening net carrying amount 240,852 67,076 177,711 – 667,234 1,152,874
 Gross carrying amount 1,740,997 757,926 1,776,976 – 1,696,030 5,971,929
 Accumulated depreciation (1,500,145) (690,850) (1,599,265) – (1,028,796) (4,819,055)

 Additions 235,663 7,500 – – – 243,163
 Donations – – 25,899   25,899
 Disposals (7,478) – – – – (7,478)
 Cost (159,841) (309) (407) – – (160,620)
 Depreciation charge – disposals 152,363 309 470 – – 153,142

 Depreciation charge (135.203) (29,653) (94,494) – (169,603) (428,953)

 Closing carrying amount 333,831 44,923 109,120 – 497,631 985,506
 Gross carrying amount 1,816,816 765,117 1,802,409 – 1,696,030 6,080,372

 Accumulated depreciation (1,482,985) (720,194) (1,693,289) – (1,198,399) (5,094,866)
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    2012/13 2011/12

   R R

2. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

2.2 Intangible assets 

 Computer software  

 Opening net carrying amount  8,391 31,207

      Gross carrying amount  211,998 216,770

      Accumulated amortisation  (203,607) (185,563)

 

 Amortisation  (8,391) (22,816)

 Disposals   – 4,772

 Amortisation – disposals  –  (4,772)

 Closing net carrying amount 31 March  – 8,391

      Gross carrying amount  211,998 211,998

      Accumulated amortisation  (211,998) (203,607)

3.  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES  303,720 3,915,383

 (Exchange transactions)  

3.1  Trade receivables

 Trade and other receivables from exchange  3.1.1 303,720 3,915,383

 Transactions incl. water and other deposits 

 Trade debtors from non-exchange transactions  – –

3.1.1  Deposits  303,720 303,720

 Deposit: Water bottles from exchange transactions  1,620 1,620

 Deposit: Rental premises from exchange transactions  302,100 302,100
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   2012/13 2011/12

   R R

4.  PREPAYMENTS  71,133 654,781

 SAACI  950 –

 National Circulation  6,966 17,469

 Immix  – 4,519

  Independent Newspapers  235 8,679

 VIP Licence  14,782 13,815

 Pastel  643 1,934

 Global Insight  – 44,935

 Barkocap  – 5,700

 Nashua  – 6,983

 SABC  375 250

 Nimrod  – 160,357

 Cloak Management  – 390,140

 HIS Regional Data  47,182 –

5. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES  3,450,309 11,800,903

5.1  Trade and other payables from exchange transactions  1,826,696 10,192,691

  Thirteenth Cheque  384,575 351,529

  Allowed accumulated vacation leave  1,239,038 1,256,683

5.1.1  Reconciliation of Accruals  

 Accrual for Leave Pay – Balance as at 1 April  1,256,683 1,377,249

 Unused amounts reversed  (17,645) (120,567)

 Balance as at 31 March  1,239,038  1,256,683

 Accrual for 13th Cheque – Balance as at 1 April  351,529 300,000

 Additional accrual  33,046 51,529

 Balance as at 31 March  384,575 351,529
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   R R

6.  REVENUE  53,570,316 69,773,531

 Revenue comprises revenue received in respect of:  

  Non-exchange transactions – Government Grants  52,045,000 61,488,000

 Income from Investments 6.2  431,882 579,642

  Other Income – exchange transactions 6.1  1,093,434 7,679,990

  Donations – Fixed Assets  – 25,899

6.1  Other Income – exchange transactions  1,093,434 7,679,990

6.1.1  Comprises of main income budget votes  179,039 3,221,827

 Dept of Sport  – 800,000

 Co-exhibitor Fees  – 2,219,476

 Registration Fees  131,834 139,020

 Registration Other  3,473 2,226

 Study Assistance Refund  13,178 32,845

 Telephone Staff Refund  30,554 28,259

6.1.2  Other: Int. VAT; Insurance; Nehawu and CoH  914,395 4,458,163

6.2  Income from Investments  431,882 579,642

 Interest from Corporation for Public Deposits  259,483 250,806

 Interest from ABSA and FNB  172,400 328,608

 Interest from Staff Loans  – 229

Section 7 Annual Financial Statements 



129

   2012/13 2011/12

   R R

7.  EXPENDITURE  50,758,818 69,816,930

7.1  Staff costs (incl. Wellness, Labour, Recruitment, OD & Study)  

 Wages and salaries  30,172,754 28,262,778

 Basic salaries  11,111,354 9,870,295

 Performance awards  2,194,290 2,854,755

  Periodic payments  1,624,098 1,272,934

 Other non-pensionable allowance  2,713,208 1,254,804

 Temporary Staff  143,756 264,405

  Leave payments  14,638 61,972

 Resignation Leave  98,513 119,594

 Overtime pay  222,277 651,299

 CEO and Senior Manager’s Emoluments  6,168,656 6,363,502

 Defined pension fund contribution plan expense 7 2,901,116 2,519,980

 Social contributions (Employer’s contribution)  

 Medical  2,284,158 2,114,047

 Unemployment Insurance Fund  196,307 88,791

 Insurance (Group Life) (incl in Defined pension fund)  – 290,500

 Other salary related costs (Accrual for Leave pay/  231,071 199,503

 Period payments as well as Empl Wellness, Labour, Recruitment and Study Assistance)

  Fees for Non-executive Board Members  269,313 179,625

7.2  Depreciation  425,373 428,951

 Plant, machinery and equipment  21,657 29,653

 Computer equipment and peripherals  162,957 135,202

 Office furniture and fittings  71,156 94,493

 Lease Furniture and Fittings  169,603 169,603

7.3  Amortisation  8,391 22,816
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   2012/13 2011/12

   R R

7.  EXPENDITURE (continued)

7.4  Repairs and maintenance

  Repairs, maintenance and running costs  1,407,719 1,085,589

      Plant, machinery and equipment  195,659 257,479

      Computer equipment and peripherals  1,134,838 741,525

      Office furniture and fittings  77,222 86,585

7.5  General expenses  18,395,103 40,009,316

 Advertising as per Treasury template (GTA Marketing)  4,390,924 15,468,586

 Admin fees  29,667 23,080

 Audit fees – Statutory  588,804 486,400

 Audit fees – Internal  355,437 514,150

 Bank Charges  28,505 23,347

 Conference and delegations  1,681,267 1,409,011

 Entertainment  140,942 194,237

 Electricity  898,254 342,258

 Insurance  136,892 161,505

 Legal fees  115,714 153,444

 Parking Official  401,213 21,202

 Postage  8,909 15,148

 Printing and stationery  240,473 137,639

 Rental of buildings  1,389,952 6,337,246

 Cleaning services  366,915 –

 Rental of equipment  83,802 76,818

 Rental of vehicles  122,271 72,094

 Security costs  388,788 13,277

 Subscriptions and publications  244,140 206,941

 Telephone costs  221,334 432,901

 Training and Development  1,261,436 1,104,397

 Other  5,299,463 12,815,634

 (Including R17,163 Foreign Exchange loss for current year)
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    2012/13 2011/12

    R R

7.  EXPENDITURE (continued)

7.6  Other gains/losses  

 Loss on disposal of assets (Property, plant and equipment)  349,477 7,479

 See Notes to the Annual Financial Statements No 2.2.

8. CEO AND SENIOR MANAGER’S EMOLUMENTS 

 (Already included in Staff costs 6)  7,630,167 7,669,392

   Bonuses and Provident Cell/Medical 

    Performance Fund Aid  

  Salaries Payments Contributions Contributions  Total  

     R   R   R   R  R

 Executive Staff Members 

 D Robertson: CEO 862,692 241,875 – – 1,104,567

  M Moeti: Destination Management 770,676 154,255 57, 801 34,434 1,017,165

  MN Kubeka: Gauteng Convention Bureau 770,676 154,255 57,801 34,434 1,017,165

 KN Gaoganediwe: Destination and Corporate Communication 943,548 37,328 – – 980,876

  S Moeketsi: Corporate Services 770,676 154,255 57,801 34,434 1,017,165

  RA du Toit: Acting Chief Financial Officer until 31 August 2012 74,107 – – – 74,107

 Y Asmal: Chief Financial Officer from 3 September 2012 408,333 – – – 408,333

  KS Sithole: Research and Strategy 797,272 155,314 57,801 1,242 1,011,628

  M Kona:Regional Tourism 770,676 136,248 57,801 34,434 999,159

 Year ended 31/03/2013 6,168,656 1,033,529 289,004 138,978 7,630,167

 Year ended 31/03/2012 6,363,502 768,420 322,113 215,357 7,669,392

 Note: 50% of the CEO and CFO remuneration was reimbursed by CoH and Dinokeng. The amounts were R862,692 and R408,333 respectively.
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    2012/13 2011/12

    R R

9.  GTA BOARD MEMBERS COSTS (Already included in 6.1)

 Board Member Emoluments/Claims/UIF  269,313 179,625

 Mr K Mthembu (Chairperson)  84,375 63,175

 Ms N Majokweni (Deputy Chairperson)  37,168 20,250 

 Mr J Ntintili (Deceased May 2012)  – 18,000

 M H Moolla (Chairperson Audit Comm)  58,940 51,200 

 Ms M Molotsi  42,630 12,000 

 Mr D Moshapalo  46,200 15,000

10.  CONTINGENT AND OTHER LIABILITIES (ACCRUALS)    

  As from 1 April 2009 when GRAP 19 became effective, provisions for accrued leave and thirteenth cheque were reclassified retrospectively as accruals 

under Trade and other payables as to ensure compliance with GRAP 19.17. Refer to Accounting Policies 1.12.

 Accruals were made in the following manner:

  –  Leave Pay is set at 100% of all outstanding allowed accumulated leave at Statement of Financial Position date;

  –   Thirteenth Cheque is made for January to March and is calculated on the actual December payout of the current financial year divided by four. 

  No Contingent and/or Other Assets existed or were reported on in the period under review.

    2012/13 2011/12

    R ‘000 R ‘000

11.  NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT  

11.1 Reconciliation of net (deficit)/surplus before taxation to cash (utilised)/generated from operations  

 Net (deficit)/surplus for the year (From Trial Balance)  2,811 (43)

 Adjusted for:  

  Depreciation  425 429

  Amortisation  8 23

  Donated Assets  – (26)

  (Gain)/loss on disposal  349 7

  Investment income  (432) (580)

 Operating (deficit)/surplus before working capital changes  3,163 (190)
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    2012/13 2011/12

    R’000 R’000

11.  NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)  

11.1 Reconciliation of net (deficit)/surplus before taxation to 

 cash (utilised)/generated from operations (continued)

 Working capital changes  

  Decrease/(Increase) in accounts receivable  (4,195) (4,148)

  (Decrease)/Increase in accounts payable  (8,351) (513)

 Cash utilised in operations  (992) (4,851)

11.2  Adjustments to property, plant and equipment  

 Additions to property, plant and equipment  197 243

 Computer equipment  36 236

 Equipment  160 –

 – Furniture and Fittings  – 8

11.3  Adjustment to intangible assets  

 Additions to computer software   – –

11.4  Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  9,659 14,173

 Current bank account  7,866 1,631

 CPD Reserve Bank Account  1,786 12,536

 Petty cash  6 6

11.5  Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year  8,902 9,659

 Current bank account  4,850 7,866

 Corporation for Public Deposits Account (restricted use)  4,046 1,786

 Petty cash  6 6



GAUTENG TOURISM |  ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013

Section 7 Annual Financial Statements 

12.  NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

12.1  Reserves

 The Accumulated Surplus reflects net assets and includes retained income for future  use amounting to R6,233,485.

 

13.  RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

  The Authority has made provision for a Liberty Life Group Provident Fund for GTA personnel. 

  The Authority contributes 100% of the amount payable for provident fund for staff who join the scheme at 7.5% and 50% of the amount payable for staff 

who join is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance at 15%. The Liberty Life Provident Fund is governed by the Pension Fund 

(Act No. 24 of 1956) and incorporated in the GTA Staff Policies.

 

14.  OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS/NON-CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

  At the Statement of Financial Position date the GTA had outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

   2012/13 2011/12

   R ‘000 R ‘000

 Not later than 1 year – 3,888 Office Rental Lease

   – 84 Equipment Lease

   520 – Internet Telco Services

   82 51 Motor Vehicle (1)

   – 45 Motor Vehicle (2)

   110 – MTN, Vodacom Autopage Agreements 

   144 – Smart Boxes

 Later than 1 year but not – 8,892 Office Rental Lease

 later than 5 years 872 – Internet Telco Services

   239 – Motor Vehicle (1)

   – 45 Motor Vehicle (2)

 Later than 5 years – 0 Office Rental Lease

   7 – MTN, Vodacom Autopage Agreements 

   2,034 13,005   
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14.  OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS/NON-CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (continued)

  The photocopy machines rental from Nashua from 01 February 2006 at R6,983.50 per month for three years has been removed from this note in the 

2012/13 financial year. The agreement is automatically renewed at the of the term but can be terminated by any or both parties by giving 
90 days notice. 

  The Authority also entered into a three year Internet Solutions Telco Service agreement at a fixed monthly cost of R47,602.48 excluding 
variables and is terminable after twelve months with the notice period set at ninety days prior to termination. The Authority does not have 
the option to acquire the equipment.

  Office space rented from Broll from 01 May 2005 for a period of 9 years, 11 months was terminated during the 2012/13 financial year 
without any penalties or interest due to the landlord.

  The Authority rents two vehicles from ABSA from 15 March 2012 at R6,830.05 and from 7 February 2008 at R3,710.43 per month fixed for 
five years with buyback option after the term. The lease agreements bear no contingent lease payments. The second vehicle was returned 
to ABSA after the contract expired in February 2013. Negotiations are underway to secure another vehicle for the Authority. The lease 
agreements do not impose any restrictions. The Authority contracted with MTN and Vodacom for official cell phones for the CEO and 
Senior Managers. The expiry date for the current contract is March 2014. The Autopage contracts for the GTA Drivers will expire in May 
2014.

  The Authority also entered into an agreement with Amandla Omaya Holdings for the supply and servicing of 30 Smart Boxes whereby 
visitor numbers are monitored. The agreement expires in February 2014 with the option to extend for a further year. 

 

15.  PRESENTATION CURRENCY
  The financial statement figures have been stated in Rand terms as this is the Authority’s functional currency. All amounts have been 

rounded to the nearest one thousand Rand (R1,000) in the statements. The detailed Statement of Performance (Income Statement – 
Annexure 1) is stated in Rand terms.

 

16.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
 Transactions
  The Authority’s main related party is the Department of Economic Development who is primarily responsible for funding. Other related 

parties during the period under review were Cradle of Humankind, Dinokeng and GGDA. All related parties are within the same sphere of 
government and/or under common control of the Department.
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  2012/13 2011/12 2012/13  2011/12

  Payable Payable Receivable Receivable 

  R ‘000 R ‘000 R ‘000 R ‘000

16.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

 Transactions

 Department of Economic Development  –   –   52 045   61 488 

 Cradle of Humankind  –   –   2 454   4 714 

 Dinokeng  –   –   2 239   886 

 GGDA  1   –   –   – 

 GEDA  –   26   –   – 

 Balances (Cradle of Humankind)  –   –   –   3 612 

 There were no outstanding balances at Statement of Financial Position date.  

  All related parties are within the same sphere of government and under common control of the Department of Economic Development.

 Balances
 There were no outstanding balances at Statement of Financial Position date.

 

17.  EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE 
  The Department of Economic Development is currently in a process of realignment which may have and impact on the existence of the 

Authority in it’s current form. The Authority, COHKWHS and Dinokeng is in the process of integration. The aim for completion is set for 1 
April 2014.

 

18.  SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS
  The Authority fulfill ing its mandate under the auspices of the Provincial Government, is reliant on Government as its major source of 

revenue. It therefore does not anticipate any interest rate risk caused by fluctuating interest rates as it does not operate a system of 
debtors of significant value. The Authority also manages its risks through a Risk Management Plan.
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19.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
 The Authority’s financial instruments at amortised cost are summarised as follows:

     2013 
     R

 Assets Trade and other receivables  
  Trade receivables  303,720
  Prepayments   71,133
  Cash and bank   8,901,740

  Total   9,276,593

 Liabilities Trade and other liabilities
  Trade payables   1,396,790
  Payment received in advance  300,000
  Staff leave accrual   1,239,038
  Thirteenth cheque accrual  384,575
  Other creditors  129,906

  Total   3,450,309

     2012 
     R

 Assets Trade and other receivables  
  Trade receivables   3,915,383
  Prepayments  654,781
  Cash and bank   9,658,831

  Total   14,228,995

 Liabilities Trade and other liabilities 
  Trade payables   7,041,669
  Payment received in advance   –
  Staff leave accrual   1,256,683
  Thirteenth cheque accrual  351,529
  Other creditors   3,088,076

  Total   11,800,903
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19.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

19.1  Financial Risk Management
  The Authority’s exposure to credit, liquidity and market risks is dealt with in terms of its risk management policies and systems in place as 

stipulated in accounting policy 1.24.

 During the period under review, no impairment, write offs and/or credit losses were identified.

20.  IRREGULAR, FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE 

     2013 

     R

 Opening balance    1,544,985

 Irregular expenditure 2012 and Board ratification 2013   (1,544,985)

 Balance   –

     2012 

     R

 Opening balance   –

 Irregular expenditure 2012   1,544,985

    –

 Balance   1,544,985

 The expenditure breakdown is as follows:

 Analysis of irregular expenditure and corrective measures 
  A service provider was appointed in terms of Section 16A6.6 of the SCM PFMA Regulations and approved by the Board as the service 

provider to develop and maintain the GTA Website for R2,317,984.

  The Auditor-General therefore could not find sufficient evidence that the correct procedure was followed during the procurement process. 
Although confirmation of the appointment was received from an agency of state, the Auditor-General maintained that the procurement was 
irregular. The expenditure in terms of the approval for the 2011/12 financial year amounted to R1,544,985. 

  The Board resolved at its meeting held on 30 November 2012 that the irregular expenditure be ratified and that Section 16A.6.6. of the SCM 
PFMA Regulations in future be utilized in exceptional and/or emergency circumstances. Non-compliance will be managed in terms of the GTA 
Disciplinary process.
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21.  GOING CONCERN
  The Authority will be a going concern in the year ahead. For this reason the going concern basis of an accrual system and historical cost 

principle have been adopted in preparing the Authority’s annual financial statements.

 

22.  STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS
  (‘+’ amounts in last column = under budget/spend 
      
       Actual Difference 
     amounts on between final 
  Approved  Final comparable budget and 
  budget Adjustments budget basis actual
   R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

 Receipts          
 Rendering of services 206  892  1 098 1 093  5
 Investment revenue 700  –  700  432  268 
 Grant revenue 52 045  –  52 045  52 045  – 

 Total Receipts 52 951  892  53 843 53 570  273 

 Payments          
 Employee costs 33 297  (1 677) 31 620  30 173  1 447 
 Operating expenses 19 654  2 569 22 223  20 594  1 629 
 Finance charges          
 Materials and bulk purchases          
 Other expenditure –  –  –  –  – 

 Total Payments 52 951  892 53 843  50 759 3 084 

 Net Receipts/(payments) –    – 2 811   

 Explanation of material difference between the final budget and actual 

  The variation between Revenue Budget and Actual (incl. Interest income of R272,684 is less than 1% under budget. 

  The variation between Staff Costs Budget and Actuals of R1,446,745 is 5% under budget. A contributing factor is the Agency merger 
process restricting appointments as well as the CFO only appointed in September 2012.

  The variation between Operating Expenses Budget and Actual of R1,637,437 is 7% under budget. The main contributing factors were savings 
on Internal Audit, Legal Fees, Printing, Stationery and contributions received from Cradle of Humankind and Dinokeng for marketing and 
development projects.
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23.  CHANGE IN ESTIMATE/PRIOR PERIOD ERROR 
 Prior period error

 Property, plant and equipment
  In terms of the requirement of GRAP 17 the useful life of all assets were reviewed by management at year-end. The remaining useful life 

expectations of some asset items are different from previous estimates. This resulted in a revision of some of the previous estimates which 
was accounted for as a change in accounting estimate. The effect of the revision is a decrease in the depreciation charges for the periods 
below:

    2012/13 2011/12

    R R

 Adjusted depreciation in terms of useful life for PPE

 Statement of financial position in Surplus   93 000

 Change in estimate

 Property, plant and equipment
 The nature and amount of the change in estimate that has an effect in the current period and the potential effect of future periods.

  The Authority evaluated the useful life of certain computer equipment, office equipment and furniture and fittings at year end and 
established that the useful life exceeded that which was originally estimated. This resulted in a decrease in depreciation in the current year 
as follows:

  Original depreciation Decrease in Depreciation 

  estimate in current period 

  R R

 Class 

 Computer equipment 6 930 3 465

 Office equipment 2 286 1 143

Section 7 Annual Financial Statements 
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 Furniture and fittings 8 145 4 072

Unaudited supplementary schedule

The Authority’s Materiality Framework is as follows:

Legislative reference Quantity level Quality level
PFMA sec 50(1)(C) (1)

‘The Accounting Authority for a public entity must – (c) on request, disclose to the 

executive authority responsible for that public entity or the legislature to which 

the public entity is accountable, all material facts, including those reasonably 

discoverable, which in any way may influence the decisions or actions of the 

executive authority or that legislature; and

All figures that might influence the decision by the 

executive authority. Monthly reports to the DED will 

include explanatory notes if the actual expenditure/

revenue per Business Unit deviates more than 5% 

from Budget. 

Any item or event of which specific 

disclosure is required by law.

All facts discovered of which its 

omission or misstatement, in the 

Board’s opinion, could influence the 

decision by the executive authority.

PFMA sec 54(2) All transactions as required All figures as applicable 

PFMA sec 55(2)(b)(i) 

(2)  ‘The annual report and financial statements referred to in subsection (1)(d) 

must-

(b)  any material losses through criminal conduct and any irregular expenditure 

and fruitless and wasteful expenditure that occurred during the financial year;

Any loss through criminal conduct identified.

Any loss through irregular/fruitless/wasteful 

expenditure and if the combined total exceeds the 

planning materiality figure used by the external 

auditors for the year under review.

Any loss identified through criminal 

conduct

M A T E R I A L I T Y  F R A M E W O R K
For the Year Ended 31 March 2013
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D E T A I L E D  S T A T E M E N T  O F  P E R F O R M A N C E
For the Year Ended 31 March 2013

 Budget Actual Budget Actual

 2012/13 2012/13 2011/12 2011/12

 R R R R

INCOME 53,843,000 53,570,316 70,091,942 69,773,531 

DFEA Subsidy 52,045,000 52,045,000 46,488,000 45,488,000

Grant Dept of Sport  – – 800,000 800,000

Co Exhibitor Fees 14,000 – 2,283,950 2,219,476

Registration Fees 120,000 131,834 120,000 139,000

Other 20,000 11,830 20,000 30,125

Registration Other 1,000 3,473 1,000 2,226

Study Assistance Refund 1,000 13,178 1,000 32,845

Telephone Staff Refund 50,000 30,554 45,000 28,259

Grant DED Sansui – – 4,000,000 4,000,000

Grant DED Meetings Africa – – 3,000,000 3,000,000

Grant DED Domestic Campaign – – 3,000,000 3,000,000

Grant DED Pan African Craft Fair – – 300,000 300,000

Grant DED Brand & Marketing Strategy – – 1,200,000 1,200,000

Grant DED RASA Partnership – – 500,000 500,000

Grant DED Visitors Info Centre – – 3,000,000 3,000,000

–CoH/D Refund CEO Salary – – 403,000 403,125

CoH/D Website Merge – – 912,000 912,000

CoH/D Tourism Economic Account – – 350,000 350,000

CoH/D Shared Services 892,000 892,000 2,762,913 2,762,913

CoH Sansui – –  

Contribution from Accum Surplus – – 225,079 –

Foreign Exchange Profit – – – –

Donations – Fixed Assets – – – 25,899

Interest Received 700,000 431,882 680,000 579,642

Profit on Disposal of Assets – 10,565 – 
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 Budget Actual Budget Actual

 2012/13 2012/13 2011/12 2011/12

 R R R R

EXPENDITURE    

Finance 4,657,500 3,804,629 4,566,000 4,188,889

Fin – Provision for Leave 43,500 – 203,000 –

Fin – Provision for 13th Cheque 100,000 33,046 51,529 51,529

Fin – Conference & Meetings 1,000 51 3,471 1,649

Fin – Accounting fees 30,000 29,667 26,000 23,080

Fin– Audit Internal 443,000 355,437 518,000 514,150

Fin – Audit External 645,000 588,804 490,000 486,400

Fin – Bank Charges 33,000 28,505 30,000 23,347

Fin – Contingency Costs 25,000 –  

Fin – Financial Planning 12,000 11,614 46,000 38,258

Fin – Insurance 211,000 136,892 162,000 161,505

Fin – Staff Total 2,266,000 1,837,372 2,563,000 2,429,723

Fin – Loss on Disposal of Assets 348,000 349,477 20,000 7,479

Fin – Amortisation 46,000 8,391 28,000 22,816

Fin – Depreciation 454,000 425,373 425,000 428,951

CORPORATE SERVICES

Operational Cost    

Board and Forum Matters 1,286,000 1,193,373 1,716,000 1,662,913

 CS – Organisational Planning & Integr – – – –

 CS – Board Secretariat 173,000 173,068 173,000 173,068

 CS – Attendance and Conf & Forums 163,000 162,769 163,000 162,769

 CS – Attend Conf & Forums Local 86,000 92,534 86,000 92,534

 CS – Attend Conf & Forums Intern 325,000 303,241 325,000 303,241

 CS – Attend Conf & Forums Board Loc 281,000 263,714 281,000 263,714

 CS – Attend Conf & Forums Board Int 298,000 297,550 298,000 297,550

 CS – Board Payments & Allowances 182,000 179,625 182,000 179,625

 CS – CEO Entertainment 51,000 33,639 51,000 33,639
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 Budget Actual Budget Actual
 2012/13 2012/13 2011/12 2011/12
 R R R R

HUMAN RESOURCES 14,097,000 12,941,414 16,042,913 17,003,736
CS – Employee Wellness 20,000 7,799 4,000 3,991
CS – Staff Dev & Training 200,000 28,187 325,000 324,449
CS – Labour Relations 20,000 1,344 15,000 14,571
CS – Organisational Development 70,000 3,075 157,000 156,773
CS – Recruitment 60,000 55,593 14,000 7,740
CS – Study Assistance 260,000 130,213 123,000 121,673

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES    
CS – Conference and Meetings 20,000 8,398 17,000 16,656
CS – Courier and Postage 10,000 8,909 16,000 15,148
CS – Entertainment 100,000 87,980 159,000 160,598
CS – Legal Fees 213,000 115,714 154,000 153,444
CS – Library Research 5,000 – 9,000 –
CS – Motor Vehicle Expenses 85,000 77,222 90,000 86,585
CS – Office Maint & Recep 208,000 195,659 258,000 257,479
CS – Office Electricity – 898,254 346,000 342,258
CS – Office Rent 2,991,000 1,389,952 5,137,913 6,337,246
CS – Cleaning – 366,915 – –
CS – Parking Official 43,000 401,213 18,000 21,202
CS – Motor Vehicle Lease 147,000 122,271 82,000 72,094
CS – Printing & Stationery 356,000 240,473 139,000 137,639
CS – Refreshments 90,000 86,454 60,000 54,305
CS – Relocation Costs 14,000 13,959 281,000 120,622
CS – Security & Safety  30,000 388,788 25,000 13,277
CS – Subscriptions & Library 65,000 54,242 60,000 54,591
CS – Telephones  420,000 221,334 440,000 432,901

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES    
 CS ICT – Dev/Maint of IT,Tel,Aud, 1,114,000 1,134,838 751,000 741,525
 CS ICT – Connectivity – – – –
 CS ICT – Lease of Equipment 210,000 83,802 71,000 76,818
 CS – Staff Total 7,346,000 6,818,825 7,448,000 7,436,925

Reasons for variances:

CoH/Dinokeng contributions to CEO salary and other shared services resulted in Business Unit savings.
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 Budget Actual Budget Actual

 2012/13 2012/13 2011/12 2011/12

 R R R R

DESTINATION MANAGEMENT  16,479,000   15,910,910   14,270,000   14,083,061 

Training Programme  7,149,000   6,888,590   6,191,000   6,058,275 

Sector Skills Audit (DF) 440,000  440,000  –  – 

Foreign Languages (DF) 200,000  179,908  –  – 

Lecture Series (DF) 460,000  400,000  1,104,400  1,104,397 

How to Booklets (90%DF) 200,000  189,499  150,000  150,000 

Service Excellence 150,000  100,000  –  – 

Skills Programmes (DF) 242,000  241,528  –  – 

Tour Guiding        

Registration of Tourist Guides 20,000  7,600  94,100  94,075 

Monitoring Tourist Guides (40%DF) 30,000  23,419  –  – 

Tourist Guides Workshops 30,000  –  –  – 

International Tourist Guide Day (80%DF) 60,000  8,132  8,100  8,080 

Tourism Awards 30,000  30,000  1,000  350 

Enterprise Development        

Tourism Enterprise Dev (DF) 523,000  519,660  765,200  731,042 

Grading of Amenities (80%DF) 300,000  300,000  97,000  – 

SMME Business Development (DF) 360,000  358,908  500,000  500,000 

Tourism Signage (DF) 7,000  18  –  – 

Conference and Workshops (60%DF) 410,000  403,363  241,000  240,215 

QA – Tourist Guide Directory –  –  –  – 

Small Business Network (DF) –  –  1,200  1,200 

Staff 3,687,000  3,686,556  3,229,000  
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 Budget Actual Budget Actual

 2012/13 2012/13 2011/12 2011/12

 R R R R

DESTINATION MANAGEMENT (continued)

Regional Tourism  9,330,000   9,022,320   8,079,000   8,024,786 

Local Auth, Community Tour Projects 40,000  23,592  –  – 

Stakeholder Engagement Programme –  –  130,000  123,639 

Strategic Partnerships 81,000  80,831  140,000  123,967 

Instit F/W for Responsible Tourism 99,000  23 050  10,000  6,992 

Responsible Tourism 450,000  352,582  –  – 

Tourism Awareness Prog (DF) 90,000  66 580  –  – 

Information Services (30%DF) 391,000  390,140    

Regional Tourism Marketing –  –  85,000  70,604 

Visitor Safety Strat Awareness –  –  20,000  17,318 

Conference & Workshops –  –  85,000  84,670 

Regional Temps 154,000  143,756  275,000  264,405 

Staff 8,025,000  7,941,788  7,334,000  7,333,190 

Reasons for variances:    

Training programme and Responsible Tourism programme 

continuing in 2013/14 year resulted in the Business Unit saving.

DESTINATION MARKETING 8,284,500 8,239,119 19,475,200 18,912,530

Mark – Bus Tourism – MICE Exhib 1,074,000 1,130,698 4,490,000 4,490,910

Mark – Marketing and Promotions 170,500 170,241 4,983,000 4,429,471

Mark – Trade Partnerships and Act 1,691,000 1,589,986 3,496,200 3,496,117

Mark – Special Projects 1,500,000 1,500,000 3,053,000 3,052,088

Mark – Staff 3,849,000 3,848,194 3,453,000 3,443,944
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 Budget Actual Budget Actual
 2012/13 2012/13 2011/12 2011/12
 R R R R

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS 4,431,000 4,417,140 10,170,750 10,681,444
CC – Campaign & Events 1,529,000 1,528.235 959,000 975,791
CC – Trade & Stakeholder Hosting  – – 5,479,750 6,008,459
CC – Website and Booking Engine 380,000 379,005 2,566,000 2,567,198
CC – Digital Support 349,000 336,848  
CC – E–Marketing and Prod Dev – – 20,000 2,969
CC – Staff 2,173,000 2,173,053 1,146,000 1,127,027

RESEARCH AND STRATEGY   4,408,000  4,252,233  3,503,079  3,284,357
RS – Tourism Economic Account 59,000 58,233 790,000 605,261
RS – Strategic Research Plan 479,000 483,675  
RS – Strategic Planning 105,000 48,404 111,000 98,957
RS – Tourism Intellegence Reports – – 13,000 6,260
RS – Staff 3,300,000 3,222,827 2,471,079 2,462,747
RS – Professional Memberships  5,000 2,350 4,000 –
RS – Conference & Seminars  450,000 435,995 109,000 108,781
RS – Prov Research Forum (DF) 5,000 349 – –
RS – Subscriptions 5,000 399 5,000 2,350

Total Expenditure  53,643,000  50,758,818  69,743,942  69,816,929

Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year  200,000  2,811,498  348,000  (43,399)

GENERAL EXPENDITURE AS PER NOTE 6.5

  Budget Actual

 Finance 1,400,000 1,150,970
 Corporate Services  4,914,000 4,516,845
 Destination Management 4,613,000 4,138,809
 Destination Marketing 4,435,500 4,390,924
 Corporate Communications 2,258,000 2,244,088
 Research and Strategy 1,108,000 1,029,406
 Board and CEO 1,040,000  924,061

  19,768,500 18,395,103
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Acronym  Description

AFCON  Africa Cup of Nations

AG  Auditor General

APP  Annual Performance Plan

APP  Application

BBBEE  Broad Based Black 

  Economic  

  Empowerment 

BRICS  Brazil, Russia, India, China &

  South Africa

CATHSSETA Cultural, Arts, Tourism, Hospitality 

  and Sports Sector Education and 

  Training Authority 

CCMA  Commission for Conciliation, 

  Mediation and Arbitration

CEO  Chief Executive Officer

CFO  Chief Financial Officer

COH  Cradle of Humankind 

COHWHS Cradle of Humankind World 

  Heritage Site

DAC  Department of Arts and Culture

DED  Department of Economic Affairs

EMITT  Eastern Mediterranean 

  International Tourism and Travel

EIBTM  European Incentive and Business 

  Travel and Meetings

ETEYA  Emerging Tourism Enterprise 

  of the Year

EXSA  Exhibition Association of 

  Southern Africa

FAM  Familiarisation 

FEDHASA Federated Hospitality Association 

  of South Africa

GATOA  Gauteng Tour Operators 

  Association

GCB  Gauteng Convention Bureau

GCR  Global City Region

GDP  Gross Domestic Product

GDPR  Gross Domestic Product by 

Region

GEDA  Gauteng Economic 

  Development Agency

GFC  Gauteng Film Commission

GEGDS Gauteng Employment Growth and 

  Development Strategy

GEGDA Gauteng Economic Growth and 

  Development Agency

GEP  Gauteng Enterprise Propeller

GEYODI Gender, Youth and Disability

GPF  Gauteng Partnership Fund

GRAP  Generally Recognised 

  Accounting Practice

GTA  Gauteng Tourism Authority

GTSS  Gauteng Tourism Sector Strategy

ICCA  International Congress and 

  Convention Association

ICT  Information 

  Communications Technology

IDP  Integrated Development Plan

IGR  Inter-governmental Review

IMEX   Incentive, Meetings, 

  Events and Exhibition 

ITB  International Tourism Bourse

IT  Information Technology

JTC  Johannesburg Tourism Company

MAL  Maropeng Africa Leisure

M&E  Monitoring and Evaluation

MEC  Member of Executive Council

MINMEC Ministers and Members of the 

  Executive Council

MOU  Memorandum of Understanding

MTEF  Medium Term Expenditure 

  Framework

NDT  National Department of Tourism

NGP  National Growth Path

NTSS  National Tourism Sector Strategy

OHS  Organisational Health and Safety

POE  Portfolio of Evidence

POI  Point of Interest

PFMA  Performance Finance 

  Management Act

RASA  Restaurant Association of 

  South Africa

L I S T  o f  A c r o n y m s  i n  t h e  R e p o r t
Glossary:  Gauteng Tourism Acronyms and Description
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SABC  South African Broadcasting 

  Corporation

SADC  Southern Africa Development 

  Community

SAT  South African Tourism

SATSA  Southern African Tourism Services   

  Association

SMME  Small, Medium and 

  Micro Enterprise 

StatsSA Statistics South Africa 

TFDS  Total Foreign Direct Spend

TEP  Tourism Enterprise Partnership

TGCSA  Tourism Grading Council of 

  South Africa

TSA  Tourism Satellite Account

TUT  Tshwane University of Technology

UNWTO United Nation World Tourism 

  Organisation 

VFR  Visiting Friends and 

  Relatives 

WTM  World Travel Market 
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